


Foremost in our understanding is the fact that active 
engagement in global trade has become a key factor in 
the growth of firms and the prosperity of Nations. 

As an apex financial institution to finance, facilitate and promote 
Malaysia’s international trade, EXIM Bank has constantly strived 
to contribute towards Malaysia’s globalisation efforts.

The Bank proactively seeks to enhance the competitive edge 
of Malaysian companies through a comprehensive range of 
financing programmes and advisory and support services which 
encompass all stages of the export business cycle. By doing 
this, we hope to unlock the vast possibilities that exist within 
our Nation, ensuring our Nation’s growth and the prosperity of 
our communities. 

Cover Rationale

VisioN  
To be a leading Financial institution for Malaysian 
cross-border ventures.

MissioN
As a Development Financial institution (DFi) we 
strive to:

Facilitate Malaysia’s global businesses by providing 
banking and credit insurance products and services

Provide development advisory services in nurturing 
Malaysian cross-border business ventures
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EXIM BANk
iN brieF

export-import bank of Malaysia berhad (exiM bank) was incorporated 
on 29 August 1995 as a government owned Development Financial 
institution through a wholly owned subsidiary of the Minister of Finance 
incorporated. The bank was established to promote reverse investment 
and export of strategic sectors such as capital goods, infrastructure 
projects, shipping, value added manufactured products and to facilitate 
the entry of Malaysian companies to new markets, particularly to the
non-traditional markets.

curreNT FAciliTies oFFereD bY exiM bANk

coNVeNTioNAl

•	 Overseas	Project	Financing
•		Overseas	Contract	Financing
•		Overseas	Investment	Financing
•		Buyer	Credit
•		Export	of	Services
•		MalaysiaKitchen	Financing
•		Supplier	Credit
•		Import	Financing
•		Export	Credit	Refinancing	(ECR)
•		Trust	Receipt
•		ADB-EXIM	Trade	Finance	 

Programme
•		Bank	Guarantee
•		Letter	of	Credit
•		Forward	Foreign	Exchange
•		Vendor	Financing	Scheme

islAMic

•	Overseas	Project	Financing-i
•	Overseas	Contract	Financing-i
•	Overseas	Investment	Financing-i
•	Buyer	Financing-i
•	MalaysiaKitchen	Financing-i
•	Term	Financing-i
•	Export	of	Services-i
•	Supplier	Financing-i
•	Import	Financing-i
•	Trust	Receipt-i
•	Export	Credit	Refinancing-i
•	IDB	CO-Financing
•	Bank	Guarantee-i
•	Letter	of	Credit-i
•	Forward	Foreign	Exchange-i
•	Vendor	Financing	Scheme-i

iNsurANce

•	 Trade	Credit	Insurance	
	 (Export/Domestic/Import)
•	 Bankers	Trade	Credit	Insurance	
(BTCI)

•	 Bank	Letter	of	Credit	Policy	
(BLCP)

•	Multi	Currency	Trade	Financing	
Scheme	(MCTF)

•	 Indirect	Exporters’	Financing	
Scheme	(IEFS)

•	 Specific	Policy
•	 Overseas	Investment	Insurance
•	 Buyer	Credit	Guarantee
•	 Bond	Risk	Insurance

TAkAFul

•	 Trade	Credit	Takaful 
(Export/Domestic/Import)

•	 Bankers	Trade	Credit	Takaful
•	 Specific	Takaful
•	 Overseas	Investment	Takaful

bANkiNg FAciliTies creDiT FAciliTies



it happen

Making

Our financial solutions are there to promote reverse investment and 
the export of strategic sectors such as capital goods, infrastructure 
projects, shipping, value added manufactured products and to 
facilitate the entry of Malaysian companies to new markets, 
particularly to the non-traditional markets.





iT hAPPeN

Making
bANk
exiM we encourage 

the participation 
of Malaysian 
businesses in the 
international arena

exPAND
your business globally 
and leave your worries 
behind

MAkiNg iT 
eAsier To TAke 
Your busiNess 
oVerseAs

At



iN 16 AsiAN couNTries

The right support
to build your business abroad

under	the	ADB-EXIM	Trade	Finance	Programme

uP To

FiNANciNg
MArgIN of

85%



MEssAgE froM
The chAirMAN
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DATuk MohD hAshiM biN hAssAN
Chairman
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The year that was:
standing on stronger ground
we have watched the Bank steadily grow 
into a development financial Institution 
(DFI)	that	has	now	come	into	its	own.	It	has	
grown its national mandate, and expanded 
its role within its sphere. I myself have been 
privileged to be part of this journey since 
2008.

we have always been clear of where the 
Bank needed to head. The new business 
model assumed in 2011 was not just to 
stem some leaks, but was designed to 
propel EXIM Bank to the next frontier.

In the past three years, positive key 
indicators following the implementation of 
the new business model have endorsed 
our position. These results draw comfort 
for the future of the Bank and the many 
new possibilities they are unlocking for the 
Bank and for the nation.

let me outline some of the key highlights 
for you here:

7ANNuAl rePorT 2014  •  EXIM BANK MALAYSIA

iN The NAMe oF AllAh, 
THE MosT BENEfICENT, THE MosT MErCIful.

Dear stakeholders,
on behalf of the Board of directors, 
I am pleased to present the 2014 
results of EXIM Bank Malaysia.

In 2014, EXIM Bank recorded a 31 per 
cent increase in its operating revenue, 
to rM357.80 million from its previous 
rM273.51 million. 

The Bank’s total assets stood at a healthy 
rM10.83 million, a 32 per cent growth 
over 2013’s rM8.21 million.

our Islamic finance facilities recorded 
higher income amounting to rM79.09 
million, compared to rM45.23 million in 
2013.

Total disbursement grew to rM6.6 billion, 
a surge of 69 per cent against 2013’s 
rM3.9 billion.

we closed 2014’s books on loans and 
financing assets at rM7.9 billion.

This is a long way from the state EXIM 
Bank was back in 2011.

To this, the Board of directors have 
recommended a final dividend of 
rM0.0025 sen per ordinary share 
amounting to a total payout of rM6.68 
million.
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Forging solid growth
despite a challenging backdrop
Now, what is especially notable is that 
these results came through despite a 
particularly challenging year for Malaysia, 
and the world.

A year where commodity prices 
consistently fell, especially in the oil and gas 
sector. Interest rates were persistently low, 
and against the tides of weak world trade. 
our ringgit also depreciated across the 
board against the currencies of Malaysia’s 
major trading partners. Employment was 
also hit hard as a result, and thousands 
were	 laid-off	 in	markets	across	 the	world	
and in Malaysia.

MessAge FroM The chAirMAN

A key support of the national agenda
Our	 USD300	 million	 5-year	 Reg-S	
sukuk, launched in early 2014, was a 
highlight on many fronts for EXIM Bank, 
and for Malaysia solidifying itself as an 
international Islamic financial hub. It was 
our first sukuk issuance in Malaysia, and 
it also represented the world’s first EXIM 
Bank sukuk issuance. The issuance met 
with overwhelming response and was 
oversubscribed by 10 times.

The sukuk has been recognised with 
various awards including the EMAs status 
conferred	by	Bank	Negara	Malaysia	(BNM),	
and the award winner of the Murabahah 
deal of the year by Islamic finance News.

As Malaysia continues to expand its exports 
growth, EXIM Bank as the only Malaysian 
dfI dedicated to driving and forging  
cross-border	 transactions	 remains	 key	 to	

this agenda. It is noteworthy to highlight 
that the Bank supported rM2.9 billion 
worth of trade transactions, some 44 per 
cent of its total disbursements.

our vendor development programme has 
provided a conduit to facilitate integrated 
business advisory and financial solutions 
for	Small	and	Medium	Enterprises	(SMEs)	
as they make their mark outside Malaysia.

In 2014 alone, the Malaysiakitchen 
financing facility set up by the government 
to brand Malaysia overseas through cuisine 
saw six outlets were approved with a total 
loan of rM14 million.

we also delivered our 2014 target support 
of the National key Economic Areas 
(NKEA).	The	exposure	for	the	focus	sectors	
of manufacturing was met at 20 per cent, 
while oil and gas was at 15 per cent.

iN 2014, exiM bANk recorDeD 
A 31 Per ceNT iNcreAse iN iTs 
oPerATiNg reVeNue,

To rM357.80
MillioN
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we will also be seeing more movement 
in the cargo and shipping sector. 
To promote the domestic shipping 
industry and assist owners of 
cargo ships with gross tonnage not 
exceeding 300 tonnes, the government 
has announced in Budget 2015 to set 
up a Malaysian Profit and Indemnity 
(P+I)	 Club	 under	 the	 Bank	 that	 will	
offer	 third-party	 liability	 protection	 at	
reasonable premiums.

The road ahead
The only certainty of what lies ahead 
in 2015 and beyond is that it will be 
equally, if not more, challenging than 
2014. Complexity, volatility, ambiguity 
will continue to be permanent fixtures 
in the global scene, and with that, a  
carry-through	to	Malaysia.

EXIM Bank has persevered through many 
turbulent periods since its establishment 
in 1995, including its own personal battles 
of 2008 and 2011. Through this, it has 
reengineered itself and on the back of its 
strengthened business model, become 
more resilient. EXIM Bank has earned its 
battle scars and can wear them with pride 
and look ahead with confidence to any 
challenge that the future holds.

It is a testimony to the support, guidance 
and dedication from my fellow Board of 
directors, and the tenacity, perseverance 
and commitment of dato’ Adissadikin and 
his team.

on behalf of the Board and Management 
of EXIM Bank, we also thank you as our 
shareholders, the government of Malaysia, 

DATuk MohD hAshiM 
biN hAssAN
Chairman

BNM, partners and business associates 
for your confidence that has allowed us to 
grow.

As I pen off my last message as Chairman 
of EXIM Bank of Malaysia, I do so with pride 
and assurance knowing that I hand over 
a stronger entity marked with resilience 
and the courage to forge itself through 
challenges.

As MAlAYsiA coNTiNues To exPAND iTs exPorTs 
groWTh, EXIM BANk As THE oNly MAlAysIAN dfI 
DEDICATED	TO	DRIVING	AND	FORGING	CROSS-BORDER	
TrANsACTIoNs rEMAINs kEy To THIs AgENdA.



oPErATIoNs rEvIEw By
PresiDeNT/chieF execuTiVe oFFicer
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DATo’ ADissADikiN biN Ali
President/Chief Executive Officer



oPerATioNs reVieW bY PresiDeNT/chieF execuTiVe oFFicer
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our results speak a louder message, than 
any of us could. It says that if we can 
turn-around	as	an	entity,	how	much	more	
we can do for you as clients and partners.

Trust is the most valuable capital a bank 
maintains. Trust is demonstrated through 
action and results. It is also mirrored in the 
aspiration to grow revenue and profit in a 
way that respects all stakeholders.

we have shared the concept of the New 
Business	 Model	 (NBM)	 in	 our	 previous	
reports, so many of you would be familiar 
with it. let me share with you how on the 
back of our NBM, we have progressed as 
the only development financial Institution 
(DFI)	 in	Malaysia	 dedicated	 to	 promoting	 
cross-border	 transactions	 in	 support	 of	
Malaysia as she expands her reach across 
the globe.

The same feeling that surged 
through me then, continued to 
fuel me as we underwent the 
2011 transformation with the New 
Business	Model	(NBM),	

i AM exciTeD ToDAY As WheN i FirsT 
sTEPPEd INTo EXIM BANk of MAlAysIA BACk IN 2008.

The year in review: business & 
operational highlights
let me recap some of EXIM Bank’s key 
financial highlights mentioned earlier by 
our Chairman, and some further details of 
our highlights in 2014.

•	 A	 31	 per	 cent	 increase	 in	 operating	
revenue to rM357.80 million

•	 Total	 assets	 increased	 to	 RM10.83	
billion, a 32 per cent growth 

•	 An	impressive	75	per	cent	increase	in	
income at rM79.09 million through 
our Islamic finance facilities 

•	 Total	 disbursement	 grew	 to	 RM6.6	
billion, a surge of 69 per cent compared 
to the previous year

•	 Total	 loans	 and	 financing	 assets	
closed at rM7.9 billion a solid 
headway to reaching our 2018 goal to 
record total lending to 3 per cent of the 
country’s gdP

and stayed on with me as we registered another good year in 2014, with financial 
results that reinforce our confidence in the strategy we are pursuing.
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Today, we also record one of the highest 
growths in terms of loan asset growth 
year-on-year	 among	DFIs.	We	were	able	
to trim impaired assets from as high as 
50	 per	 cent	 to	 sub-10	 per	 cent	 (gross	
impaired	assets)	in	2014.

Concurrently, gross and net impaired asset 
ratios continued to decline to 8.4 per cent, 
and 6.2 per cent respectively, compared to 
14.2 per cent and 7.7 per cent registered in 
2013. This was attributable to continuous 
loan rehabilitation and recovery efforts, 
coupled with an enlarged loan assets 
base.

our net interest income improved in line 
with the Bank’s approach in procuring 
borrowings at optimal cost. A refocusing 
of our marketing efforts oriented on clients, 
and not on pushing products, effectively 
saw net loans and financing growing 49 
per cent to rM7.9 billion from rM5.3 
billion in 2013. 
 
It was a deliberate investment we made for 
our future growth, with the incorporation 
of the 2008 Customer Improvement 
Programme, and the 2011 NBM. for 
2014, profit before tax and zakat declined 
to rM40.86 million from rM190.26 million 
(2013)	to	cater	for	these	provisions.

we have recorded solid progress in our 
business and operations. 

overall, the banking section contributed 
89 per cent to EXIM Bank’s operating 
revenue. loans approval registered a 35 
per cent upturn, an improvement from 
rM5.2 billion to rM8.6 billion. In addition, 
the Bank amplified its support in trade 
finance, which resulted in a 25 per cent 
increase from rM2.29 billion recorded in 
2013.

In addition to our conventional financing 
facilities, our Islamic banking and credit 
Takaful also commanded marked 
improvement in 2014. Islamic banking saw 
an asset growth of 75 per cent, amounting 

to rM2.7 billion gross advances and 
financing, compared to rM1.5 billion in 
2013.

our first, and the world EXIM’s first, 
usd300 million sukuk issuance, has 
also commanded the attention of the 
international Islamic finance world. 

we continue to build and support small 
and	 Medium	 Enterprises	 (SME),	 a	 key	
growth engine for Malaysia. Especially with 
this client segment, our offerings extend 
from financing to business advisory and 
financial solutions. our targeted sME 
platforms	 including	 ADB-EXIM	 Trade	
finance Programme, vendor financing 
scheme, engagement and networking 
opportunities, and collaborative 
arrangements with related government 
agencies, have seen our sME composition 
(number	of	borrowers)	grow	to	49	per	cent	
of our total borrowing base.

Increase in our operational efficiencies also 
saw the Bank processing close to 300 
business case applications, to the tune of 
some rM25.3 billion. This was a 26 per 
cent	year-on-year	improvement.

Forging ahead
The NBM has set us on stronger footing, 
and will continue to support our business 
acceleration against what 2015 may bring.

year 2015 forecasts a shimmer of better 
growth with us set to recover, and the 
US-expansionary	mode	will	bode	well	 for	
export-led	 economies	 like	 Malaysia.	 The	
upcoming AsEAN Economic Cooperation 
(AEC)	with	Malaysia	 taking	 chair	 role	will	
also present some interesting possibilities. 
The AEC will enable easier movement 
of goods, services, investment, capital 
and people, through greater regional 
cooperation and improved scales of 
efficiencies and competitiveness. we will 
be looking to leverage on the AEC as it 
opens new ways to coordinating supply 
chains, and access to new markets for 
established products.

2013
exiM bank marked another 
significant milestone as being 
awarded with the Most Watched 
bank 2013 in Malaysia by 
intercontinental Finance Magazine 
(icFM) united kingdom in its global 
banking Awards 2013.

Hr Asia also awarded EXIM Bank 
Malaysia as the Best Company to work 
for in Asia 2013. 

3rd representative office opened in 
kuching, sarawak. The launch was 
officially declared open by Yb Dato’ 
sri Wong soon koh, 

Minister	of	Finance	(II)	and	Minister	of	
local government and Community 
development representing The right 
Honourable Pehin sri Haji Abdul Taib 
Mahmud, Chief Minister of sarawak.

2014
exiM bank had successfully priced 
its usD300.0 million, 5-year reg-s 
sukuk pursuant to the usD1.0 billion 
Multicurrency sukuk issuance 
Programme (the “Programme”). 

The inaugural sukuk offering was priced 
at 140 basis points over us Treasuries 
(UST),	which	is	equivalent	to	an	all-in	yield	
of 2.874% per annum. The EMAs award 
was accorded for this issuance.
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rM10.83
billioN

ToTAl AsseTs 
iNcreAseD To

A 32%

we will progress strongly on our  
market-needs	 strategy	 that	 has	 already	
seen us represented in more than 80 
countries across the world.

our networking and strategic alliances 
have grown. Currently, EXIM Bank 
is a member of the Berne union, an 
international organisation for export credit 
agencies; a member of Asian EXIM Banks 
forum, an association of ten EXIM Banks 
in Asia; The Aman union and Association 
of development finance Institutions 
of	 Malaysia	 (ADFIM),	 Association	 of	
development financing Institutions in 
Asia	and	the	Pacific	(ADFIAP)	and	Islamic	
Development	Bank	(IDB),	to	name	a	few.	
we continue to pursue key alliances with 
commercial banks, and other export credit 
agencies like EfIC Australia, as we take on 
larger projects.

our business strategy is complemented 
with our talent. we have the right people in 
our team, and are attracting the right talent, 
to help us continue our growth trajectory. 
We	are	a	market-rate	competitive	employer	
that builds on an engaged employee 
culture.	Our	2014	employee-engagement	
index indicator of 83 per cent surpassed 
the target of 75 per cent.

There are areas we will be needing to 
focus on. our credit insurance business, 
which holds an important role in risk 
mitigation	 for	 cross-border	 transactions,	
needs to ramp up significantly, in order to 
ensure acceptability within the business 
community.

Concurrently, corporate social responsibility 
efforts are an extension of the spirit and 
essence that drives EXIM Bank. As we 
continue our efforts, we would like to 
make deeper positive impacts within the 

DATo’ ADissADikiN biN Ali
President/Chief Executive Officer

groWTh

communities across the marketplace, 
workplace and the environment.

Acknowledgement
It has been a tremendous journey and I am 
proud to have been part of it along with 
so many who have dedicated their time 
and efforts to where EXIM Bank stands in 
strength today. To the Board of directors 
and to my team at EXIM Bank, thank you 
for your trust in walking this journey with me. 
I would also like to thank the shareholders, 
BNM and other stakeholders for their 
support.

There is no doubt the journey will continue 
to be challenging. But it will be one we can 
charge ahead with confidence.



Best practice

Optimising

at eXiM Bank, we’re committed to putting customers at the 
heart of everything we do, that’s why we aim to provide the 
best products, services and experiences. Our efforts have been 
recognised by customers and by a series of awards from the 
industry.
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Optimising

At exiM bank, we’re committed to putting customers at the 
heart of everything we do, that’s why we aim to provide the 
best products, services and experiences. our efforts have been 
recognised by customers and by a series of awards from the 
industry.

sukuk Issuance of 
us$300,000,000

AlPhA souTheAsT 
AsiA DeAl AWArDs
(borroWer / issuer AWArD)

Most Innovative Islamic finance 
deal of the year 2014 in 
southeast Asia

‘eMAs’
sTATus



AsiA AWArDs

2014
Credit and finance 
Bank of the year

islAMic 
FiNANce 
NeWs 
AWArDs

Murabahah and 
Trade Finance 
Deal of the Year 

world’s first us 
dollar-denominated	
sukuk to be issued 
by	an	Export-Import	
Bank

The euroPeAN 
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DATuk MohD hAshiM
biN hAssAN
Chairman

Datuk Mohd hashim bin hassan (69) 
is the chairman of exiM bank, a 
position he has held since 2008. 

He has had a long and varied career, 
beginning in 1970 as a food technologist 
attached to the Ministry of Agriculture. In 
1975, he joined the Malaysian Agricultural 
research and development Institute 
(MARDI),	working	his	way	up	to	his	final	
appointment as director of the food 
Technology division in 1981. After 15 years 
with MArdI, datuk Mohd Hashim had a 
brief stint with Harrisons Malaysia Plantation 
before joining kumpulan fIMA Berhad in 
1985 where he served as general Manager 
until his appointment as the Executive 
director of fIMA Metal Box in 1990. 
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In 1996, datuk Mohd Hashim joined Putrajaya Holdings sdn. 
Bhd., first as its Chief Executive officer in 1996, then as its 
deputy Chairman in 2002, and finally, as its Chairman in 2003 
until 2004. He also served as Chairman of Pedoman semarak 
sdn. Bhd. between 2002 and 2005; Chairman of Padiberas 
Nasional Berhad between 2004 and 2006; and Chairman of 
Juta Asia Properties sdn. Bhd. between 2005 and 2009. 

Between 2003 and 2012, datuk Mohd Hashim also held 
directorships in several prominent companies, including 
Bank	 Kerjasama	 Rakyat	 Malaysia	 Berhad	 (2003-2010);	
Sinaria	 Corporation	 Berhad	 (2009-2010);	 Al-Hijrah	
Broadcasting	 Corporation	 (2009-2010);	 Amanah	 Raya	
Berhad	(2005-2011);	and	Lebtech	Berhad	(formerly	known	
as	Lebar	Daun	Berhad)	(2004-2012).

In June 2005, datuk Mohd Hashim also became a member of 
the Investment Committee of the Employees Provident fund, 
and	subsequently,	 in	2007-2008	was	appointed	 to	 its	Board	
of directors. He was also appointed as Chairman of Amanah 
raya development sdn. Bhd. from 2005 to 2012 and Amanah 
raya Hartanah sdn. Bhd. from 2007 to 2012. 

datuk Mohd Hashim graduated from the university of Malaya 
with a Bachelor’s degree in Agricultural science or Honours. 
He also holds two Masters degrees, in food science from 
Michigan state university, united states, as well as in Business 
Administration from ohio university, united states. 

Thereafter, datuk Mohd Hashim began his stint in public service, serving the kedah state 
government as Chief Executive officer between 1993 and 1996. At the same time, he was 
appointed as the Managing director of kulim Technology Park Corporation from 1994 to 1996, 
and as the Executive Chairman of Bina darulaman Berhad from 1994 to 1997.
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Dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali is the President/chief 
executive officer of exiM bank, a position he has held 
since september 2010. Prior to this, he served as the 
chief operating officer of exiM bank since 2008.

He is also presently a director of Malaysia External 
Trade	 Development	 Corporation	 (MATRADE),	 Malaysia	
Export	 Credit	 Insurance	 Berhad	 (MECIB),	 Pengkalan	
Megaria sdn. Bhd., Morning glory Co. ltd. and  
Masceana Co. ltd.

dato’ Adissadikin began his career as a Management 
Trainee Executive with renong Berhad in 1995. during 
his four year tenure with the group, he served in various 
subsidiaries of the group, namely Prolink development 
sdn. Bhd., HBN Management sdn. Bhd. and Projek 
lebuhraya utara selatan Berhad in the areas of corporate 
finance, internal audit, sales and marketing and project 
management.

In April 1999, he joined Pengurusan danaharta Nasional 
Berhad and served the national asset management 
corporation	 for	 four	years	 in	 the	areas	of	Non-Performing	
Loans	 (NPLs)	 Recovery	 and	 Corporate	 Recovery	 &	
reconstruction. In March 2003, dato’ Adissadikin joined 
Bank Muamalat Malaysia Berhad as the special Assistant 
to the Chief Executive officer, later on becoming the Head 
of Corporate Planning in January 2005.

In June 2005, he joined Bank Islam Malaysia Berhad as 
Assistant general Manager, Managing director’s office. In 
2006, he was promoted to assume the position of Chief 
financial officer cum general Manager, special Projects. 
He	 was	 responsible	 for	 managing	 NPL	 carving-out	 and	
bank-wide	cost	rationalisation	programme	in	Bank	Islam.

dato’ Adissadikin, an Alumni of Harvard Business school, 
holds	a	Masters	Degree	in	Business	Administration	(Finance)	
from university of Malaya, kuala lumpur, a Bachelor degree 
in	Business	 (Banking	&	 Finance)	 from	Monash	University,	
Melbourne, Australia and diploma in Investment Analysis, 
uiTM, shah Alam.

DATo’ ADissADikiN biN Ali
President / Chief Executive Officer
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Dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor holds a bachelor of 
science in civil engineering from brighton university, 
united kingdom. he also attended a Finance course 
at harvard business school in the united states.

dato’ rosli has built a long and steady career in 
infrastructure development and construction, starting as 
a design Engineer with Engineering and Environmental 
Consultants sdn. Bhd. in 1982. He held various positions 
in	the	design	firm	before	joining	United	Engineers	(M)	Bhd	
in 1988 as a senior Manager.

In 1992, he started his own construction business by 
forming Benar Antara sdn. Bhd., a Pkk Class A Contractor. 
The company undertook various projects that included 
highways, lrT tunnels, water reservoirs, rail lines and many 
others. The company has since been sold to a public listed 
company, but he remained as their Managing director till 
2000.

Thereafter, he continued to develop new businesses, 
including	 KMK	 Plus	 Sdn.	 Bhd.	 (construction),	 Landas	
Idaman	 Sdn.	 Bhd.	 (property	 development),	 Guomara	
Sdn.	 Bhd.	 (coal	 trader),	 of	 which	 he	 currently	 retains	
shareholdings.

Presently, he is also the Business development director of a 
company wholly owned by TrC synergy Berhad, listed on 
Bursa Malaysia. He also sits on the boards of Ads Projek 
sdn. Bhd., guomara sdn. Bhd., kMk Plus sdn. Bhd., kMk 
ventures sdn. Bhd. and Econpile Holdings Bhd, another 
company listed on Bursa Malaysia. At Econpile Holdings 
Bhd, he is the Chairman of Audit and risk Management 
and remuneration Committee.

dato’ rosli was appointed as a director of EXIM Bank in 
september 2009.

DATo’ rosli
biN MohAMeD Nor
Director
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Dato’ Dr. Mohd isa hussain holds a PhD in Finance 
from universiti Putra Malaysia. he also holds an MbA 
in Finance from universiti kebangsaan Malaysia, 
bachelor of economics (honours) (Applied statistics) 
from university of Malaya and a Post-graduate Diploma 
in Public Management from National institute of Public 
Administration. 

dato’ dr. Mohd Isa began his career in 1983 as 
Assistant director in the Prime Minister’s department 
and subsequently appointed as Assistant director at the 
Pahang state Economic Planning unit of Pahang in 1985.

He then joined the Ministry of finance holding various 
positions, including Assistant secretary in the government 
Procurement division from 1990 to 1995 and senior 
Assistant director of the Budget Management division until 
2000. In 2004, he assumed the position of deputy under 
Secretary	of	Investment,	MoF	(Inc.)	and	Privatisation	Division.

He moved to the Ministry of Transport Malaysia in 2008 
as	 Deputy	 Secretary	 General	 (Operation)	 before	 he	 was	
appointed as Interim Head of the Public land Transportation 
Commission	(SPAD)	from	2009	to	2010.	

Prior to assuming his current position as under secretary, 
government Investment Companies division in the Ministry 
of finance Malaysia, he was appointed as the deputy 
under secretary under the same division.

Presently, dato’ dr. Mohd Isa is a director of several companies 
including fElCrA Bhd, Permodalan felcra sdn. Bhd., felcra 
Properties sdn. Bhd., yayasan felcra sdn. Bhd., felcra 
Cambodia sdn. Bhd., danaInfra Nasional Berhad, Pelaburan 
Hartanah	 Bhd,	 Lembaga	 Pembangunan	 Langkawi	 (LADA),	
Lembaga	Pelabuhan	Kelang	(LPK),	Integrated	Nautical	Resort	
Sdn.	 Bhd.	 (INR),	 Garuda	 Suci	 Sdn.	 Bhd.	 (GSSB),	 Syarikat	
Jaminan	 Kredit	 Perumahan	 Bhd	 (SJKP),	 Syarikat	 Jaminan	
Pembiayaan	Perniagaan	Bhd	(SJPP),	Piramid	Pertama	Sdn.	
Bhd., Pengurusan danaharta Nasional Bhd, Turus Pesawat 
Sdn.	Bhd.,	Assets	Global	Network	Sdn.	Bhd.	(AGN)	and	K.L.	
International Airport Berhad. 

dato’ dr. Mohd Isa was appointed as a director of EXIM 
Bank in May 2011.

DATo’ Dr. MohD isA hussAiN
Director
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Nik Najib bin husain holds b.A. econs. (hons) 
from university of Malaya and Masters in Public 
Administration from university of Wisconsin-
Madison, usA.

Nik Najib started his career in the public sector where 
he served in the Economic and finance divisions in the 
Ministry of finance, Malaysia from 1973 to 1990. during his 
time with Mof, Nik Najib was responsible for managing the 
government’s external borrowings from the world Bank, 
Overseas	 Economic	 Cooperation	 Fund	 of	 Japan	 (OECF)	
and Kreditanstalt fur Wideraufbau	 of	 Germany	 (KFW)	 as	
well as the government’s lending programme to the state 
governments.

Thereafter, he joined the private sector, serving Malayan 
Banking	Berhad	 (Maybank)	 in	 its	Corporate	Banking	 and	
International Banking departments from 1990 to 1999. 
while at Maybank, Nik Najib was responsible for lending 
to public sector companies such as Petronas, Tenaga 
Nasional and Telekom. He was also involved in implementing 
Maybank’s overseas expansion programme to Myanmar, 
China, uzbekistan, vietnam, Cambodia, Philippines and 
Papua New guinea. 

In May 1999, Nik Najib joined the Trade finance and 
Promotion	Department	(TFD)	of	the	Jeddah-based	Islamic	
Development	 Bank	 (IDB)	 and	 was	 later	 appointed	 as	
Advisor to the CEo, International Islamic Trade finance 
Corporation	(ITFC,	a	subsidiary	of	the	IDB	Group).	He	was	
instrumental in formulating the Corporation’s medium term 
strategic and annual business plans. He also supervised 
trade	financing	operations,	funds	mobilisation	(syndications)	
and	 marketing,	 focusing	 mainly	 on	 Sub-Saharan/West	
Africa, Central Asia, Turkey, Iran, Malaysia and Indonesia. 
He retired in december 2008.

Nik Najib was appointed as a director of EXIM Bank in  
June 2011.

Nik NAjib biN husAiN
Director
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Dato’ Agil Natt holds a bachelor of science in 
economics (honours) degree from brunel university, 
london. he obtained a Master of science in Finance 
degree from cAss business school, london. he 
also attended the Advanced Management Program, 
harvard business school in the united states.

dato’ Agil started his career in 1977 as Corporate finance 
Manager with Bumiputra Merchant Bankers Berhad before 
serving	 as	 Senior	General	Manager	 (Finance)	 at	 Island	 &	
Peninsular Bhd in 1982. He then joined kleinwort Benson 
ltd. serving as its regional Chief representative.

Thereafter, dato’ Agil joined the Maybank group where 
he served in various senior management positions, 
including senior general Manager, Corporate Banking, 
Chief Executive officer of Aseambankers Malaysia Berhad 
(now	 known	 as	 Maybank	 Investment	 Bank	 Berhad)	 and	
Executive director/deputy President of Maybank.

from 2006 until his retirement in 2011, dato’ Agil served 
as President and Chief Executive officer of the International 
Centre	 for	 Education	 in	 Islamic	 Finance	 (INCEIF),	 The	
global university of Islamic finance, set up by Bank Negara 
Malaysia.

Presently,	 he	 is	 the	 Independent	 and	 Non-Executive	
Chairman of sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 
Malaysia Berhad, Credit guarantee Corporation Malaysia 
Berhad and Manulife Insurance Berhad. He also sits on the 
Boards of Cagamas Berhad, Manulife Asset Management 
Services	Berhad,	Sogo	 (KL)	Department	Store	Sdn.	Bhd.	
and	Sogo	(KL)	Sdn.	Bhd..	He	is	also	a	Board	Member	of	the	
Board of Trustees of yayasan Tun Abdul razak.

dato’ Agil was appointed as a director of EXIM Bank in 
february 2012.

DATo’ Agil NATT
Director
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ismail bin Mahbob holds a Diploma in Marketing from 
chartered institute of Marketing, united kingdom, 
and is a member of the Associate chartered islamic 
Finance Professionals (AciFP), Malaysia. 

Ismail has vast experience in the insurance industry both 
in Malaysia and overseas covering the main sectors of 
broking, retail insurance, reinsurance and retakaful. 

His career in insurance started in 1977 as a broker with 
Magnet Insurance Brokers, kota kinabalu. In 1979, he 
joined Progressive Insurance sdn. Bhd. where he served 
in various managerial positions till 1988, after which he 
moved to American Malaysian Insurance as an Assistant 
general Manager overseeing the company’s branch 
operations nationwide. In 1990, Ismail left for Malene CsB 
Insurance Brokers as a senior Broker where he headed the  
non-energy	section	for	six	years.	

In	 1997,	 he	 moved	 to	 Labuan	 Reinsurance	 (L)	 Ltd.	 and	
served as a senior vice President. At labuan reinsurance, 
Ismail was entrusted with developing new markets covering 
countries	in	Africa,	the	MENA	region	(Middle	East	&	North	
Africa)	 including	 Turkey,	 the	 Indian	 Sub-Continent	 and	
some	 countries	 of	 South-East	 Asia.	 He	 also	 headed	 its	
retakaful operation and oversaw the Company’s business 
participation at lloyd’s of london. In 2007, Ismail joined the 
first Malaysian retakaful company, MNrB retakaful Berhad 
as its President/Chief Executive officer till his retirement in 
mid 2012.

utilising his knowledge and experience, Ismail has also 
contributed towards the production of a book on takaful 
and mutual insurance produced by the world Bank.

Ismail is currently a Board member of saudi reinsurance 
Company,	 Saudi	 Arabia,	 Bank	 of	 Tokyo-Mitsubishi	 UFJ	
(Malaysia)	 Berhad	 and	 an	 Adjunct	 Fellow	 of	 College	 of	
Business, universiti utara Malaysia, Malaysia.

Ismail was appointed as a director of EXIM Bank in August 
2012. 

isMAil biN MAhbob
Director

ProFile: boArD oF DirecTors



26 EXIM BANK MALAYSIA  •  AnnuAl RepoRt 2014

Datuk Wong seng Foo holds a Master of business 
Administration (MbA) from henley Management 
college/brunel university, united kingdom. he is 
also a graduate from university of Malaya and holds 
a Diploma in Marketing from chartered institute of 
Marketing (uk).

datuk wong seng foo served in several capacities in the 
Ministry	of	International	Trade	and	Industry	(MITI).	He	started	
his career as Assistant director in the AsEAN Economic 
Cooperation unit of the International Trade division in 
1983 responsible for coordinating Malaysia’s participation 
in AsEAN regional trade initiatives and programmes with 
AsEAN dialogue Partners.

His tenure at the Industrial development division, 
from 1989 to 1991, included coordinating Malaysia’s 
participation in regional investment and AsEAN industrial 
cooperation involving bilateral investment promotion policy 
and Investment guarantee Agreements as well as industrial 
cooperation programmes with several international 
agencies. As Principal Assistant director of Multilateral Trade 
relations division, he coordinated Malaysia’s participation 
in	 the	World	 Trade	Organisation	 (WTO)	 and	 trade	 related	
programmes by uN related institutions.

from 2001 until end 2005, datuk wong seng foo served 
as	Minister-Counselor	(Economic)	attached	to	the	Embassy	
of Malaysia in washington d.C., usA before returning to 
Malaysia to assume the position of director of Investment 
and Industrial strategy until 2007. Thereafter, he headed the 
fTA Policy and Negotiations Coordination division until 2009.

up to January 2015, datuk wong seng foo was senior 
director of Economic and Trade relations division in MITI. 
Currently, he is the senior director, Multilateral Trade Policy 
and Negotiations division.
 
datuk wong seng foo was appointed as a director of EXIM 
Bank in october 2012.

DATuk WoNg seNg Foo
Director
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Tunku Afwida binti Tunku A.Malek holds a bachelor 
of science (honours) degree in economics and 
Accountancy from city university london, uk, 
qualified as a chartered Accountant from the 
institute of chartered Accountants in england and 
Wales and is a member of the Malaysian institute of 
Accountants.

Tunku Afwida assumed senior roles in investment banks 
and has vast financial, analytical and risk management 
experience.

from 1995 to 2003, she was an Executive director/Chief 
Investment officer of Commerce Asset fund Managers 
sdn. Bhd. before serving as Chief Executive officer and 
Executive director of MIMB Investment Bank Berhad until 
2006. Thereafter, she was appointed as Chief Executive 
officer and Executive director of kenanga Investment Bank 
Berhad until 2008.

Tunku Afwida is currently a director and shareholder of 
Benih semaian sdn. Bhd., a funding advisory company.

she is also the Independent director and Board Committees 
of	i-VCAP	Management	Sdn.	Bhd.	(subsidiary	of	Valuecap	
Sdn.	 Bhd.),	 Gamuda	 Berhad,	 UNITAR	 Berhad	 and	 PUC	
founder Bhd.

Tunku Afwida was appointed as a director of EXIM Bank in 
August 2014.

TuNku AFWiDA 
biNTi TuNku A.MAlek
Director
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sHArIAH
coMMiTTee

DATo’ Dr. MohD Ali
biN hAji bAhAruM
Chairman

Dr. ZAhAruDDiN
biN AbD. rAhMAN

Assoc. ProF. Dr. Mek 
Wok biNTi MAhMuD
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shAriAh coMMiTTee

Assoc. ProF. Dr. suhAiMi 
biN Ab. rAhMAN

Dr. ZulkiFli
biN hAsAN

Dr. shAriFAh FAigAh
biNTi sYeD AlWi

29ANNuAl rePorT 2014  •  EXIM BANK MALAYSIA



30 EXIM BANK MALAYSIA  •  AnnuAl RepoRt 2014

ProfIlE:
shAriAh coMMiTTee

He	 also	 holds	 a	 Master	 in	 Law	 (LLM)	 from	 University	 of	
Malaya	and	a	Degree	in	Islamic	Studies	(Hons)	from	Universiti	
kebangsaan Malaysia. He has been awarded a diploma 
of	 Translation	 from	Dewan	Bahasa	 dan	 Pustaka	 (DBP)	 and	
diploma in Arabic from International university of Africa 
Khartoum	Sudan,	Master	 of	 Business	Administration	 (MBA)	
from universiti kebangsaan Malaysia and diploma of English 
from stamford College. 

dato’ dr. Mohd Ali’s portfolio includes being the member 
of	 Shariah	 Advisor	 of	 banks	 and	 trust	 funds	 vis-a-vis	 Bank	
Negara Malaysia, securities Commission Malaysia, Bank 
Pertanian Malaysia Berhad, Bank Muamalat Malaysia Berhad, 
the royal Bank of scotland Berhad, rHB Capital Berhad, 
Permodalan unit Trust Terengganu Berhad, opus Asset 
Management sdn. Bhd. and in addition to being a member of 
the Board of directors of kanz Holding sdn. Bhd. 

He was appointed as the Chairman of EXIM Bank’s shariah 
Committee on 4 March 2013 until present. He is also the 
shariah Committee member for BNP Paribas Malaysia 
Berhad.

DATo’ Dr. MohD Ali
biN hAji bAhAruM
(Chairman)

dato’ dr. Mohd Ali bin Haji Baharum holds a Phd 
(Law)	from	University	of	Essex,	England.	
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He holds a Phd in law from the university of wales, 
Aberystwyth, united kingdom and Masters in Comparative 
law from the International Islamic university, Malaysia. He 
obtained	 his	 first	 degree	 in	 Shariah	 from	Al-Azhar	University,	
Egypt. He was appointed as a member of EXIM Bank shariah 
Committee on 16 september 2011. At uPM, he is a shariah 
Committee member of dana wakaf Ilmu uPM and koperasi 
uPM Berhad. He is also a shariah Council member of the Qsr 
Brands sdn. Bhd.. He has been an advisor for sIrIM, Halal 
Development	Corporation	 (HDC),	 JAKIM	and	National	 Fatwa	
Councils in developing national Halal policies and standards. 
To date, he has been invited and moderated several seminars 
in Halal and shariah compliant transactions throughout the 
country. He has also published books and various articles in 
academic and professional journals.

Assoc. ProF. Dr. suhAiMi
biN Ab rAhMAN 

dr. suhaimi bin Ab. rahman is an Associate Professor 
at the faculty of Economics and Management, universiti 
Putra	Malaysia	(UPM)	and	the	Head	of	the	Research	
Programme in Halal Business and Management at the 
Halal Products research Institute, uPM. 
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He holds a Phd in Islamic finance from durham university, uk. Besides, 
he holds Master of Comparative laws from International Islamic 
University	 of	Malaysia	 where	 he	 also	 obtained	 his	 LLB	 (Bachelor	 of	
Laws)	and	LLB.S	(Bachelor	of	Shariah)	as	his	first	and	second	degrees.	
He was appointed as EXIM Bank’s shariah Committee member on 7 
december 2012. He is also a shariah panel for the Institute of fatwa 
Management and research, usIM as well as editor and reviewer for 
various journals such as the Malaysian Journal of shariah and law, the 
International Journal of Business and finance research, shariah law 
reports, Journal of Antitrust Enforcement and Corporate governance: 
An International review. He has been selected as a recipient of a 2014 
grant to conduct scholarly research at fordham university, New york, 
united states of America by the J. william fulbright foreign scholarship 
Board	through	the	Fulbright	US-ASEAN	Visiting	Scholars	Initiative.

His	 industry	 experience	 was	 as	 an	 in-house	 legal	 counsel	 for	 Bank	
Muamalat Malaysia Berhad, member of rules and regulations working 
Committee for Association of Islamic Banking Institutions Malaysia and 
member of corporate governance working committee for Awqaf south 
Africa. He also underwent internship at Hawkamah, the Institute for 
Corporate governance, dubai International financial Centre where he 
was involved in developing corporate governance guidelines for Islamic 
Financial	Institutions	in	the	Middle	East	and	North	Africa	(MENA)	as	well	
as	in	the	Task	Force	on	Environmental,	Social	and	Governance	(ESG)	
which led towards development of the s&P/Hawkamah Pan Arab Esg 
Index. His articles have been published in various academic journals 
and he has presented many papers in various conferences both local 
and abroad. His research includes corporate and shariah governance 
and regulation in Islamic finance.

Dr. ZulkiFli biN hAsAN

dr. Zulkifli bin Hasan is a senior lecturer at faculty 
of shariah and law, Islamic science university of 
Malaysia	(USIM).	

ProFile: shAriAh coMMiTTee
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Dr. ZAhAruDDiN biN
AbD. rAhMAN

dr. Zaharuddin bin Abd. rahman holds a Phd in 
shariah and Islamic finance from the university of 
wales, united kingdom. 

He	 also	 holds	 a	 Master	 in	 Islamic	 Law	 (Hons)	 from	 Al-Yarmouk	
University,	 Jordan	 and	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Arts	 (Hons)	 in	 Usuluddin	 from	
university of Malaya. He is one of the few shariah scholars in Islamic 
Banking and finance who possess both strong academic research 
background and hands on Islamic finance application in Islamic banks. 
He was appointed as a member of shariah Committee of EXIM Bank 
on 2 April 2013.

He has written numerous books and hundreds of articles on Islamic 
Jurisprudence and Islamic Banking and other shariah journals, 
including local and international magazines. He frequently appears on 
local television and radio presenting on various shariah issues especially 
with regard to Islamic commercial transactions. He also advises other 
Islamic financial Institutions and corporate companies in Malaysia and 
abroad which includes BNP Paribas Malaysia Berhad, ACr reTakaful 
Berhad	 (Malaysia),	ACR	Takaful	MEA	 (Bahrain),	Yasmin	Holdings	Plc	
Malaysia, Employees Provident fund of Malaysia and etc. He was 
also the shariah Expert & Consultant of Bank Negara Malaysia. He 
currently serves as an Assistant Professor at the kuliyyah of Economics 
& Management sciences, International Islamic university, Malaysia.
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she holds a Phd in shariah/Islamic law from International 
university of Africa, sudan, and a Master degree in Islamic 
revealed knowledge, International Islamic university of Malaysia 
where	she	also	obtained	her	Bachelor	of	laws	(LLB)	as	her	first	
degree. she was appointed as a deputy dean Postgraduate 
& research and Head department of Fiqh and Usul al-Fiqh, 
kuliyyah of Islamic revealed knowledge, International Islamic 
university Malaysia, and her field of specialisation include the 
Islamic law of Transactions (Muamalat), Fiqh al-‘Ibadat, Fiqh 
al Qada’, Islamic family law, as well as Modern Application 
of Fiqh and Usul al-Fiqh. she has published numerous articles 
and books on various shariah issues and actively presented 
many papers in various local conferences and seminars. she 
is also the member of shariah Committee of Bank of Tokyo 
Mitsubishi	UFJ	(M)	Berhad.	

Assoc. ProF.
Dr. Mek Wok biNTi MAhMuD

Assoc. Prof. dr. Mek wok binti Mahmud was 
appointed as a member of EXIM Bank shariah 
Committee on 7 december 2012. 
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Dr. shAriFAh FAigAh  
biNTi sYeD AlWi 

dr. sharifah faigah binti syed Alwi holds a Phd 
in Islamic Banking and finance from International 
Islamic university, Malaysia.

She	 also	 holds	 a	 Master	 in	 Shariah	 (Islamic	 Banking)	 from	
University	of	Malaya	where	she	also	obtained	her	B.A.	(Hons)	
Shariah	 (Economics).	 She	 is	 a	 senior	 lecturer	 in	 the	 Islamic	
Banking and finance department at the Arshad Ayub graduate 
Business school under the faculty of Business Management, 
universiti Teknologi Mara Malaysia. Her lectures cover among 
others Usul Fiqh (Islamic	Jurisprudence),	Fiqh Muamalat	(Islamic	
Law	of	Transaction),	Islamic	Finance	and	Accounting	as	well	as	
Islamic financial regulatory framework and governance. she 
was appointed as a member of shariah Committee of EXIM 
Bank on 7 december 2012. she has presented many papers, 
particularly on Islamic Trade finance and shariah Issues in 
Islamic finance products in various seminars and conferences 
both locally and internationally.
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MANAgEMENT
TeAM

juliNA MohD sAlleh
Company Secretary

ThAriq AbDullAh
Head, President/CEO Office

NorZilAh MohAMMeD
Chief Operating Officer

AMiNuDDiN bAshAh
Chief Credit Officer
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MANAgeMeNT TeAM

DATo’ ADissADikiN biN Ali
President/Chief Executive Officer

chAiril MohD TAMil
Chief Business Officer MohD NAsir johAr

Head, Communications &
Stakeholder Management

NorlelA sulAiMAN
Chief Financial Officer
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Our business is strategically positioned in major world centres to 
support wherever our clients need to operate. providing financial 
services and solutions that allow our clients to fulfil their global 
ambitions of spreading the Malaysian spirit across the world.

the wOrld

Networking





our business is strategically positioned in major world centres to 
support wherever our clients need to operate. Providing financial 
services and solutions that allow our clients to fulfil their global 
ambitions of spreading the Malaysian spirit across the world.

The WorlD

Networking
AMericA

NorTh AMericA

Across The globe

loANs AND  
guArANTee 
exPosure 

souTh AMericA



oceANiA

euroPe

souTh AsiA

eAsT AsiA

ceNTrAl AsiA

MiDDle eAsT

AFricA

MAlAYsiA

oceANiA

euroPe

souTh AsiA

eAsT AsiA

ceNTrAl AsiA

MiDDle eAsT

AFricA

MAlAYsiA



40 EXIM BANK MALAYSIA  •  AnnuAl RepoRt 2014

iNTroDucTioN

The board of Directors 
(board) of export-
import bank of 
Malaysia berhad (exiM 
bank) is committed 
to uphold good 
corporate governance 
by continuously 
advocating 
transparency, 
accountability, 
responsibility and 
integrity, in line with 
the principles and best 
practices of corporate 
governance as set out 
in the bank Negara 
Malaysia’s guideline on 
corporate governance 
for Development 
Financial institutions 
(bNM/rh/gl 005-14) 
in achieving an optimal 
governance framework 
and maximising the 
shareholder value of 
exiM bank.

CorPorATE govErNANCE 
Disclosure rePorT

The boArD oF DirecTors

roles and responsibilities of the board
The Board is charged with leading and managing EXIM Bank in an effective and 
responsible manner. Each director has a legal duty to act in the best interest of the 
Bank. The directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their responsibilities 
to shareholders and stakeholders for the manner in which the affairs of EXIM Bank 
are managed. The Board sets EXIM Bank values and standards and ensures that its 
obligations to its shareholders and stakeholders are understood and met. The roles 
and responsibilities of the Board of directors shall be governed by the development 
Financial	 Institutions	Act	 (DFIA)	 2002,	Companies	Act	1965,	BNM’s	Guidelines	on	
Corporate	Governance	 for	 Development	 Financial	 Institutions	 (BNM/RH/GL	 005-14)	
and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Bank, including any guidelines 
as may be issued by the relevant authorities from time to time.

In	recognition	that	robust	and	well	thought-out	corporate	governance	practices	are	
essential to safeguard the interests of EXIM Bank, the Board is also guided by the 
Board	Charter	(Charter)	in	respect	of	the	Board’s	role,	powers,	duties	and	functions.

In particular, the roles and responsibilities are as follows:

1. business Direction
(i)	 Provide	 strategic	 direction	 for	 the	 Bank	 by	 guiding	 top	 management	 in	

developing corporate strategy. review and approve strategies, business 
plans, annual budget and significant policies that are in line with the Bank’s 
mandated role and monitor Management’s performance in implementing 
them.

(ii)	 Overseeing	 and	 evaluating	 the	 conduct	 of	 the	 Bank’s	 businesses	 and	 to	
evaluate whether the business is being properly managed. In this respect, 
the Board must ensure that there are objectives in place against which 
Management’s performance can be measured.

(iii)	 To	set	corporate	values	and	clear	 lines	of	 responsibility	and	accountability	
that is communicated throughout the Bank. There should be a clear division 
of responsibilities at the helm of the Bank, which will ensure a balanced and 
clear line of role, responsibility, authority and accountability throughout the 
Bank.

(iv)	 To	 approve	 new	 investment,	 divestments,	 mergers	 and	 acquisitions,	
including the establishment of subsidiaries, joint ventures, equity acquisition 
or strategic alliances both locally as well as abroad.

2. internal controls
(i)	 The	Board	has	overall	 responsibility	 for	maintaining	sound	 internal	 control	

systems that cover financial controls, operational and compliance controls 
as well as risk management to ensure shareholders’ investment, customers’ 
interests and the Bank’s assets are safeguarded.

(ii)	 The	Board	ensures	the	system	of	internal	controls	is	reviewed	on	a	regular	
basis.
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3. business operations
(i)	 Veto	 loans/financing/credit	 insurance	related	 facilities	

for amounts as prescribed by the Bank’s Approving 
Authority	and	Authority	Limits	(AA	and	AL).

(ii)	 To	 oversee	 the	 conduct	 of	 the	 Bank’s	 business,	 to	
evaluate whether the business is effectively managed 
and to ensure that the operation of the business are 
conducted within the framework of relevant laws, 
policies and guidelines.

(iii)	 To	 consider	 and	 approve	 the	 annual	 financial	
statements including interim and final dividend to 
shareholders.

4. Management oversight
(i)	 To	 ensure	 that	 there	 is	 a	 managed	 and	 effective	

process to select and appoint competent senior 
management officers of the Bank.

(ii)	 To	 recommend	 to	 the	Ministry	 of	 Finance	 (MoF)	 the	
appointment/reappointment, removal, termination 
and terms and conditions of service of P/CEo of the 
Bank.

(iii)	 To	 approve	 succession	 planning	 policy	 and	
continuously monitor P/CEo and senior management 
officers’ performance.

(iv)	 To	 approve	 key	 human	 resource	 matters	 including	
selection, recruitment, termination and promotion of 
senior management officers.

(v)	 To	 approve	 human	 resource	 policies	 including	
compensation package and benefits pertaining to 
Management and staff of the Bank.

(vi)	 To	 approve	 changes	 to	 the	 corporate	 organisation	
structure of the Bank.

5. responsibilities in relation to Anti-Money laundering 
and counter Financing of Terrorism Act 2001 
(AMlATFA)
To	maintain	adequate	oversight	of	the	overall	Anti-Money	
Laundering	 and	 Counter	 Financing	 of	 Terrorism	 (AML/
CFT)	 measures	 undertaken	 and	 be	 fully	 committed	 in	
establishing an effective internal control system, including 
but not limited to the following:

(i)	 To	ensure	that	the	required	AML/CFT	measures	are	in	
place;

(ii)	 To	set	minimum	standards	and	approve	the	AML/CFT	
policies, procedures and controls;

(iii)	 To	 designate	 compliance	 officers	 at	 senior	
management level with sufficient authority;

(iv)	 To	regularly	review	and	assess	the	measures	adopted	
and implemented for AMl/CfT;

(v)	 To	 ensure	 regular	 independent	 audit	 of	 the	 internal	
AMl/CfT measures to determine their effectiveness 
and compliance with AMlATfA; and

(vi)	 To	ensure	that	proper	training	programmes	on	AML/
CfT practices and measures for its employees are 
sufficiently and appropriately conducted.

board composition and balance
There	are	currently	nine	(9)	Directors	on	the	EXIM	Bank	Board.	
Six	 (6)	 are	 Independent	 Non-Executive	 Directors,	 two	 (2)	
are	 Non-Independent	 Non-Executive	 Directors	 (nominee	 of	
Minister	of	Finance	(Incorporated)	and	Ministry	of	International	
Trade	 and	 Industry)	 and	 one	 (1)	 is	 an	 Executive	 Director	 
(P/CEO).	The	present	composition	of	the	Board	is	in	compliance	
with	the	BNM/RH/GL	005-14	as	more	than	half	of	its	members	
are Independent directors.

The directors provide a wealth of knowledge, experience and 
skills in their key areas of expertise, which have contributed 
significantly	to	the	decision-making	process	of	the	Board.	The	
structure of EXIM Bank provides a clear separation on functions, 
roles and responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board 
and the P/CEo so that no individual or group dominates the 
decision-making	process.	A	brief	profile	of	each	member	of	the	
Board is presented on pages 18 to 27 of this Annual report.

board Appointment Process
The appointment of new directors to the Board is set out in 
a formal and transparent procedure, the primary responsibility 
of which has been delegated to the Nomination Committee 
(NC).	The	selection	of	Directors	is	based	on	merit	and	guided	
by the criteria outlined in EXIM Bank’s Policy on fit and Proper 
Criteria	 (Fit	 and	 Proper	 Policy),	 Policy	 on	 the	 Appointment/
reappointment of Chairman, directors and P/CEo of EXIM 
Bank prior to making recommendation to the Board for its 
approval. The NC ensures candidates possess the appropriate 
skills, core competencies, experience, integrity and time to 
effectively discharge his or her role as a director.

The following aspects would be considered by the Board in 
making the selection, with the assistance of the NC:

1.	 Probity,	 personal	 integrity	 and	 reputation	 -	 the	 person	
must have the personal qualities such as honesty, integrity, 
diligence, independence of mind and fairness.

2.	 Competence	and	Capability	 -	 the	person	must	have	 the	
necessary skills, experience, ability and commitment to 
carry out the role.

3.	 Financial	Integrity	-	the	person	must	manage	his	debts	or	
financial affairs prudently.

EXIM Bank also conducts annual assessments on the 
suitability of the directors to continuously occupy their strategic 
leadership position to ensure the suitability of the directors to 
continue to serve as directors of EXIM Bank. 
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board Meeting and supply of information
The Board meets at least once a month with additional meetings 
convened as and when urgent issues and important decisions 
are required to be taken between the scheduled meetings. 
during the financial year ended 31 december 2014, the Board 
met 12 times. All directors have complied with the requirement 
that directors must attend at least 75% of Board meetings held 
in	the	financial	period	in	accordance	with	BNM/RH/GL	005-14.

Among others, the Board papers include comprehensive 
management	reports,	minutes	of	meetings,	credit	proposals	(if	
any),	current	review	of	the	operations	of	the	Bank	and	annual	
management plans. A full agenda and comprehensive Board 
papers are circulated to all directors well in advance of each 
Board meeting.

All directors have direct access to the services of the Company 
secretary and to the Management. directors, collectively 
or individually may seek independent professional advice 
in furtherance of their duties in the event such services are 
required.

The record of attendance by directors at the Board Meetings 
for 2014 are as follows:

No. Name of Director
No. of Meetings 

Attended*

1 datuk Mohd Hashim bin Hassan 
(Chairman)

12/12

2 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor 11/12

3 dato’ dr. Mohd Isa Hussain 11/12

4 Nik Najib bin Husain 12/12

5 dato’ Agil Natt 11/12

6 Ismail bin Mahbob 11/12

7 datuk wong seng foo 10/12

8 Tunku Afwida Tunku A.Malek1 5/5

9 Zakaria bin Ismail
(term ended w.e.f 23/9/2014)

8/8

10 dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali 10/12

* Reflects the number of meetings attended during the time the 
Director held office

1 Appointed as Director with effect from 15 August 2014

Training and Development of Directors
The Board recognises the importance of continuing education 
for its directors to ensure they are equipped with the necessary 
skills and knowledge to perform their functions and meet the 
challenges of the Board.

for financial year ended 2014, all directors appointed to 
the Board, have attended various training programmes and 
seminars held in Malaysia and abroad for their continuing 
education and skills improvement. As commenced in 2008, 
Board members have also attended a key training programme 
for directors of financial institutions, namely financial 
Institutions	Directors’	Education	(FIDE).	Additionally,	EXIM	Bank	
is a registered corporate member of the fIdE forum since July 
2013, which was established with the aim of allowing fIdE 
alumni members to become leading influencers of governance 
practices and thought leaders within financial institutions, and 
to benefit from, among others, the roundtree discussions, and 
industry update sessions and materials provided by subject 
matter specialists.

Newly appointed directors are required to attend an induction 
programme coordinated by the Management of the Bank in 
order to facilitate new directors with the necessary information 
and overview to assist them in understanding the operations 
of the Bank and appreciating the challenges and issues the 
Bank faces in achieving its objectives. The programme covers 
subject matters, amongst others, EXIM Bank business and 
strategy, work processes and Board Committee and the duties 
and responsibilities of directors of financial institutions.

The Board continues to assess the training needs of its directors 
vide Annual directors’ Training Assessment and identify key 
areas of focus for training programme.

Training programmes, conferences and forums attended by the 
directors for the financial year ended 31 december 2014 were 
as follows:

1. FiDe/icliF
-	 FIDE	Forum:	Recovery	and	Resolution	Plan	 (RRP)	 in	

Financial	Institutions	-	Board	Leading	the	Way
-	 FIDE	 Forum:	 A	 Comprehensive	 Talent	 –	 based	

approach to Board recruitment
-	 FIDE	 Programme	 by	 ICLIF:	 Corporate	 Governance	

issues facing development financial Institutions
-	 FIDE	Forum	Event	–	Risks:	From	whereof	
-	 FIDE	 Forum	 Event:	 Board	 Strategic	 Leadership	 in	

Managing Cybersecurity risk in financial Institutions 
-	 FIDE	Elective	Programme:	Advanced	Risk	Governance	

and risk Management

2. external seminars/conferences
-	 Advance	 Management	 Programme:	 Transforming	

Proven leaders into global Executives
-	 Directors	 Forum	 5/2014	 –	 The	 Innovation	 Zone:	

unleashing the Mindset
-	 Islamic	Trade	Finance	
-	 Corporate	 Directors	 Advance	 Programme	 (CDAP):	

Human Capital
-	 Credit	Analysis	&	Financial	Modelling
-	 Breakfast	Talk:	Building	Excellent,	Ethical	and	Enduring	

organisations
-	 Loan	Pricing	&	Structuring
-	 Directors	Forum	7/2014	-	Talent	and	Human	Capital:	

The drivers of growth and Creativity
-	 Fundamentals	of	Project	Finance
-	 Persidangan	Pembiayaan	berasaskan	Harta	Intelek
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Directors’ remuneration
The level of directors’ remuneration is to attract and retain 
directors of calibre needed to direct the Bank successfully.

1. executive Director (eD)
The Ed component parts of remuneration are structured so 
as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance. 
The current remuneration package of the Ed consists of 
basic	 salary,	 performance	 bonus,	 benefits-in-kind	 and	
Employees	 Provident	 Fund	 (EPF)	 contribution.	 The	 ED	
is not entitled to fees nor entitled to receive any meeting 
allowances for the Board and Board Committee meetings 
attended.

The performance of the Ed is measured based on the 
achievements which is determined based on the individual 
key Performance Indicators in a scorecard aligned with the 
corporate objectives and approved by the Board. 

2. Non-executive Director (NeD)
The NEds’ remuneration generally reflects the experience, 
expertise and level of responsibilities undertaken by the 
NEds concerned. NEds are entitled to monthly fees, 
meeting allowances and reimbursement of expenses 
incurred in the course of their duties as directors. 
remuneration of NEds is decided by the Mof following 
recommendation made by the Bank. 

details of NEds remuneration on monthly fees and meeting 
allowances are provided below:

Fixed Allowance
Chairman	 -	 RM10,000.00	per	month
NED	 -	 RM3,000.00	per	month
  
Meeting Allowances  
Board	of	Directors	 -	 RM3,000.00	per	meeting
(maximum once a month)	 		 (Chairman)
  rM2,000.00 per meeting
  
Board	Credit	Committee	 -	 RM2,000.00	per	meeting
(maximum twice a month) 	 (Chairman)
  rM2,000.00 per meeting
  
Board	Risk	Committee,		 -	 RM2,000.00	per	meeting
Board	Audit	Committee,		 	 (Chairman)
Nomination Committee   rM2,000.00 per meeting
and remuneration Committee
(maximum once a month)
  
The directors’ aggregate remuneration for fy2014 
distinguishing between Ed and NEds is set out on pages 
142 & 143 of this Annual report. 

boArD coMMiTTees

The Board delegates certain of its governance responsibilities to 
Board Committees, which operate within clearly defined Terms 
of references, primarily to assist the Board in the execution of 
its duties and responsibilities. Although the Board has granted 
such discretionary authority to these Board Committees to 
deliberate and decide on certain key and operational matters, 
the ultimate responsibility for final decision on all matter lies with 
the entire Board. The Chairmen of the Board Committees will 
report to the Board on matters dealt with at their respective 
Committee Meetings.

The Board Committees are as follows:

1.	 Board	Credit	Committee	(BCC)
2.	 Board	Audit	Committee	(BAC)
3.	 Board	Risk	Committee	(BRC)
4.	 Remuneration	Committee	(RC)
5.	 Nomination	Committee	(NC)

board credit committee
1. objective
 Primarily responsible to perform supervisory and oversight 

role of credit approval and to ensure adequate credit 
consideration processes including risk management are in 
place.

2. composition
 Based on the Terms of reference of the BCC, the meeting 

is to be held at least twice a month. during the financial year 
ended 31 december 2014, the Board Credit Committee 
met 24 times. details of members of the Committee and 
attendance of each member for year 2014 are as follows:

No. Name of Director

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended*

1 datuk Mohd Hashim bin Hassan 
(Chairman)

24/24

2 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor 24/24

3 dato’ dr. Mohd Isa Hussain 21/24

4 Nik Najib bin Husain 24/24

5 dato’ Agil Natt 21/24

6 Ismail bin Mahbob 21/24

7 datuk wong seng foo 21/24

8 Tunku Afwida Tunku A.Malek1 7/8

9 Zakaria bin Ismail
(term ended w.e.f 23/9/2014)

16/17

10 dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali 19/24

* Reflects the number of meetings attended during the time the 
Director held office

1 Appointed as a member of BCC with effect from 19 August 
2014
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3. roles and responsibilities
The BCC shall have the following specific responsibilities 
on:
(i)	 Veto	power	to	challenge,	reject	credit	and	modify	the	

terms	of	credits	which	have	been	approved	by	the	full-
time executive committee should the majority of the 
BCC be of the opinion that the loan/financing would 
expose the Bank to undue excessive risk.

(ii)	 To	 approve	 “policy	 loans/financing”	 and	 loans/	
financing/credit insurance which are required by the 
statute to be approved by the Board, provided that 
the	initial	filter	of	approval	is	conducted	by	the	full-time	
executive committee.

(iii)	 Have	 full	 authority	 to	 seek/obtain	 any	 information	
it requires from any employee of the Bank and to 
commission any investigations, reports or surveys, 
which it deems necessary.

board Audit committee
1. objective
 The Board Audit Committee to review the financial 

condition of the Bank, its internal controls, performance 
and findings of the internal auditors, and to recommend 
appropriate remedial action regularly through its meeting, 
preferably at least once in three months.

2. composition
 Based on the Terms of reference of the BAC, the meeting 

is to be held at least once every quarter. during the financial 
year ended 31 december 2014, the BAC met 8 times. 
details of members of the Committee and attendance of 
each member for year 2014 are as follows:

No. Name of Director

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended*

1 Nik Najib bin Husain (Chairman) 8/8

2 Tunku Afwida Tunku A.Malek1 2/2

3 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor2 6/6

4 dato’ Agil Natt 8/8

5 Ismail bin Mahbob 8/8

6 datuk wong seng foo3 1/2

7 Zakaria bin Ismail 
(term ended w.e.f 23/9/2014)

6/6

*  Reflects the number of meetings attended during the time the 
Director held office

1 Appointed as a new Chairman of BAC with effect from 28 August 
2014

2 Discharged as a member of BAC with effect from 28 August 2014

3  Appointed as a member of BAC with effect from 28 August 2014

3. roles and responsibilities
The responsibilities of the BAC are as follows:

(i) external Audit
•	 Review	with	 the	 external	 auditors,	 the	 scope	of	

their audit plan, the system of internal accounting 
controls, the audit reports, the assistance given 
by the management and its staff to the auditors 
and any findings and actions to be taken. The 
BAC should also select external auditors for 
appointment by the Board each year and to 
review their compensation, the scope and quality 
of their work and their discharge or resignation.

•	 Ensure	co-ordination	where	more	than	one	audit	
firm is involved.

(ii) internal Audit
•	 Oversees	 the	 functions	 of	 the	 Internal	 Audit	

department and to ensure compliance with 
BNM/RH/GL	013-4	(Guidelines	on	Internal	Audit	
function of licensed Institutions, uPw/gP1 
(Standard	Guidelines	on	Anti-Money	Laundering	
and	 Counter	 Financing	 of	 Terrorism	 (AML/
CFT),	 BNM/RH/GL-012-3	 (Shariah	 Governance	
Framework	 for	 Islamic	 Financial	 Institutions)	
and the requirement of the relevant laws and 
regulations of others supervisory authority.

•	 Review	 internal	 controls,	 including	 the	 scope	 of	
the internal audit programme, the internal audit 
findings, and recommend action to be taken by 
management. The reports of internal auditors and 
BAC should not be subject to the clearance of the 
Chief Executive officer or Executive directors.

•	 Approve	the	Audit	Charter	before	being	endorsed	
by the Board, so that the internal audit function 
may be effectively discharged.

•	 Approve	the	audit	plan	for	the	internal	audit	and	
should be flexible to respond to changing priorities 
and needs.

•	 Ensure	that	adequate	and	appropriate	resources	
are made available to the internal audit function 
and the compensation scheme of internal auditors 
are consistent with the objectives and demands 
of internal audit function.

•	 Ensure	 that	 the	 continuing	 professional	
development for internal audit staff and to ensure 
that they have sufficient up to date knowledge of 
auditing and the activities of the Bank.

(iii) Financial reporting
•	 Ensure	that	the	accounts	are	prepared	in	a	timely	

and accurate manner with frequent reviews of the 
adequacy of provisions against contingencies, 
and bad and doubtful debts. review the balance 
sheet and profit and loss account for submission 
to the full board of directors and ensure the 
prompt publication of annual accounts.

(iv) related Party Transaction
•	 Review	 any	 related	 party	 transactions	 that	may	

arise within the EXIM group.

corPorATe goVerNANce Disclosure rePorT
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board risk committee
1. objective
 Primarily responsible for effective functioning of the Bank’s 

risk management function.

2. composition
 Based on the Terms of reference of the BrC, the meeting 

is to be held at least once every quarter. during the financial 
year ended 31 december 2014, the Board risk Committee 
met 12 times. details of members of the Committee and 
attendance of each member for year 2014 are as follows:

No. Name of Director

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended*

1 dato’ Agil Natt (Chairman) 12/12

2 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor 12/12

3 Nik Najib bin Husain1 8/8

4 Ismail bin Mahbob1 8/8

5 Tunku Afwida Tunku A.Malek2 4/4

6 datuk wong seng foo2 3/4

7 Zakaria bin Ismail
(term ended w.e.f 23/9/2014)

8/8

*  Reflects the number of meetings attended during the time the 
Director held office

1  Discharged as a member of BRC with effect from 28 August 2012

2 Appointed as a member of BRC with effect from 28 August 2012

3. roles and responsibilities
The BrC shall have the following specific responsibilities on:

(i) strategy and Policy
•	 Reviewing	and	recommending	risk	management	

philosophy and strategy to the Board for Board’s 
approval.

•	 Reviewing	 and	 approving	 the	 risk	 management	
policies, controls and systems of the Bank in 
line with the Board approved risk management 
philosophy and strategy.

•	 Reviewing	 and	proposing	 the	 setting	of	 the	 risk	
appetite/tolerance of the Bank at enterprise and 
at strategic business unit levels to the Board.

•	 Approving	 new	 products/services,	 which	 are	
fundamentally different from the Bank’s existing 
products/services, based on advice from the 
Management	 Risk	 Committe	 (MRC)	 and	 Risk	
Management division. In case of approval 
granted, to notify the Board of the same in 
accordance with local regulatory requirements.

•	 Maintaining	continued	awareness	of	any	changes	
in the Bank’s risk profile to ensure that the Bank’s 
business activities are in line with the overall risk 
strategy.

(ii) organisation
•	 Overseeing	 the	 overall	 management	 of	 all	 risks	

including market risk management, asset and 
liability management, credit risk management, 
country risk management and operational risk 
management.

•	 Ensuring	 that	 there	 are	 clear	 and	 independent	
reporting lines and responsibilities for the overall 
business activities and risk management functions 
and recommending risk management derived 
organisational alignments where necessary to the 
Board.

•	 Cultivating	 a	 proactive	 risk	management	 culture	
within the Bank so that risk management 
processes	are	applied	in	the	day-to-day	business	
and activities.

•	 Appropriating	 independent	 review	 of	 the	Bank’s	
risk management infrastructure, capabilities, 
environment and processes where necessary.

(iii) Measurement
•	 Approving	risk	methodologies	for	measuring	and	

managing risks arising from the Bank’s business 
and operational activities.

•	 Ensuring	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 the	 risk	
measurement	 methodologies	 (including	
assumptions	 made	 within	 the	 methodologies)	
under the prevailing business environment.

•	 Engaging	external	and	independent	reviewers	for	
the validation of risk measurement methodologies 
and outputs.

•	 Reviewing	and	 recommending	broad-based	 risk	
limits to the Board for approval and ensuring the 
risk limits are appropriate for the Bank’s business 
activities.

•	 Approving	detail	risk	limits	based	on	broad-based	
risk limits as approved by the Board and ensuring 
the riks limits are appropriate for the Bank’s 
business activities.

(iv) Processes and Technology enabler
•	 Ensuring	sufficient	internal	controls	to	detect	any	

deficiencies in the internal control environment 
in a timely manner; reviewing the independence 
and robustness of risk management processes 
and internal controls throughout the Bank; 
and approving the Bank’s key risk control and 
mitigation processes.

•	 Periodically	reviewing	risk	exposures	of	the	Bank	
in line with its risk strategy and objectives.

•	 Determining	 and	 empowering	 (to	 the	 MRC	
or	 members	 of	 management)	 the	 authority	 to	
approve deviations from limits and the extent of 
deviations from limits.

•	 Approving	 the	contingency	plan	 for	dealing	with	
various extreme internal/external events disasters.

•	 Ensuring	 the	 adequacy	 of	 tools,	 systems	 and	
resources for the successful management of risk 
management functions within the Bank.

•	 Reviewing	 the	 progress	 of	 all	 core	 risk	
management initiatives within the Bank.

corPorATe goVerNANce Disclosure rePorT
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remuneration committee
1. objective
 The primary objective of the remuneration Committee is to 

provide a formal and transparent procedure for developing 
a remuneration policy for directors, President/Chief 
Executive	Officer	(P/CEO),	Chief	Operating	Officer	(COO),	
Chief	Financial	Officer	(CFO),	Chief	Business	Officer	(CBO),	
Chief	Risk	Officer	(CRO)	and	Chief	Credit	Officer	(CCO)	and	
ensuring that compensation is competitive and consistent 
with the Bank’s culture, objectives and strategies.

2. composition
 Based on the Terms of reference of the rC, the full 

committee is to be held at least once a year. during 
the financial year ended 31 december 2014, the rC 
met 5 times. details of members of the Committee and 
attendance of each member for year 2014 are as follows:

No. Name of Director

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended*

1 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor 
(Chairman)

5/5

2 Ismail bin Mahbob1 2/2

3 dato’ dr. Mohd Isa Hussain 4/5

4 Nik Najib bin Husain 5/5

5 dato’ Agil Natt2 1/3

6 Zakaria bin Ismail 
(term ended w.e.f 23/9/2014)

3/3

* Reflects the number of meetings attended during the time the 
Director held office

1   Appointed as a member of RC with effect from 28 August 2014

2   Discharged as a member of RC with effect from 28 August 2012

3. roles and responsibilities
(i)	 To	 propose	 and	 recommend	 to	 the	 Board	 the	

remuneration policy and guidelines for the directors, 
P/CEo, Coo, Cfo, CBo, Cro and CCo of EXIM 
Bank. The remuneration policy should:

1)	 Be	documented	and	approved	by	the	board	and	
any changes thereto should be subject to the 
endorsement of the Board;

2)	 Be	competitive	and	align	to	market	to	ensure	its	
sufficient to attract and retain key talents within 
the organisation and the need to manage the 
Bank successfully;

3)	 Be	 reflective	 of	 its	 accountability	 and	 job	
descriptions in carrying out their duties as senior 
management members of the Bank; and

4)	 Be	 balanced	 against	 the	 need	 to	 ensure	 that	
the funds of the Bank are not used to subsidise 
excessive remuneration package and to ensure 
that the remuneration are in line with the current 
industry best practices.

(ii)	 To	propose	or	 review	and	 recommend	 to	 the	Board	
the specific remuneration packages for directors, 
P/CEo, Coo, Cfo, CBo, Cro and CCo of EXIM 
Bank.	The	remuneration	packages	should:-

1)	 Be	 based	 on	 an	 objective	 consideration	 and	
approved by the Board;

2)	 Reflect	 the	experience	and	 level	of	 responsibility	
borne by individual directors, P/CEo, Cfo, CBo, 
Cro and CCo;

3)	 Take	due	consideration	of	the	assessments	of	the	
nominating committee of the effectiveness and 
contribution of the director, P/CEo, Coo, Cfo, 
CBo, Cro and CCo concerned;

4)	 Not	be	decided	by	the	exercise	of	sole	discretion	
of any one individual or restricted group of 
individual; and

5)	 Be	competitive	and	is	consistent	with	the	Bank’s	
culture, objective and strategy.

(iii)	 To	 recommend	 to	 the	 Board	 with	 regards	 to	 the	
payment guideline for staff bonus and annual salary 
increment of the company.

corPorATe goVerNANce Disclosure rePorT
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Nomination committee
1. objective
 The primary objective of the Nomination Committee is to 

establish a documented, formal and transparent procedure 
for the appointment of directors, P/CEo, Coo, Cfo, 
CBO,	CRO	and	CCO	(or	its	equivalent	respectively)	and	to	
assess the effectiveness of individual directors, the Board 
as a whole and the various committees of the Board, the 
P/CEo, Coo, Cfo, CBo, Cro and CCo.

2. composition
 Based on the Terms of reference of the NC, the full 

committee is to be held as and when required, at a 
minimum of once a year. during the financial year ended 31 
december 2014, the NC met 13 times. details of members 
of the Committee and attendance of each member for year 
2014 are as follows:

No. Name of Director

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended*

1 Zakaria bin Ismail (Chairman)
(term ended w.e.f 23/9/2014)

10/10

2 Ismail bin Mahbob1 3/3

3 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor 13/13

4 dato’ dr. Mohd Isa Hussain 10/13

5 Nik Najib bin Husain 13/13

6 dato’ Agil Natt2 6/8

*  Reflects the number of meetings attended during the time the 
Director held office

1 Appointed as a new Chairman of NC with effect from 28 August 
2014

2 Discharged as a member of NC with effect from 28 August 2012

3. roles and responsibilities
The functions and responsibilities of the NC are as follows:

(i)	 To	establish	minimum	requirements	for	the	Board	and	
the P/CEo to perform their responsibilities effectively. 
It is also responsible for overseeing the overall 
composition of the board in terms of the appropriate 
size and skills, the balance between executive 
directors,	 non-executive	 and	 independent	 directors,	
and mix of skills and other core competencies 
required, through annual reviews;

(ii)	 To	 recommend	 and	 assess	 the	 nominees	 for	
directorship, the directors to fill board committees, 
as well as nominees for the P/CEo. This includes 
assessing directors and P/CEo proposed for 
reappointment, before an application for verification is 
submitted to Bank Negara Malaysia;

(iii)	 To	establish	a	mechanism	for	formal	assessment	and	
assess the effectiveness of the board as a whole, 
the contribution by each director to the effectiveness 
of the board, the contribution of the board’s various 
committees and the performance of the board’s 
various committees;

(iv)	 To	recommend	to	the	board	on	removal	of	a	director	if	
he is ineffective, errant or negligent in discharging his 
responsibilities;

(v)	 To	 ensure	 that	 all	 Directors	 undergo	 appropriate	
induction programmes and receive continuous 
training;

(vi)	 To	 oversee	 appointment,	 management	 succession	
planning and performance evaluation of P/CEo, Coo, 
Cfo, CBo, Cro and CCo, and recommending to the 
board the removal of Cfo, CBo, Cro and CCo, if 
they are ineffective, errant and negligent in discharging 
their responsibilities; and

(vii)	 To	 formulate,	 review	 and	 recommend	 to	 the	 Board	
in	 respect	of	human	 resource	development	 (training)	
policies and human resource management policies, 
including the terms & conditions of service of the 
company.

corPorATe goVerNANce Disclosure rePorT
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sHArIAH govErNANCE
Disclosure rePorT

1. objecTiVe

Shariah	Committee	(SC)	is	responsible	in	ensuring	that	the	Islamic	banking	and	takaful	business	activities	of	EXIM	Bank	are	in	
compliance and conforms with shariah rules and principles. 

2. coMPosiTioN 

During	the	financial	year	ended	31	December	2014,	the	SC	consist	of	seven	(7)	members.	

During	the	year,	nine	(9)	series	of	meeting	were	held.	The	details	of	attendance	of	each	SC	members	are	as	follows:

No. Name of sc Members

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended*

1 dato’ dr. Mohd Ali bin Haji Baharum 9/9

2 Haji Abd. rasid bin Abd. kadir1 7/7

3 Assoc. Prof. dr. suhaimi bin Ab. rahman 9/9

4 dr. Zulkifli bin Hasan 6/9

5 dr. Zaharuddin bin Abd. rahman 6/9

6 Assoc. Prof. dr. Mek wok Mahmud 8/9

7 dr. sharifah faigah syed Alwi 9/9
 

* Reflects the number of meetings attended during the time the SC held office 

1 Term ended with effect from 17 November 2014

3. roles AND resPoNsibiliTies 

The roles and responsibilities of the sC are governed by the shariah governance framework for Islamic financial Institutions 
issued by Bank Negara Malaysia.

(a) To be responsible and accountable for all its decisions, views and opinions related to shariah matters
The sC shall be responsible and accountable for all its decisions, opinions and views and opinions related to shariah 
matters. As the shariah decisions, views and opinions bind the operations of the Bank, the sC shall rigorously deliberate 
the issues at hand before arriving at any decisions. 

(b) To advise the board on shariah matters in its islamic business operations 
The sC shall advise the Board on shariah matters in order to ensure that the Islamic finance operations of the Bank 
comply with shariah requirements at all times. The sC shall inform the Board and provide solution when it believes that 
the	Bank	has	been	carrying	Shariah	non–compliance	activities.	

(c) To endorse shariah policies and procedures 
The shariah policies and procedures shall be endorsed by the sC to ensure that the contents do not contain any 
elements which are not in line with shariah. 
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shAriAh goVerNANce Disclosure rePorT

(d) To endorse and validate relevant documents 
To ensure that the Islamic products of the Bank comply with shariah requirements in all aspects, the sC must 
endorse/approve the following: 

(i)	 The	terms	and	conditions	contained	in	the	proposal	form,	contract,	agreement	and/or	other	legal	document(s)	used	
in executing the transactions; and 

(ii)	 The	product	manual,	marketing	advertisements,	sale	illustrations	and	brochures	used	to	describe	a	particular	product.	

(e) To assess work carried out by shariah review, shariah research, and shariah Audit 
Assess work carried out by shariah review, shariah research and shariah audit functions in order to ensure compliance 
with shariah matters in its Islamic business operations, which forms part of their duties in providing assessment of shariah 
compliance and assurance information in the annual report. 

(f) To assist related parties on shariah matters for advice upon request 
(i)	 The	related	parties	of	the	Bank	such	as	its	legal	counsel,	auditor	or	consultant	may	seek	advice	on	Shariah	matters	

from the sC. 

(ii)	 The	SC	is	expected	to	provide	assistance	to	them	so	that	the	compliance	with	Shariah	principles	can	be	assured	
completely. 

(g) To advise on matters to be referred to the shariah Advisory council (sAc) of bNM
(i)	 The	SC	may	advice	the	Bank	to	consult	the	SAC	on	any	Shariah	matters	that	could	not	be	resolve.	

(ii)	 Upon	obtaining	an	advice	of	the	SAC,	the	SC	shall	ensure	that	all	SAC	decisions	are	properly	implemented	by	the	
Bank. 

(h) To provide written shariah opinion 
The sC is required to prepare written shariah opinions in the following circumstances where: 

(i)	 The	Bank	make	reference	to	the	SAC	for	advice;	or	

(ii)	 The	Bank	 submits	 application	 to	BNM	 for	 new	product	 approval.	 The	SC	should	provide	 the	 endorsement	 and	
decision with regard to the shariah compliance on the concept and the mechanism/structure of every new product, 
furnishing the relevant fiqh literature, supporting evidence and reasoning. The endorsement shall be in the form of a 
letter and a copy of the shariah paper presented to the sC. 

(i) To review, verify and recommend to the board of Directors on financial year report of islamic finance business 
and activities 
The sC shall review, verify and recommend to the Board of directors on financial year report of Islamic finance business 
and activities that does not contravene with shariah principles. 

(j) To recommend on the appointment and reappointment of sc members and chairman 
The sC may recommend on the appointment and reappointment of sC members and the Chairman for consideration 
and submission to Nomination Committee and the Board.
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sPECIfIC dIsClosurE
oN goVerNMeNT FuND

MAlAYsiAkiTcheN FiNANciNg FAciliTY (MkFF)

MalaysiaKitchen	Programme	(MKP)	is	an	initiative	of	the	9th Malaysia Plan that has been identified as a strategic way to better 
position	our	agricultural	produce	and	agro-based	products	through	Malaysian	restaurants,	retail	outlets	and	distribution	centres	
worldwide.

With	the	long-term	goals	identified,	MKP	aims	to:

brAND MAlAYsiA
Through
cuisiNe

ATTrAcT
TourisTs To 
MAlAYsiA

iNcreAse
exPorT
of processed
food, food ingredients
and agricultural
produce

under the agreement, EXIM Bank is to manage the fund by providing loan to eligible 
Malaysian business entities, interested in opening up restaurants overseas.

To further boost the 
number of Malaysian 

restaurants overseas, the 
government had, in 2007, 

signed an agreement 
with exiM bank for the 

placement of up to 

rM180 million

A total of rM170 million has been placed into 
EXIM Bank’s account to benefit the borrowers.

As at december 2014, Mkff has approved 58 borrowers to open up 58 food and 
beverage outlets overseas with 35 outlets currently in operations. during fy2014 
alone, 6 outlets have been approved with total loan of rM14 million.

for the Malaysiakitchen 
Financing Facility (MkFF) 

in support of Malaysia’s 
Food & beverage culture.
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sPECIfIC dIsClosurE 
oN PerForMANce AssessMeNT

DeVeloPMeNT ouTcoMes (Short/Medium/Long Term)

objective strategic Actions Performance Target Target
FY2014

Actual
FY2014

Medium Term 
Target (FY2015)

long Term 
Target (FY2018)

High level impact analysis on dfIs achievement

social 
responsiveness 
in performing 
mandated roles

Pertinent areas 
in development 
initiatives

Loan	growth	(y-o-y) 30% 42% 30% 30%

SME	customers	(numbers) 150 208 180 220

Composition of Bumiputra customers 30% 39% 30% 30%

MANDATeD secTor ouTPuT (Short/Medium/Long Term)

objective strategic Actions Performance Target Target
FY2014

Actual
FY2014

Medium Term 
Target (FY2015)

long Term 
Target (FY2018)

Institutional achievements in supporting the needs of the targeted sectors

Export business 
acceleration

Providing various 
banking facilities to 
aid the growth of 
quality assets

loan disbursement rM5 
billion

rM6.6 
billion

rM7 
billion

rM9
billion

orgANisATioNAl souNDNess (Short/Medium/Long Term)

objective strategic Actions Performance Target Target
FY2014

Actual
FY2014

Medium Term 
Target (FY2015)

long Term 
Target (FY2018)

Institutional requisites to facilitate dfIs in achieving mandated activities

Internal process 
improvement

Turnaround time 
for loan approval 
vs slA

Average turnaround time 40
days

35
days

35
days

35
days

During	FY2014,	the	Bank	registered	a	year-on-year	loan	growth	of	42%	against	the	targeted	30%	growth	for	the	year.	In	relation	to	
support provided to sMEs, a total of 208 customers benefitted from the Bank’s assistance as against the targeted number of 150 
customers.
 
As at december 2014, the Bank managed to increase its asset with the loan disbursement of rM6.6 billion, which surpassed the 
intended	RM5.0	billion	target,	thus	ensuring	that	the	Bank	achieves	its	long-term	target	of	having	a	total	asset	size	of	at	least	3	
percent of the country’s gdP.
 
with regards to credit processing efficiency, the Bank has also improved on the time taken to process a loan application to an 
average of 35 days* as compared to the 40 days target set for fy2014.
 
* upon complete submission of all required documentation by the customer.

Below are tables detailing the performance of the Bank for fy2014:



EXIM BANK MALAYSIA  •  AnnuAl RepoRt 2014

BANkINg ANd CrEdIT
iNsurANce exPosure

52

46

24 50

32
68

64

4
79

31

23

22

1

80

54

13

19

14

11

18

7

5

25

44

75

10

6

16

27

56

17

48

1  Argentina 
2  Australia 
3  Bahrain 
4  Belgium 
5  Belize 
6	 	Bosnia-Herzegovina	
7  Brazil 
8  Brunei 
9  Cambodia 
10  Canada 
11  Chile 

34  Jordan 
35  kazakhstan 
36  kenya 
37	 	Korea	(South)	
38  kuwait 
39  laos 
40  Madagascar 
41  Malaysia 
42  Maldives 
43  Mauritius 
44  Mexico 

12  China
13  Colombia 
14  Costa rica 
15  Cyprus 
16  Czech republic 
17  denmark 
18  dominican republic 
19  Ecuador 
20  fiji 
21  finland 
22  france 

23  germany 
24  ghana 
25  guatemala 
26  Hong kong 
27  Hungary 
28  India 
29  Indonesia 
30  Iraq 
31  Ireland 
32  Italy 
33  Japan 

EXIM BANK MALAYSIA  •  ANNuAl rePorT 2014



AnnuAl RepoRt 2014  •  EXIM BANK MALAYSIA

bANkiNg AND creDiT iNsurANce exPosure

53

66

76

36

72

63

40
43

61

69

28

65

52

42

12

45

26 70

3337

8

55
9 81

73

47

41

39

29

2

53

20

49

21

67

59

74

58 77

35

71

60 7857

30
15 38

3

34

51

45  Mongolia 
46  Morocco 
47  Myanmar
48	 	Netherlands	(Holland)	
49  New Zealand 
50  Nigeria 
51  oman 
52  Pakistan 
53  Papua New guinea 
54  Peru 
55  Philippines

56  Poland 
57  Qatar 
58  romania 
59  russia 
60  saudi Arabia 
61  seychelles 
62  singapore 
63  south Africa 
64  spain
65  sri lanka 
66  sudan 

67  sweden 
68  switzerland 
69  syrian Arab republic 
70  Taiwan 
71  Tajikistan 
72  Tanzania 
73  Thailand 
74  Turkey 
75  u.s.A
76  uganda 
77  ukraine 

78  united Arab Emirates 
79  united kingdom 
80  uruguay 
81  vietnam, socialist rep 

62
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BANkINg
PorTFolio 2014
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loAN AND guArANTee exPosure - secTor breAkDoWN 
bY coNVeNTioNAl AND islAMic 
(including	impaired)	(%)

conventional

islamic

12.7 12.3 8.7 5.38.4 5.2 4.4 4.2 3.7 2.6 1.9 0.4 9.6 7.3 3.7 2.7 2.5 2.5 0.9 0.4 0.3 0.003
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bANkiNg PorTFolio 2014
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CrEdIT INsurANCE
PorTFolio 2014
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TrANsPorT, sTorAgE ANd CoMMuNICATIoN
13.3%
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MEdIuM ANd loNg TErM: rEgIoN ANd sECTor

creDiT iNsurANce PorTFolio 2014
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MEdIA
highlighTs
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MeDiA highlighTs
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EvENT
highlighTs

60

11 APril 2014

8 APril 2014
cheque Presentation from sponsors
during Malaysian Press institute night

Networking with Minister of Foreign Affairs & cooperation, republic of Togo

17 MArch 2014
Teh Tarik Talk 2014
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eVeNT highlighTs

61

19 juNe 2014

2 juNe 20145 MAY 2014
rAM league Awards

Media briefing on Financial Performance

3rd bio gas Asia Pacific Forum
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eVeNT highlighTs
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9 julY 2014
Annual iftar with the orphans and Media

2 sePTeMber 2014
President/ceo received ‘eMAs’ sTATus sukuk Awards from bank Negara Malaysia 

26 juNe 2014
Appreciation programme for  
lembaga Tabung haji’s corporate alliances
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21 NoVeMber 2014

17-19 NoVeMber 2014
20th Annual Meeting - Asian exiM banks ceo Forum, jodhpur india

11 NoVeMber 2014
signing ceremony between exiM bank and MArA Top Asia corporate ball 2014
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unlocking Possibi l i t ies in corporate social  responsibi l i ty

CorPorATE soCIAl 
resPoNsibiliTY rePorT

MArkeTPlAce

WorkPlAce

coMMuNiTY

eNViroNMeNT

corporate social responsibility (csr) at exiM bank is ingrained into our day-to-day operations through 
the four pillars of our csr blueprint – community, environment, Marketplace and the Workplace. As the 
needs of our community continue to grow, our csr initiatives will strike at the heart of these challenges; 
balancing sustainability, the business and its impacts on our stakeholders.
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corPorATe sociAl resPoNsibiliTY rePorT

goiNg beYoND bANkiNg

MArkeTPlAce coMMuNiTY WorkPlAce eNViroNMeNT

our APProAch To csr

our Csr efforts are an extension of the spirit and essence that drives EXIM Bank. we approach Csr with the same 
commitment to be an honest, open and transparent organisation that treats all our stakeholders, be they clients, 
shareholders, employees, government regulators, and the general public, with respect and integrity. 

Our	CSR	blueprint	seeks	to	support	in	areas	closest	to	the	heart	of	our	business,	and	to	make	deep	and	long-lasting	
positive impacts within the society across these areas.

We seek to build 
a reputation that 
is consistent with 
the bank’s values 
across industries 
and sectors, and 

to participate 
in initiatives 
that enable 

us to connect 
businesses with 

people, share best 
practices and 

be contributory 
to key decisions 
that develop the 

market.

We are connected 
to the communities 
where we operate, 

and contribute 
relevantly to support 

their needs.

We cultivate a  
high-performance 

work culture of 
efficiency and 
effectiveness 

through a conducive 
and supportive 

workplace 
environment for our 

employees. 

We champion for 
the betterment 
of a clean and 
carbon-free 

environment among 
our employees 

and stakeholders, 
and through our 

support of various 
environmental 

initiatives by the 
government and 

Ngos.
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corPorATe sociAl resPoNsibiliTY rePorT

Commit Assess
A genuine commitment to being 
responsible and making changes 
for the betterment of society.

Implement the
strategies and Csr policies.

Assess the opportunities and impacts a 
socially responsible action could bring.

Define
define the goals, strategies and policies.

Communicate

Measure
Communicate and engage  
with stakeholders for continuous improvement.

Measure and monitor impacts, progress and achieved goals.

hoW our csr Works

Implement
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AT A glANce

helps to ensure a continual thriving population of mangroves to 
effectively sustain ecosystems.

employees of more than 10 years with a long 
service Award in recognition of their dedication, 
time and years to the organisation.

have seen the 
most returns 
through
knowledge-sharing	and	networking	
platforms we facilitate on behalf of 
our clients.

Asian-EXIM	Bank’s	Forum	was	significant	in	
strengthening collaborative efforts.

beach clean-up
1 hour = 318.7kg

 of waste collected

‘Mangrove Planting Programme’ 

The bank awards long-serving our 
efforts in 
Marketplace

20th 
The

through several projects 
that reach orphans, the 
elderly and less fortunate.

exiM
bank
connected
with the 
community
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corPorATe sociAl resPoNsibiliTY rePorT

giViNg our clieNTs A 
boosT goes beYoND 

ProDucTs AND 
serVices. iT MeANs 

WAlkiNg The roAD WiTh 
TheM, AND helPiNg 
TheM reAch Their 

DesTiNATioN iN The besT 
oF ForM.

MArkeTPlAce

The power of knowledge and networking 
In 2014, EXIM Bank hosted many networking sessions in 
collaboration with agencies such the Construction Industry 
Development	 Board	 (CIDB),	 Malaysia	 External	 Trade	
Development	Corporation	(MATRADE)	and	Malaysian	Industrial	
Development	 Finance	 Bhd	 (MIDF).	 We	 also	 joined	 hands	
with foreign governments such as republic of Togo, various 
Nigerian states and south African countries to match business 
opportunities in foreign countries with local businessmen.

As part of our sME outreach, we also sponsored and participated 
in various international conventions and conferences. The 10th 
Association of development finance Institutions of Malaysia 
(ADFIM)	CEO	Forum	organised	by	Association	of	Development	
Financing	 Institutions	 in	 Asia	 and	 the	 Pacific	 (ADFIAP)	 was	
one example. on the local scene, EXIM Bank was actively 
involved with the federation of Malaysian Manufacturers 
(FMM)	in	conducting	several	seminars	and	talks	held	at	FMM	
headquaters about opportunities doing business in some 
AsEAN countries.

EXIM Bank also sent its speakers to key seminars, conferences, 
trade exhibitions and roadshows that targeted sME 
entrepreneurs, to share business knowledge and promote the 
Bank’s	facilities	for	cross-border	ventures.	These	included	the	
World	Islamic	Economic	Forum	(WIEF)	held	in	Port	Dickson	on	
May 2014 for women entrepreneurs, and the Malaysia sME 
Congress in June 2014 attended by over 1,000 sMEs.

our eFForTs iN The MArkeTPlAce 
hAVe seeN The MosT reTurNs 
Through The kNoWleDge-shAriNg 
AND NeTWorkiNg PlATForMs We 
FAciliTATe oN behAlF oF our 
clieNTs.

President/ceo of exiM bank presenting an award to a recipient during
the Top 10 Asia corporate ball

courtesy visit from japan bank for international cooperation (jbic)
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We PArTiciPATeD AND sPoNsoreD MANY NeTWorkiNg eVeNTs Through 
roADshoWs, seMiNArs AND TrADe exhibiTioNs rANgiNg FroM busiNess 
ToPics To helPiNg The less ForTuNATe.

on the technology front, the Bank sponsored BioMalaysia & 
BioEconomy Asia Pacific Conference in kuala lumpur, where 
EXIM Bank’s speaker shared insights to commercialising and 
exporting a business venture on such technologies. 

EXIM	 Bank	 also	 organised	 SME-targeted	 events	 at	 its	
headquarters.	These	include	organising	the	joint-effort	between	
EXIM Bank and yayasan Innovasi Malaysia on the topic of 
green	technology	known	as	the	“Teh	Tarik”	session	which	drew	
some 80 sME players. 

Many Mous and agreements were also signed during the 
period namely with the government agencies to further support 
local entrepreneurs expansion overseas. These included 
Malaysia	Biotech,	Majlis	Amanah	Rakyat	(MARA),	etc.	

The Bank was also recognised for its efforts in the Islamic finance 
sector.	Its	first	ever	USD300	million	5-year	sukuk	issuance	was	
conferred	 the	 Emas	 (gold)	 status	 by	 Bank	 Negara	 Malaysia	
at the global Islamic finance forum. The sukuk was also a 
double	award-winner,	for	‘Trade	Finance	Deal’	and	‘Murabahah	
deal of the year 2014’ from Islamic finance News Awards. 

EXIM Bank through its Marketplace pillar will continue to 
engage and bring the business community together.

exiM bank board Members welcoming the republic of Togo’s Minister 
of Foreign Affairs, during Networking session

Networking session during the WieF Women entrepreneurial retreat
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exiM bANk sTriVes To 
be resPoNsible AND 
eThicAl, ProViDiNg 
gooD reTurNs For 

shAreholDers AND A 
sAFe AND sATisFYiNg 
WorkPlAce For our 
eMPloYees. buT We 

hAVe AN equAllY 
sTroNg resPoNsibiliTY 

To The broADer 
coMMuNiTY, bY beiNg 
A gooD corPorATe 

ciTiZeN, AND helPiNg 
To MAke our WorlD A 

beTTer PlAce.

coMMuNiTY

gooD coMMuNiTY relATioNs 
beNeFiT BoTH EXIM BANk ANd THE 
CoMMuNITIEs IN wHICH wE oPErATE.

Management and staff of exiM bank catering to orphans

Donations and food supplies given to Pusat jagaan siti Nor Ain

staffs participation during Feed the homeless programme
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bridging communities
How we handle our community responsibilities is a good 
indication of how we manage our business as a high performing 
organisation. Balancing both these components require equal 
importance.

Through the years, EXIM Bank has always been close to the 
ground with the communities. we have supported them in their 
times of need, and on happier occasions. we count ourselves 
privileged to be part of their lives in areas that matter most to 
them.

In 2014, our Mawaddah Committee, which manages funds 
under its Mawaddah account for the less fortunate, continued 
to play a primary role for the betterment of the Community. 
They are tasked with advising the Management on all matters 
relating to the charity funds, including due diligence on 
beneficiaries’ progress, and assessing and approving new 
requests.	 Beneficiaries	 in	 2014	 included	 under-privileged	
communities, charity organisations and religious institutions. 

Managed by our shariah department, our annual zakat 
contribution to the less fortunate benefitted more than 200 
individuals amounting to rM180,000 in 2014.

In addition, EXIM Bank also connected with the community 
through several projects that reach orphans, the elderly and 
the less fortunate. feed the Homeless is one project where it 
runs for almost a year to assist the homeless medically, apart 
from providing meals.

The Bank also supports at least 30 mosques around the 
country, through a yearly sponsorship that helps towards the 
maintenance	and	upkeep	of	the	mosques.	To-date,	more	than	
rM60,000 has been channeled towards this cause.

ramadhan is a period of anticipation for many, especially for 
orphans and the elderly who are regularly invited to EXIM Bank’s 
iftar	(break	fast),	and	receive	financial	aid	and	Syawal gifts such 
as baju raya and shoes. The Management and staff of EXIM 
Bank play active roles in organising the iftar and celebrating it 
with these community groups. 

Management and staff of exiM bank during the “sepetang bersama rumah Anak Yatim Titian kasih, Titiwangsa”
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our PeoPle Are our greATesT AsseTs, AND our 
coMMiTMeNT To TheM is To ProViDe A coNDuciVe AND 
PosiTiVelY chArgeD eNViroNMeNT ThAT AlloWs TheM To 
be The besT ThAT TheY Are, As iNDiViDuAls AND As sTAFF 
oF exiM bANk.

WorkPlAce

engaged. energised. empowered.
As much as the Bank commits its time, resources and funds 
to support other Csr areas, the workplace is one that EXIM 
Bank holds close to its heart. It is the picture that paints a 
thousand words about the Bank. An engaged, energised, and 
empowered employee is testament to the essence that depicts 
the Bank.

The	 Bank	 is	 a	 market-rate	 competitive	 employer	 that	
recognises the importance of appreciating employees. EXIM 
Bank maintains its commitment as one of the best choices for 
employment. In 2013, the Bank was awarded with Hr Asia 
Award and was listed among the Best Companies to work for 
in	Asia.	In	2014,	EXIM	Bank	achieved	above-target	results	in	its	
Employee Engagement Index, where it recorded 83 per cent 
satisfaction level, over its target of 75 per cent. 

exiM bank’s long service Awards 2014

certificate and token of appreciation received by
the long service Awards recipients
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As Much As The bANk coMMiTs iTs TiMe, 
resource AND FuNDs To suPPorT oTher csr 
AreAs, THE workPlACE Is oNE THAT EXIM BANk 
Holds ClosE To ITs HEArT. IT Is THE PICTurE THAT 
PAINTs A THousANd words ABouT THE BANk. 

Annually,	 the	 Bank	 awards	 long-serving	 employees	 of	 more	
than 10 years with a long service Award in recognition for their 
dedication, time and years to the organisation. In 2014, EXIM 
Bank	celebrated	more	than	21	long-serving	employees.

Regular	 team-building	 and	 employee-family	 activities	 were	
carried out throughout the year. These include family day, staff 
birthday celebrations, participation in various sporting events 
managed by EXIM Bank’s Club kssEB, and others.

At the workplace, the Bank continued to invest in employee 
facilities. In 2014, the Bank provided an allocation to add seven 
(7)	new	gym	equipments	to	the	office	gym	facility.	The	gym	was	
also renovated to provide more space for exercise and training 
areas.

An area of empowerment is the role employees can play in an 
emergency. EXIM Bank has set up an Emergency response 
Team	(ERT)	comprising	of	35	responders	(employees)	who	are	
able to address a variety of crisis and those affected by crisis in 
the Bank. They can be called on for immediate support in crisis 
situations, and will function as the frontline response for the 
Bank. Their primary responsibilities include safe and efficient 
evacuation of all personnel during an emergency situation, and 
assist in mitigating the emergency if it is within the capabilities 
of the team. The ErT is assigned to different roles, including 
Evacuation Team, search and rescue Team, fire Team and 
Medic Team. ErT is part of the Bank’s Business Continuity 
Management	 (BCM),	 and	 undergo	 specific	 training	 each	
year. for 2014, they attended a fire and safety Course at the 
seputeh fire station.

Team building activities with the emergency rescue Team
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iT is AbouT 
breAThiNg, liViNg 
greeN, Through 
A coNscieNTious 

liFesTYle AT hoMe AND 
AT Work.

eNViroNMeNT

300 saplings successfully planted at the kuala selangor Natures Park 

The bank’s Annual Mangrove-Planting Programme
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green at home, and green at work
Through ongoing environmental talks and awareness 
campaigns, EXIM Bank employees have become increasingly 
conscious of their individual impacts on the environment. In 
small ways, they have started to retune their lifestyles to reflect 
more	environmental-conscious	habits.

At work, the Bank has instituted some green practices. 
for a start, the lighting on the ground floor of the Bank’s 
headquarters has been replaced with lEd lighting for better 
energy consumption and efficiency. This represents phase 1 of 
the project where the savings translated will be used as baseline 
records for data comparison and tracking, as we continue to 
expand the lEd lighting project in stages to eventually cover all 
floors. The Bank will also be looking to expand green practices 
to other areas in the office to reduce its carbon footprint such 
as reducing the amount of paper used.

In the environment space, the Bank continued with its yearly 
‘Mangrove-Planting	 Programme’	 that	 commenced	 in	 2013.	
The initiative helps to ensure a continual thriving population of 
mangroves to effectively sustain the environment’s ecosystem. 
since 2013, more than 600 mangrove trees have been planted 
by EXIM Bank employees by the coastline at the selangor 
Nature Park. Apart from providing habitation for birds, fish and 
other species, mangroves also act as a natural erosion and 
flood control mechanism. This is critical for the ecosystem, as 
well as for the livelihood of local fisherman, and safeguarding 
the coastline from effects of erosion and tsunami. 

In 2014, more than 90 employees with their families rolled up 
their sleeves and cleared the beach front of Bagan lalang, 

As wITH All of ITs Csr 
ACTIvITIEs, EXIM BANk 
ENCourAgEs EMPloyEE 
PArTICIPATIoN, ANd THE 
ENvIroNMENT PIllAr Is  
oNE wHICH BEsT 
dEMoNsTrATEs How 
eMPloYees Are geTTiNg 
behiND The bANk’s greeN 
coMMiTMeNT.

selangor. A total of 318.7kg of waste was collected within 
an hour, on the back of sweat, hard work and dedication by 
all involved. The wastage comprised plastic bags, bottles, 
polystyrene cups, containers, as well as some old fishing 
equipment like nets, which pose just as great a danger to 
marine life.

Preserving the environment is a collective responsibility of every 
person, and the Bank will continue to play its part through more 
programmes	 and	 initiatives.	 The	 Beach	 Clean-up	 activity’s	
mission is to remove debris from the beaches.

Wastes collected during The beach clean-up activity at bagan lalang
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The directors hereby present their report and the audited financial statements of the group and of the Bank for the financial year 
ended 31 december 2014.

PriNciPAl AcTiViTies

The Bank is principally engaged in the business of conventional and Islamic banking in the promotion and support of export, import 
and investment for the country’s development by granting credit, issuing guarantees and providing other related services. The Bank 
is also engaged in the provision of export and domestic credit insurance, takaful facilities and trade related guarantees to Malaysian 
companies.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries and the jointly controlled entity are as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

There have been no other significant changes in the nature of the group’s and Bank’s principal activities during the financial year.

resulTs

 group  bank 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Profit for the year  19,067  19,078 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves during the financial year other than as disclosed in the financial statements. 

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the group and of the Bank during the financial year were not substantially 
affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature. 

DiViDeNDs

since the end of the previous financial year, the Bank paid a final ordinary dividend of 0.80 sen per ordinary share totaling rM21,708,113 
in respect of the year ended 31 december 2013 on 20 June 2014.

dIrECTors’
rePorT
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DirecTors’ rePorT

DirecTors

The names of the directors of the Bank in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report are:

Datuk	Mohd	Hashim	bin	Hassan	-	Chairman	
dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali
dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor
dato’ dr. Mohmad Isa bin Hussain
Encik Nik Najib bin Husain
dato’ Md Agil bin Mohd Natt
Encik Ismail bin Mahbob
datuk wong seng foo
YM	Tunku	Afwida	binti	Tunku	A.Malek	(appointed	on	15.08.2014)	
Haji	Zakaria	bin	Ismail	(resigned	on	23.09.2014)

None of the directors at the end of the financial year held any direct interest in the shares of the Bank or its related companies during 
the financial year.

DirecTors’ beNeFiTs

Since	the	end	of	the	previous	financial	year,	no	Director	of	the	Bank	has	received	or	become	entitled	to	receive	a	benefit	(other	than	
benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors or the fixed salary of a full 
time	employee	of	the	Bank	as	shown	in	Note	29	to	the	financial	statements)	by	reason	of	a	contract	made	by	the	Bank	or	a	related	
company with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial 
financial interest.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling directors of the Bank to 
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Bank or any other body corporate.

issue oF shAres AND DebeNTures

There were no changes in the issued and paid up capital of the Bank during the year.

There were no issuance of debentures during the year.

oPTioNs grANTeD oVer uNissueD shAres

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Bank during the year.
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oTher sTATuTorY iNForMATioN

(a)	 Before	the	statements	of	financial	position	and	income	statements	of	the	Group	and	of	the	Bank	were	made	out,	the	Directors	
took reasonable steps:

(i)	 to	ascertain	that	proper	action	had	been	taken	in	relation	to	the	writing	off	of	bad	debts	and	the	making	of	allowance	for	
doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had 
been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii)	 to	ensure	that	any	current	assets	which	were	unlikely	to	realise	their	value	as	shown	in	the	accounting	records	in	the	ordinary	
course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

(b)	 At	the	date	of	this	report,	the	Directors	are	not	aware	of	any	circumstances	which	would	render:

(i)	 the	amount	written	off	for	bad	debts	or	the	amount	of	the	allowance	for	doubtful	debts	in	the	financial	statements	of	the	
group and of the Bank inadequate to any substantial extent; and

(ii)		 the	values	attributed	to	current	assets	in	the	financial	statements	of	the	Group	and	of	the	Bank	misleading.	

(c)	 At	the	date	of	this	report,	the	Directors	are	not	aware	of	any	circumstances	which	have	arisen	which	would	render	adherence	to	
the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the group and of the Bank misleading or inappropriate.

(d)	 At	the	date	of	this	report,	the	Directors	are	not	aware	of	any	circumstances	not	otherwise	dealt	with	in	this	report	or	financial	
statements of the group and of the Bank which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

(e)	 As	at	the	date	of	this	report,	there	does	not	exist:

(i)	 any	charge	on	the	assets	of	the	Group	and	of	the	Bank	which	has	arisen	since	the	end	of	the	financial	year	which	secures	
the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)	 any	contingent	liability	in	respect	of	the	Group	and	of	the	Bank	which	has	arisen	since	the	end	of	the	financial	year.

(f)	 In	the	opinion	of	the	Directors:

(i)	 no	contingent	or	other	liability	has	become	enforceable	or	is	likely	to	become	enforceable	within	the	period	of	twelve	months	
after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the group and of the Bank to meet its obligations as 
and when they fall due; and

(ii)	 no	item,	transaction	or	event	of	a	material	and	unusual	nature	has	arisen	in	the	interval	between	the	end	of	the	financial	year	
and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the group and of the Bank for 
the financial year in which this report is made. 

DirecTors’ rePorT
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sigNiFicANT eVeNT

Rating	agencies,	Moody’s	Investors	Service,	Fitch	Ratings	and	RAM	Ratings	have	re-affirmed	the	Bank’s	rating	during	their	annual	
review for 2014 as follows:

rating agencies Date ratings

Moody’s Investors service 6 August 2014 Issuer rating: A3

 senior unsecured: A3

fitch ratings 12 september 2014 Foreign	Long-term	Issuer	Default	Rating:	A-

support rating: 1

Support	Rating	Floor:	A-

rAM ratings 29 August 2014 Global-scale	Financial	Institution	Rating:	gA2/Stable/P1

Malaysian rating: AAA/stable/P1

ASEAN-scale	Financial	Institution	Rating:	
 seaAAA/stable/seaP1

Global-scale	Rating	(Exim	Sukuk	Malaysia	Berhad):
	 gA2(s)/Stable/-

AuDiTors

The auditors, Ernst & young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 26 february 2015.

Datuk Mohd hashim bin hassan Dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali
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sHArIAH CoMMITTEE's
rePorT

All Praise is due to Allah, the Cherisher of the world, and the Peace and Blessing be upon the Prophet of Allah, on his family and all 
his Companions.

																																																																		and	“Salam	Sejahtera”

To	the	shareholders,	customers	and	stakeholders	of	Export-Import	Bank	of	Malaysia	(“EXIM	Bank	or	the	Bank”):

In	carrying	out	 the	 roles	and	 responsibilities	as	EXIM	Bank’s	Shariah	Committee	 (“the	Committee”)	as	prescribed	 in	 the	Bank’s	
shariah governance framework as well as the shariah governance framework for Islamic financial Institutions issued by Bank 
Negara Malaysia, we the members of the Committee hereby submit the following report in respect of shariah compliant business 
activities	of	EXIM	Bank	for	the	financial	year	ended	31	December	2014:-

1.	 The	Committee	had	conducted	nine	(9)	meetings	during	the	financial	year	to	review	and	approve	various	new	and	enhancement	
to the Bank’s Islamic financing and Takaful products as well as guidelines and manuals relating to shariah compliant transactions 
and internal processes. we confirmed that we have reviewed the applicability and appropriateness of shariah principles and the 
shariah contracts adopted relating to the new and enhancement products, transactions and operational processes of Islamic 
financing and Takaful activities of EXIM Bank for the period from 1 January 2014 until 31 december 2014.

2. The Committee has provided appropriate advisory and counsel on various aspects of the Bank’s Islamic business operations in 
order to ensure compliance with applicable shariah principles as well as the relevant resolutions and rulings made by the shariah 
Advisory Councils of Bank Negara Malaysia.

3. The Committee have assessed the work carried out by shariah review and shariah audit and the report has been presented 
and deliberated in the Committee meeting, which the findings shall be the basis for the Committee to form an opinion on its 
compliance to shariah rules and principles, shariah guidelines and rulings issued by the shariah Advisory Council of Bank 
Negara Malaysia as well as shariah decisions and resolutions made by the Committee.

4. Money which derived from the compensation for late payment charges on Islamic financing activities and other tainted income 
is channelled to charity fund and distributed progressively to the eligible beneficiaries.

5. The Committee has reviewed the financial statements of the Bank, including the calculation of Zakat and confirmed that 
the financial statements prepared are in compliance to the shariah rules and principles as well as the minimum disclosure 
requirements as stipulated by Bank Negara Malaysia.

iN The NAMe oF AllAh, The beNeFiceNT, The MosT MerciFul
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shAriAh coMMiTTee's rePorT

we also affirm that the Bank’s management is responsible for ensuring that the Islamic banking and takaful businesses are conducted 
in accordance with shariah rules and principles. our responsibility is to form an independent opinion, based on the information and 
explanations provided on the operations of EXIM Bank and thereby report to you.

Hence to the best of our knowledge based on the information provided to us and decisions made during the shariah Committee 
meeting, we are of the opinion that the Islamic banking and takaful business operations of EXIM Bank for the financial year ended 31 
december 2014 have been conducted in conformity with the shariah rules and principles. 

We	beg	Allah	the	Almighty	to	grant	us	all	the	success	and	straight-forwardness	and	Allah	knows	best.

signed on behalf of the Committee,

DATo’ Dr. MohD Ali hAji bAhAruM   Dr. ZAhAruDDiN AbD rAhMAN
Chairman  Member 

   
     

kuala lumpur, Malaysia
23 february 2015
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We,	Datuk	Mohd	Hashim	bin	Hassan	and	Dato’	Adissadikin	bin	Ali,	being	two	of	the	Directors	of	Export-Import	Bank	of	Malaysia	
Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 87 to 191 
are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian financial reporting standards, International financial reporting standards and the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Bank as at  
31 december 2014 and of the results and cash flows of the group and of the Bank for the year then ended. 

signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 26 february 2015.

Datuk Mohd hashim bin hassan Dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali

we, datuk Mohd Hashim bin Hassan and dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali, being the directors primarily responsible for the financial 
management	 of	 Export-Import	Bank	 of	Malaysia	Berhad,	 do	 solemnly	 and	 sincerely	 declare	 that	 the	 accompanying	 financial	
statements set out on pages 87 to 191 are in our opinion correct, and we make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing 
the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the statutory declarations Act, 1960. 

subscribed and solemnly declared by the 
above named datuk Mohd Hashim bin 
Hassan and dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali
at kuala lumpur in the federal Territory Datuk Mohd hashim bin hassan
on 26 february 2015

Before me,

 Dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali

sTATEMENT
bY DirecTors
PursuANT To secTioN 169(15) oF The coMPANies AcT, 1965

sTATuTory
DeclArATioN
PursuANT To secTioN 169(15) oF The coMPANies AcT, 1965 AND
secTioN 73(1)(e) oF The DeVeloPMeNT FiNANciAl iNsTiTuTioNs AcT, 2002
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rePorT oN The FiNANciAl sTATeMeNTs

We	have	audited	the	financial	statements	of	Export-Import	Bank	of	Malaysia	Berhad,	which	comprise	the	statements	of	financial	
position as at 31 december 2014 of the group and of the Bank, and the income statement, statements of comprehensive income, 
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the group and of the Bank for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 87 to 191. 

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Malaysian financial reporting standards, International financial reporting standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or errors. 

Auditors’ responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance 
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s 
preparation of financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the 
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Bank as at 31 
december 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian financial 
reporting standards, International financial reporting standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

rePorT oN oTher legAl AND regulATorY requireMeNTs

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following: 

(a)	 In	 our	 opinion,	 the	 accounting	 and	 other	 records	 and	 the	 registers	 required	 by	 the	Act	 to	 be	 kept	 by	 the	Bank	 and	 its	
subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)	 We	are	satisfied	that	the	financial	statements	of	the	subsidiaries	that	have	been	consolidated	with	the	financial	statements	
of the Bank are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(c)	 The	auditors’	reports	on	the	financial	statements	of	the	subsidiaries	were	not	subject	to	any	qualification	and	did	not	include	
any	comment	required	to	be	made	under	Section	174(3)	of	the	Act.

INdEPENdENT
AuDiTors’ rePorT
To The MeMbers oF exPorT-iMPorT bANk oF MAlAYsiA berhAD (iNcorPorATeD iN MAlAYsiA)
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oTher MATTers

This report is made solely to the members of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with section 174 of the Companies Act 1965 in 
Malaysia and for no other purpose. we do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

ernst & Young  Megat iskandar shah bin Mohamad Nor
AF:	0039	 	No.	3038/07/15(J)
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountant

kuala lumpur, Malaysia
26 february 2015

iNDePeNDeNT AuDiTors’ rePorT
TO	THE	MEMBERS	OF	EXPORT-IMPORT	BANK	OF
MALAYSIA	BERHAD	(INCORPORATED	IN	MALAYSIA)
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group bank

2014  2013 2014  2013 

Note  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Assets

Cash and bank balances 4  17,279  38,932  17,279  38,932 

deposits and placements with banks and other 
financial institutions 5  1,970,958  1,705,276  1,970,958  1,705,276 

Investment securities 6  120,974  445,621  120,974  445,621 

Amount	due	from	Export	Credit	Refinancing	(“ECR”)	
debtors 7  410,647  382,345  410,647  382,345 

loans, advances and financing 8  7,933,864  5,301,508  7,933,864  5,301,508 

Insurance receivables 9  561  835  561  835 

derivative financial instruments 10  29,599  379  29,599  379 

other assets 11  162,964  157,802  162,964  157,802 

deferred tax assets 12  13,215  7,633  15,530  9,948 

Investment in subsidiaries 13(a) 	-	 	-	  64,147  64,154 

Investment in jointly controlled entity 13(b)  **  **  **  ** 

Investment properties 14  473  491  473  491 

Intangible assets 15  1  337  1  337 

Property and equipment 16  101,594  101,678  101,594  101,678 

Total assets  10,762,129  8,142,837  10,828,591  8,209,306 

liabilities

Borrowings 17  7,460,587  4,789,406  7,460,587  4,789,406 

other payables and accruals 18  260,098  285,739  260,098  285,739 

derivative financial instruments 10  30,205  58,335  30,205  58,335 

deferred income 19  17,890  15,915  17,890  15,915 

Provision for guarantee and claims 20  28,721  27,073  28,721  27,073 

Amount due to subsidiaries 35 	-	 	-	  64,124  64,142 

Amount due to joint venture 13(b)  **  **  **  ** 

Total liabilities  7,797,501  5,176,468  7,861,625  5,240,610 

sTATEMENTs of 
FiNANciAl PosiTioN
As AT 31 DeceMber 2014

** Amount is less than rM1,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Financed by:

share capital 21  2,708,665  2,708,665  2,708,665  2,708,665 

fair value adjustment reserve 	(118)  136 	(118)  136 

retained profits  257,346  259,987  259,684  262,314 

shareholders’ funds  2,965,893  2,968,788  2,968,231  2,971,115 

Takaful participants fund 38 	(1,265) 	(2,419) 	(1,265) 	(2,419)

Total liabilities, shareholders’ fund 
and Takaful funds  10,762,129  8,142,837  10,828,591  8,209,306 

commitments and contingencies 34  3,880,904  4,346,020  3,880,904  4,346,020

sTATeMeNTs oF FiNANciAl PosiTioN
As AT 31 dECEMBEr 2014

group bank

2014  2013 2014  2013 

Note  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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group bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

Note  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

operating revenue 22  357,797  273,511  357,797  273,511 

Interest income 23  302,961  269,994  302,961  269,994 

Interest expense 24 	(117,596) 	(91,358) 	(117,596) 	(91,358)

Net interest income  185,365  178,636  185,365  178,636 

underwriting results 25  10,652  2,118  10,652  2,118 

Income from Islamic business 38  79,088  45,225  79,088  45,225 

Other	(expenses)/income 26 	(2,507)  47,125 	(2,507)  47,125 

Net income  272,598  273,104  272,598  273,104 

overhead expenses 27 	(74,213) 	(70,251) 	(74,195) 	(70,242)

operating profit  198,385  202,853  198,403  202,862 

Allowance for diminution in value of investment 
in a subsidiary 	-	 	-	 	(7) 	(7)

Allowances for losses on loans, advances and 
financing 30 	(157,535) 	(12,600) 	(157,535) 	(12,600)

Profit before taxation  40,850  190,253  40,861  190,255 

Taxation 31 	(21,054) 	(44,841) 	(21,054) 	(44,839)

Zakat 	(729) 	(695) 	(729) 	(695)

Net profit for the year  19,067  144,717  19,078  144,721 

Earnings	per	share	(sen) 32  0.70  5.34  0.70  5.34

INCoME
sTATeMeNT
For The YeAr eNDeD 31 DeceMber 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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group bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Net profit for the year 19,067 144,717 19,078 144,721

Other	comprehensive	income/(loss):

Other	comprehensive	income/(loss)	to	be	reclassified	 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Fair	value	changes	on	available-for-sale	investments	
securities 	(254) 	(580) 	(254) 	(580)

Net	other	comprehensive	income/(loss)	to	be	reclassified	 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods 	(254) 	(580) 	(254) 	(580)

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 18,813 144,137 18,824 144,141

sTATEMENTs of
coMPreheNsiVe iNcoMe
For The YeAr eNDeD 31 DeceMber 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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 share 
 capital 

 Distributable 
 retained 

 profits 

 Non- 
 distributable 

 fair value 
 adjustment 

 reserve  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

group

At 1 january 2013  2,708,665  129,194  716  2,838,575 

Total comprehensive income 	-	  144,717 	(580)  144,137 

Dividend	paid	(Note	33) 	-	 	(13,924) 	-	 	(13,924)

At 31 December 2013  2,708,665  259,987  136  2,968,788 

Total comprehensive income 	-	  19,067 	(254)  18,813 

Dividend	paid	(Note	33) 	-	 	(21,708) 	-	 	(21,708)

At 31 December 2014  2,708,665  257,346 	(118)  2,965,893 

bank

At 1 january 2013  2,708,665  131,517  716  2,840,898 

Total comprehensive income 	-	  144,721 	(580)  144,141 

Dividend	paid	(Note	33) 	-	 	(13,924) 	-	 	(13,924)

At 31 December 2013  2,708,665  262,314  136  2,971,115 

Total comprehensive income 	-	  19,078 	(254)  18,824 

Dividend	paid	(Note	33) 	-	 	(21,708) 	-	 	(21,708)

At 31 December 2014  2,708,665  259,684 	(118)  2,968,231

sTATEMENTs of
chANges iN equiTY
For The YeAr eNDeD 31 DeceMber 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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 group  bank 

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation  40,850  190,253  40,861  190,255 

Adjustments for:

 Individual allowance

		 -		Charged	for	the	year  183,341  60,914  183,341  60,914 

		 -		Written	back	during	the	year 	(34,358) 	(62,272) 	(34,358) 	(62,272)

 Collective allowance

	 -		Charged	for	the	year  8,552  16,091  8,552  16,091 

 Claim and guarantee

	 -		Charged	for	the	year 	-	  7,157 	-	  7,157 

	 -		Written	back	during	the	year 	-	 	(9,290) 	-	 	(9,290)

 depreciation

	 -		Property	and	equipment  4,823  4,335  4,823  4,335 

	 -		Investment	properties  18  18  18  18 

 Amortisation of intangible assets  336  453  336  453 

Allowance for diminution in value of investment in a subsidiary 	-	 	-	  7  7 

 gain on disposal of equipment 	(13) 	(9) 	(13) 	(9)

 unrealised foreign exchange loss  31,364  27,599  31,364  27,599 

	 Unrealised	(gain)/loss	on	derivative	evaluation 	(56,671)  77,903 	(56,671)  77,903 

	 Unrealised	(gain)/loss	on	MTN	evaluation	  74,857 	(73,073)  74,857 	(73,073)

 Allowance for doubtful debts 	-	 	(81) 	-	 	(81)

 Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount  414  816  414  816 

 Premium liabilities 	(5,934)  1,831 	(5,934)  1,831 

operating profit before changes in working capital  247,579  242,645  247,597  242,654

Changes in working capital:

 Amount due from ECr debtors 	(28,302)  190,225 	(28,302)  190,225 

 loans, advances and financing 	(2,789,891) 	(2,165,113) 	(2,789,891) 	(2,165,113)

 Insurance receivables  274  110  274  110 

 other assets 	(14,759) 	(23,752) 	(14,759) 	(23,752)

 derivative financial instruments 	(679)  980 	(679)  980 

 other payables and accruals 	(7,989)  92,501 	(7,989)  92,501 

 deferred income  7,909  551  7,909  551 

 Net claims paid for bank guarantee and insurance claims  1,648  8,915  1,648  8,915 

 Takaful participant funds  1,154 	(1,486)  1,154 	(1,486)

 Amount due to subsidiaries 	-	 	-	 	(18) 	(9)

Cash used in operations 	(2,583,056) 	(1,654,424) 	(2,583,056) 	(1,654,424)

sTATEMENTs of
cAsh FloWs
For The YeAr eNDeD 31 DeceMber 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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 group  bank 

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

cash flows from operating activities (cont’d)

Income tax paid 	(34,725) 	(4,142) 	(34,725) 	(4,142)

Zakat paid 	(695) 	(431) 	(695) 	(431)

Net cash used in operating activities 	(2,618,476) 	(1,658,997) 	(2,618,476) 	(1,658,997)

cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment  13  9  13  9 

Purchase of property and equipment 	(4,739) 	(6,933) 	(4,739) 	(6,933)

Proceeds/(purchase)	of	investments  323,979 	(198,929)  323,979 	(198,929)

Net cash generated/(used in) from investing activities  319,253 	(205,853)  319,253 	(205,853)

cash flows from financing activities

Net drawdown of borrowings  2,564,960  617,341  2,564,960  617,341 

dividend paid 	(21,708) 	(13,924) 	(21,708) 	(13,924)

Net cash generated from financing activities  2,543,252  603,417  2,543,252  603,417 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  244,029 	(1,261,433)  244,029 	(1,261,433)

cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  1,744,208  3,005,641  1,744,208  3,005,641 

cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  1,988,237  1,744,208  1,988,237  1,744,208

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

group bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Cash and bank balances 17,279 38,932 17,279 38,932

deposits and placements with banks and other financial 
institutions 1,970,958 1,705,276 1,970,958 1,705,276

Cash and cash equivalents 1,988,237 1,744,208 1,988,237 1,744,208

sTATeMeNTs oF cAsh FloWs
for THE yEAr ENdEd 31 dECEMBEr 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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1. corPorATe iNForMATioN

	 Export-Import	Bank	of	Malaysia	Berhad	is	a	public	limited	liability	company,	incorporated	and	domiciled	in	Malaysia.	The	registered	
office and principal place of business of the Bank is located at level 16, Exim Bank, Jalan sultan Ismail, 50250 kuala lumpur.

 The Bank is principally engaged in the business of conventional and Islamic banking in the promotion and support of export, 
import and investment for the country’s development by granting credit, issuing guarantees and providing other related 
services. The Bank is also engaged in the provision of export and domestic credit insurance takaful facilities and trade related 
guarantees to Malaysian companies.

 The principal activities of the subsidiaries are as stated in Note 13.

 There have been no significant changes in the nature of the group’s and Bank’s principal activities during the year.

 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors 
on 26 february 2015.

2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies 

2.1 basis of preparation

 The financial statements of the group and the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian financial reporting 
Standards	(“MFRS”)	as	issued	by	the	Malaysian	Accounting	Standard	Board	and	the	Companies	Act	1965.	The	financial	
statements	comply	with	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(“IFRS”)	as	issued	by	the	International	Accounting	
standards Board. 

 The financial statements of the group and the Bank have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless otherwise 
stated	in	the	accounting	policies.	The	financial	statements	are	presented	in	Ringgit	Malaysia	(“RM”),	which	is	the	Group’s	and	the	
Bank’s	functional	currency,	and	all	values	are	rounded	to	the	nearest	thousand	(RM’000)	except	when	otherwise	indicated.	

2.2 Amended standards and interpretation

 The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:

 on 1 January 2014, the group and the Bank adopted the following new and amended Mfrs and IC Interpretations 
mandatory for annual financial periods on or after 1 January 2014.

  effective for 
  annual periods 
  beginning 
 Description on or after
 
 Amendments to Mfrs 10, Mfrs 12 and Mfrs 127: Investment Entities 1 January 2014
 Amendments to Mfrs 132: offsetting financial Assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
	 Amendments	to	MFRS	136:	Recoverable	Amount	Disclosures	for	Non-Financial	Assets	 1	January	2014
 Amendments to Mfrs 139: Novation of derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014
 IC Interpretation 21 levies 1 January 2014
 Amendments to Mfrs 119 defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions  1 July 2014
	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2010-2012	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	2	Share-based	Payment 1 July 2014
	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2010-2012	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	3	Business Combinations 1 July 2014
	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2010-2012	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	8	operating segments 1 July 2014
	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2010-2012	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	116	Property, Plant and 
  Equipment and Mfrs 138 Intangible Assets 1 July 2014

NoTEs To THE
FiNANciAl sTATeMeNTs
31 DeceMber 2014
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.2 Amended standards and interpretation (cont’d.)

  effective for 
  annual periods 
  beginning
 Description on or after

	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2010-2012	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	124
  related Party disclosures 1 July 2014
	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2011-2013	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	3	Business Combinations 1 July 2014
	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2011-2013	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	13
  fair value Measurement 1 July 2014
	 Annual	Improvements	to	MFRSs	2011-2013	Cycle:	Amendments	to	MFRS	140	Investment Property 1 July 2014

2.3 standards issued but not yet effective

 The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the group’s and the 
Bank’s financial statements are disclosed below. The group and the Bank intend to adopt these standards, if applicable, 
when they become effective.

 effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 january 2016
•	 Amendments	to	MFRS	11	Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint operations
•	 MFRS	14	regulatory deferral Accounts
•	 Amendments	to	MFRS	116	and	MFRS	138	Clarification of Acceptable Methods of depreciation and Amortisation
•	 Amendments	to	MFRS	116	and	MFRS	141	Agriculture: Bearer Plants

 effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 january 2017
•	 MFRS	15	Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 january 2018
•	 MFRS	9	financial Instruments

 The management expects that the adoption of the above standards will have no material impact on the financial statements 
in the period of initial application except as discussed below:

 Mfrs 9 reflects the first phase of the work on the replacement of Mfrs 139 financial Instruments: recognition and Measurement 
and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in Mfrs 139 financial 
Instruments: recognition and Measurement. The adoption of the first phase of Mfrs 9 will have an effect on the classification 
and measurement of the Company’s financial assets. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect 
of Mfrs 9 until the Company undertakes a detailed review of its financial instruments in the upcoming year.

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) subsidiaries and basis of consolidation 

(i) subsidiaries

 A subsidiary is an entity over which the group has power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities.

 In the Bank’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment 
losses. on the disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying 
amounts is included in the statements of income.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(a) subsidiaries and basis of consolidation (cont’d.)

(ii) basis of consolidation
 
 The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 

the reporting date. The financial statements used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are 
prepared for the same reporting date as the Bank. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like transactions 
and events in similar circumstances.

	 All	 intra-group	 balances,	 income	 and	 expenses	 and	 unrealised	 gains	 and	 losses	 resulting	 from	 intra-group	
transactions are eliminated in full.

 Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at 
the acquisition date. 

 Adjustments to those fair values relating to previously held interests are treated as a revaluation and recognised 
in other comprehensive income. The cost of a business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair 
values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 
issued, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. 

 Any excess of the cost of business combination over the group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired 
subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill on the statement of 
financial position. Any excess of the group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of business combination is recognised as income in 
statements of income on the date of acquisition.

 when the group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated from the host contract by the acquiree 
are reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination results in a change in the terms of the contract 
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract. 

 subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the group obtains control, 
and continue to be consolidated until the date such control ceases.

(iii) consolidation of exiM sukuk Malaysia berhad

	 EXIM	Sukuk	Malaysia	Berhad	is	a	Special	Purpose	Vehicle	Company	(“SPV”)	established	by	the	Bank	as	part	of	
its Multicurrency sukuk Issuance Programme. The entire issued share capital of the sPv is held by TMf Trustees 
Malaysia	 Berhad.	 The	 SPV	 shall	 act	 as	 issuer,	 trustee	 and	 purchaser/seller	 of	 tangible/non-tangible	 assets.	
Management had concluded that control over Exim sukuk existed in line with the revised definition of control 
introduced by Mfrs 10. Accordingly, EXIM sukuk is deemed to be a subsidiary and its financial position and 
results for the year ended 31 december 2014 have been consolidated in the financial statements of the group 
for the current financial year. 

(b) Property and equipment

 All items of property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property and equipment is 
recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(b) Property and equipment (cont’d.)

 subsequent to recognition, property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. when significant parts of property and equipment are required to be placed in intervals, 
the group recognises such parts as individuals assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. likewise, 
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a 
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statements 
of income as incurred. 

 freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. depreciation of other property and 
equipment	is	provided	for	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	estimated	useful	lives	of	the	assets	as	follows:

 Building  50 years 
 renovation and improvement  10 years 
 furniture, electrical fittings and equipment  10 years 
 Motor vehicles  5 years 
 office equipment  5 years 
 Computers  3 years 

	 Assets	under	construction/work-in-progress	included	in	property	and	equipment	are	not	depreciated	as	these	assets	
are not yet available for use.

 The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The policy for the recognition and measurement of impairment 
is	in	accordance	with	Note	2.4(e).

	 The	 residual	 value,	 useful	 life	 and	 depreciation	 method	 are	 reviewed	 at	 each	 financial	 year-end,	 and	 adjusted	
prospectively, if appropriate.

 An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the statements of income in the 
year the asset is derecognised.

(c) intangible assets: computer software
 
 Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring the 

specific	software	to	use.	The	costs	are	amortised	over	 their	useful	 lives	of	 three	 (3)	years	and	are	stated	at	cost	
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Computer software is assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. The amortisation period and amortisation method 
are reviewed at least at each reporting date.

	 The	policy	for	the	recognition	and	measurement	of	impairment	is	in	accordance	with	Note	2.4(e).

 Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as expenses when incurred. Costs 
that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the group 
and the Bank, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised 
as intangible assets. These costs include software development, employee costs and appropriate portion of relevant 
overheads.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(d) investment properties 

 Investment properties are properties which are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both. 
These include land held for a currently undetermined future use. 

 Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, consistent with the 
accounting	policy	for	property	and	equipment	as	stated	in	accounting	policy	Note	2.4(b).

	 Depreciation	is	charged	to	the	statements	of	income	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	estimated	useful	lives	of	fifty	(50)	
years for building. freehold land is not depreciated.

 Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on 
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in statements of income in the year of retirement 
or disposal.

(e) impairment of non-financial assets

	 The	carrying	amount	of	 the	assets,	other	 than	deferred	tax	assets,	non-current	asset	held	 for	sales	and	financial	
assets	(other	than	investments	in	subsidiaries),	are	reviewed	at	each	reporting	date	to	determine	whether	there	is	any	
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine 
the amount of impairment loss. 

 An impairment loss is recognised in the statements of income in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for as a revaluation decrease to the 
extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount held in the asset revaluation reserve for the same asset.

(f) Financial assets
 
 financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the group and the Bank 

become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

 when financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not 
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction cost.

 The group and the Bank determine the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition, and the categories 
include	loans	and	receivables,	held-to-maturity	investments,	available-for-sale	financial	assets	and	fair	value	through	
profit and loss.

(i) loans and receivables

 financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as 
loans and receivables. 

 subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. gains and losses are recognised in statements of income when the loans and receivables are 
derecognised or impaired, through the amortisation process.

 loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than twelve 
(12)	months	after	the	reporting	date	which	are	classified	as	non-current.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(f) Financial assets (cont’d.)

(ii) Financing and receivables 

 financing and receivables consist of Murabahah, Istisna’, Bai’ Al dayn, Tawarruq, Ijarah and kafalah. These 
contracts	 are	 recognised	 at	 amortised	 cost	 (except	 for	 Kafalah	 contract),	 including	 direct	 and	 incremental	
transaction costs using the effective profit method. These contracts are stated at net of unearned income and 
any amounts written off and/or impaired.

 definition of shariah concept:

(a)	 Murabahah:	Sale	of	an	asset	by	the	Bank	to	the	customer	at	cost	plus	a	mark-up	in	which	the	profit	rate	has	
to be disclosed to the Customer. The sale Price is payable by the Customer on deferred terms.

(b)	 Tawarruq:	An	arrangement	that	involves	sale	of	commodity	by	the	Bank	to	the	Customer	in	which	the	Sale	
Price is payable on a deferred basis and subsequent sale of the commodity to a third party on a cash basis 
to obtain cash.

(c)	 Ijarah:	A	lease	contract	to	transfer	the	usufruct	(benefits)	of	a	particular	property	of	the	Bank	to	Customer	in	
exchange for a rental payment for a specified period.

(d)	 Istisna’:	 An	 agreement	 to	 sell	 to	 a	 customer	 a	 non-existent	 asset	 that	 is	 to	 be	manufactured	 or	 build	
according to the agreed specifications and delivered on a specified future date at a predetermined selling 
price.

(e)	 Bai’	Al	Dayn:	Sale	of	debt	in	which	the	Customer	sells	his	payable	right	to	the	Bank	at	discount	price	or	at	
cost price on the spot payment basis.

(f)	 Kafalah:	Conjoining	the	guarantor’s	liability	to	the	guaranteed	party’s	liability	such	that	the	obligation	of	the	
guaranteed party is established as a joint liability of the guarantor and the guaranteed party.

(iii) held-to-maturity investments

	 Financial	assets	with	fixed	or	determinable	payments	and	fixed	maturity	are	classified	as	held-to-maturity	when	
the group and the Bank have the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.

	 Subsequent	 to	 initial	 recognition,	 held-to-maturity	 investments	 are	 measured	 at	 amortised	 cost	 using	 the	
effective	interest	method.	Gains	and	losses	are	recognised	in	statements	of	income	when	the	held-to-maturity	
investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

	 Held-to-maturity	investments	are	classified	as	non-current	assets	except	for	those	having	maturity	within	twelve	
(12)	months	after	the	reporting	date	which	are	classified	as	current.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(f) Financial assets (cont’d.)

(iv) Available-for-sale investments

	 Available-for-sale	financial	assets	are	financial	assets	that	are	designated	as	available	for	sale	or	are	not	classified	
in any of the three preceding categories.

	 After	 initial	recognition,	available-for-sale	financial	assets	are	measured	at	fair	value.	Any	gains	or	losses	from	
changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that impairment 
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective 
interest method are recognised in statements of income. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to statements of income as a reclassification adjustment 
when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised	 in	 statements	 of	 income.	Dividends	 on	 an	 available-for-sale	 equity	 instrument	 are	 recognised	 in	
statements of income when the group and the Bank’s right to receive payment is established.

 Investment in equity instruments which fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less impaired 
loss.

	 Available-for-sale	financial	assets	are	classified	as	non-current	assets	unless	they	are	expected	to	be	realised	
within	twelve	(12)	months	after	the	reporting	date.

(v) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. 
on derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of 
the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive 
income is recognised in statements of income.

 regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally 
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases and sales of 
financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the group and the Bank 
commit to purchase or sell the asset.

(vi) Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

(a) Derivative instruments

 The group and the Bank use derivatives such as interest/profit rate swaps, cross currency 
interest/profit rate swaps and forward contract. such derivative financial instruments are initially 
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently  
re-measured	at	fair	value.	These	derivatives	are	recorded	at	fair	value	and	are	carried	as	financial	assets	
when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses 
arising	from	changes	in	the	fair	value	of	derivatives	are	taken	directly	to	profit	or	loss	as	“Other	income”.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(f) Financial assets (cont’d.)

(vi) Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (cont’d.)

(b) hedge accounting

 The group and the Bank use derivatives instrument to manage their exposures to interest rate, foreign 
currency and credit risks. In order to manage particular risk, the group and the Bank apply hedge accounting 
for transactions which meet specified criteria.

 At the inception of each hedge relationship, the group and the Bank formally designates and documents the 
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instruments, including the nature of the risk, the risk 
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge and the method that will be used to assess 
the effectiveness of the hedging relationship at inception and ongoing basis.

 At each hedge effectiveness assessment date, a hedge relationship must demonstrate that it is highly 
effective on prospective and retrospective basis for the designated period in order to qualify for hedge 
accounting.

(i) Fair value hedge

 for designating and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative changes in the fair value of a hedge 
derivative is recognised in the statements of income. Meanwhile the cumulative changes in the fair value 
of the hedge item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedge 
item in the statements of financial position and the statements of income.

 If the hedging instruments expired or sold, terminated or exercised or where the hedge no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is terminated. for fair value hedges relating to 
items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over 
the	remaining	term	of	the	hedge	using	the	Effective	Interest/Profit	rate	(EIR)	method.	EIR	amortisation	
may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be 
adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

 If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is recognised immediately in 
the statements of income.

 The Bank has interest/profit rate swaps and cross currency interest/profit rate swaps that are used as 
hedge for the exposure of changes in the fair value of some of its Medium Term Notes/sukuk. see Note 
10 for more details.

(g) impairment of financial assets

 The group and the Bank assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired 
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the 
initial	recognition	of	the	asset	(an	incurred	‘loss	event’)	and	that	loss	event	(or	events)	has	an	impact	on	the	estimated	
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(g) impairment of financial assets (cont’d.)

 Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant 
financial difficulty, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the 
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(i) loans, advances, financing and receivables

 for loans, advances, financing and receivables carried at amortised cost, the group and the Bank first assess 
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually 
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the group and the Bank 
determine that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, they 
include the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assess them 
for impairment. financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding	future	expected	credit	losses	that	have	not	yet	been	incurred).	The	carrying	amount	of	the	asset	is	
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement 
of income. where appropriate, the calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a 
collateralised loans or receivable reflect the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs of obtaining 
and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

 Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest 
rate of the asset. The interest income is recorded as part of the overall interest income.

 loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery 
and all collaterals have been realised or have been transferred. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the 
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was 
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance 
account.	If	a	future	write-off	is	later	recovered,	the	recovery	is	credited	to	the	statements	of	income.

 In deriving the collective impairment estimates, the Bank makes reference to the publicly available data particularly 
relating	to	Probability	of	Default	(“PD”)	and	Loss	Given	Default	(“LGD”)	as	benchmark.	The	derived	PD	and	LGD	
are then adjusted for by the management where deemed necessary. 

(ii) held-to-maturity investments

	 The	Group	and	the	Bank	assess	at	each	reporting	date	whether	objective	evidence	of	impairment	of	held-to-
maturity investments exists as a result of one or more loss events and that loss event has an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the investments that can be reliably estimated.

 where there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised as the difference between 
the amortised cost and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, less any impairment loss previously 
recognised.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(g) impairment of financial assets (cont’d.)

(iii) Available-for-sale investments

 The group and the Bank assess at each reporting date whether objective evidence that a financial asset classified 
as	available-for-sale	has	impaired.

	 In	the	case	of	equity	investments	classified	as	available-for-sale,	an	objective	evidence	would	include	a	significant	
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. where such evidence exists, the cumulative 
loss is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment 
loss previously recognised in the statements of income, is removed from equity and recognised in the statements 
of income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reverse through statements of income; increase in 
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in equity. 

 Certain unquoted equity instruments are stated at cost less impairment as the fair value cannot be reliably 
measured.

	 In	 the	 case	of	 debt	 instruments	 classified	 as	 available-for-sale,	 impairment	 is	 assessed	based	on	 the	 same	
criteria	as	other	available-for-sale	 investments.	Where	 impairment	 losses	have	been	previously	 recognised	 in	
the statements of income, if there is a subsequent increase in the fair value of the debt instruments that can be 
objectively related to a credit event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised in the statements of 
income, the impairment loss is reversed through statements of income.

(h) Financial liabilities

 financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definitions of a financial liability.

 financial liabilities, within the scope of Mfrs 139, are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and 
only when, the group and the Bank become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

 The group’s and the Bank’s financial liabilities include borrowings, derivative liabilities as well as other payables. 
financial liabilities except derivatives and those liabilities under hedge accounting are recognised at amortised cost. 
Derivative	and	hedge	accounting	are	explained	as	per	note	2.4(f).

 A financial liability is derecognised when they are redeemed or extinguished. when an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in statements of 
income.

(i)  cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents	consist	of	cash	at	bank	and	on	hand,	deposits	with	banks/financial	institutions	and	short-
term, highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount 
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 for the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and 
pledged deposits, if any.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(j) Provisions
 
 Provisions are recognised if, as a result of past event, the group and the Bank have a present legal and constructive 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle	the	obligation.	Provisions	are	determined	by	discounting	the	expected	future	cash	flow	at	a	pre-tax	rate	that	
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

 Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

 where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated 
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is 
remote.	Possible	obligations,	whose	existence	will	only	be	confirmed	by	the	occurrence	or	non-occurrence	of	one	or	
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is 
remote.

 where the group and the Bank enter into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other 
companies, the group and the Bank treat the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes 
probable that the group and the Bank will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

(k) employee benefits

	 Short-term	employee	benefits	obligation	in	respect	of	salaries,	annual	bonuses,	paid	annual	leave	and	sick	leave	are	
measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. 

	 A	provision	is	recognised	for	the	amount	expected	to	be	paid	under	short-term	cash	bonus	if	the	Group	and	the	
Bank have a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employees and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 The group’s and the Bank’s contribution to statutory pension funds is charged to the income statements in the 
year to which they relate. once the contributions have been paid, the group and the Bank have no further payment 
obligations.

(l) insurance/Takaful contract liabilities

 These liabilities comprise premium/contribution liabilities and claims liabilities.

(i) Premium/contribution liabilities

 Provision for premium/contribution liabilities is the higher of the aggregate of the unearned Premium/Contribution 
Reserves	(“UPR”/“UCR”)	for	all	 lines	of	business	and	the	best	estimate	value	of	the	Unexpired	Risk	Reserves	
(“URR”)	with	a	provision	of	risk	margin	for	adverse	deviation.

 for the purpose of disclosure in the financial statements, premium/contribution liabilities and deferred income 
arising from bank guarantee are classified as deferred income.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(l) insurance/Takaful contract liabilities (cont’d.)

(i) Premium/contribution liabilities (cont’d.)

 unearned premium/contribution reserves

 uPr/uCr represent the portion of the net premiums/contribution of insurance/Takaful policies written that relate 
to the unexpired periods of policies at the end of the financial year. In determining the uPr/uCr at the balance 
sheet date, the following methods are used:

-	 In	respect	of	short	term	comprehensive	policies,	75%	is	recognised	over	the	period	of	risk	on	a	straight-line	
basis. The remaining 25% of the premium/contribution is transferred to the unearned premium/contribution 
reserves and is recognised in the following financial year.

-	 In	respect	of	medium	and	long	term	policies,	the	premium/contribution	is	recognised	over	the	period	of	risk	
on	a	straight-line	basis.

 unexpired risk reserves

 At each reporting date, the group and the Bank review the unexpired risks and a liability adequacy test is 
performed by an independent actuarial firm. urr is the prospective estimate of the expected future payments 
arising from future events insured under policies in force as at the valuation date and also includes allowance for 
the insurer’s expenses, including overheads and cost of reinsurance/retakaful, expected to be incurred during the 
unexpired period in administering these policies and settling the relevant claims, and expected future premium/
contribution refunds.

(ii) claims liabilities

 Claims liabilities are recognised when a claimable event occurs and/or the group and the Bank are notified. The 
amount of outstanding claims provision are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not 
settled at the end of the reporting period, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs 
less other recoveries. delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, 
therefore, the ultimate cost of these claims cannot be known with certainty at the end of reporting period.

 The liability is calculated at the reporting date by an independent actuarial firm using projection techniques 
that included risk margin for adverse deviation. The liabilities are derecognised when the contract expires, is 
discharged or cancelled.

(m) Deferred income arising from guarantee facility and fee from loan and financing facility

 Income arising from guarantee facility and fee from loan and financing facility are recognised over the period of risk on 
a	straight-line	basis.	Should	a	claim	be	paid	or	provided	for	in	respect	of	such	policies,	the	balance	of	the	premium	
shall be recognised in the financial year in which the claim is made.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(n) government Fund - Malaysian kitchen Financing Facility (“MkFF” or “the Fund”)

 The primary objective of the fund is to encourage Malaysian citizens and Malaysian companies involved in the food 
and beverages industry to venture abroad. In this respect, the Bank received funds from the government of Malaysia 
(“the	Government”)	to	be	disbursed	as	loans.	

 The total placement amount and the interest income shall be refunded to the government upon expiry of the 
agreement. The interest income earned on the loans financed by the government funds and from the investment of 
the unutilised fund are recognised as amount payable to government in accordance with the placement agreement. 

 The Bank received in return, a management fee of 1.5% of total placement amount. The fee income is recognised 
in	the	income	statement	in	accordance	with	Note	2.4(o)(iii).	Credit	losses	or	charges	as	a	result	of	loan	default	are	
shared based on agreed ratio between the Bank and the government of Malaysia. The portion of allowance for loan 
losses	borne	by	the	Bank	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement	in	accordance	with	Note	2.4(g)(i).

(o) revenue recognition
 
 revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the 

Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured. revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
measured.

(i) interest and similar income and expense

 for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale,	interest	income	or	expense	is	recorded	using	the	effective	interest	rate,	which	is	the	rate	that	
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument 
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The 
calculation	takes	into	account	all	contractual	terms	of	the	financial	instrument	(for	example,	repayment	options)	
and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part 
of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.

 for impaired financial assets where the value of the financial asset have been written down as a result of an 
impairment loss, interest/financing income continues to be recognised using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

(ii) Dividend income

 dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(iii) Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time

 fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include 
upfront and facility fees.

(iv) Premium income
 
 Premium income is recognised as income in the financial year in respect of risks assumed during that particular 

financial	year.	Method	of	deferral	of	premium	income	is	as	stated	in	Note	2.4(l).

 Premium income from reinsurance is recognised based on periodic advices received from ceding insurers.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(o) revenue recognition (cont’d.)

(v) islamic income recognition

 Income from financing and receivables is recognised in the statements of income using the effective profit 
method. The effective profit rate is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payment and receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. 
The calculation of the effective profit rate includes all contractual terms of the financial instrument and includes 
any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the 
effective profit rate.

 Murabahah/Tawarruq and istisna’
 Murabahah/Tawarruq and Istisna’ income are accrued on monthly basis on the cost outstanding at the prevailing 

effective profit rate over the duration of the financing.

 ijarah
 Ijarah income is recognised on the effective profit rate of the cost of the leased asset over the leased period.

 bai’ Al Dayn
 Bai Al dayn income is recognised monthly on the effective discount rate on the purchase price of the invoice over 

the duration of the financing.

 Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time
 fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include 

upfront and facility fees.

 Takaful income
 The source of Takaful income is derived from Takaful Contributions. Income is recognised based on specific 

percentage of the contribution amount from participants. The remaining amount is placed in risk fund which is 
pooled for underwriting purposes. 

(p) income tax

 Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred taxes. Current tax is the expected 
amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rate that 
has been enacted at the reporting date.

 deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax 
losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. deferred tax is not 
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or negative goodwill or from the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
accounting profit nor taxable profit.
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2. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg Policies (coNT’D.)

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

(p) income tax (cont’d.)

 deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability 
is settled, based on tax rate that has been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. deferred tax 
is recognised as income or an expense and included in the statements of income for the year, except when it arises 
from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also charged or credited 
directly in equity, or when it arises from a business combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred tax 
is included in the resulting goodwill or negative goodwill.

(q) Zakat

 Zakat is payable by the group and the Bank in compliance with the principle of shariah and in line with National fatwa 
Committee regulations.

(i) Method applied

 Zakat is calculated using the working capital method which is based on the adjusted net asset of the group and 
the Bank i.e. Net asset excludes any items that does not meet the condition for zakat assets and liabilities.

(ii) beneficiaries of zakat fund

 The method of zakat distribution, as being practised by the group and the Bank, is as follows:

•	 Zakat	is	paid	to	Pusat	Pungutan	Zakat	(“PPZ”)	based	on	certain	percentage	of	the	adjusted	net	asset	of	the	
Bank and the group;

•	 PPZ	will	determine	a	certain	percentage	of	the	zakat	for	the	Bank’s	own	distribution;	and

•	 The	distribution	of	zakat	will	be	allocated	by	the	Bank	to	three	(3)	groups	of	people	who	are	eligible	to	receive	
zakat (asnaf):

a. The destitute (fakir); 
b. The poor (miskin); and
c. Those in the cause of Allah (fi	sabilillah).

(r) Foreign currencies

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies of group entities at exchange rate at 
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date 
are	 retranslated	 to	 the	 functional	currency	at	 the	exchange	 rate	at	 that	date.	Non-monetary	assets	and	 liabilities	
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rate at the date of the transactions except for those 
that are measured at fair value, which are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that 
the fair value was determined. foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in the statements 
of income.

(s) Foreclosed properties

 foreclosed properties are those acquired in full or partial satisfaction of debts and are stated at the lower of cost and 
fair value.
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3. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg esTiMATes AND juDgMeNT

3.1 key sources of estimation uncertainty

 In the preparation of financial statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which the estimates is revised and in the 
future periods affected.

 significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgment used in applying accounting policies that have significant 
effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements include the following:

(a) going concern

 The Bank’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that 
it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. furthermore, management is not aware of 
any material uncertainties that may cost significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

(b) Allowance for impairment on loans, advances and financing

(i) individual impairment allowance

 The group and the Bank determine the allowance appropriate for each individual significant loans, advances and 
financing on an individual basis. The allowances are established based primarily on estimates of the realisable 
value of the collateral to secure the loans, advances and financing and are measured as the difference between 
the carrying amount of the loans, advances and financing and the present value of the expected future cash 
flows discounted at original effective interest/profit rate of the loans, advances and financing. All other loans, 
advances and financing that have been individually evaluated, but not considered to be individually impaired are 
assessed collectively for impairment.

(ii) collective impairment allowance

 for the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment under Mfrs 139 financial Instruments: recognition 
and	Measurement	 (“MFRS	139”),	 loans,	advances	and	financing	are	grouped	on	the	basis	of	similar	credit	risk	
characteristics, taking into account the historical loss experience of such financing.

 In deriving the collective impairment estimates, the Bank makes reference to the publicly available data particularly 
relating	to	Probability	of	Default	(“PD”)	and	Loss	Given	Default	(“LGD”)	as	benchmarks.	The	derived	PD	and	LGD	
are then adjusted for by the management where deemed necessary. 

(c) uncertainty in accounting estimates for credit insurance/Takaful business

 The principal uncertainty in the credit insurance/Takaful business arises from the technical provisions which include 
the premium/contribution liabilities and claims liabilities. The premium/contribution liabilities comprise unearned 
premium reserves and unexpired risk reserves while claim liabilities comprise provision for outstanding claims. The 
estimation bases for unearned premium/contribution reserves and unexpired risk reserves are explained in the related 
accounting policy statement.
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3. sigNiFicANT AccouNTiNg esTiMATes AND juDgMeNT (coNT’D.)

3.1 key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d.)

(c) uncertainty in accounting estimates for credit insurance/Takaful business (cont’d.)

 generally, claim liabilities are determined based upon previous claims experience, existing knowledge of events, 
the terms and conditions of the relevant policies and interpretation of circumstances. Particularly relevant is past 
experience with similar cases, historical claims development trends, legislative changes, judicial decisions and 
economic conditions. It is certain that actual future premiums/contribution and claims liabilities will not exactly 
develop as projected and may vary from the projections.

 The estimates of premiums/contribution and claims liabilities are therefore sensitive to various factors and 
uncertainties. The establishment of technical provisions in an inherently uncertain process and, as a consequence 
of this uncertainty, the eventual settlement of premiums/contribution and claims liabilities may vary from the initial 
estimates.

 There may be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of an insured event and the time it is actually reported. 
following the identification and notification of an insured loss, there may still be uncertainty as to the magnitude of 
the claim. There are many factors that will determine the level of uncertainty such as inflation, inconsistent judicial 
interpretations, legislative changes and claims handling procedures.

(d) Deferred tax assets

 deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future 
tax	planning	(see	Note	12).

4. cAsh AND bANk bAlANces

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Cash and bank balances  17,279  38,932 
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5. DePosiTs AND PlAceMeNTs WiTh bANks AND oTher FiNANciAl iNsTiTuTioNs
 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

deposits and placements with:

 licensed banks  1,024,284  1,141,399 

 other financial institutions  946,674  563,877 

 1,970,958  1,705,276 

 Included in deposits and placements with licensed banks and other financial institutions are placements of the unutilised 
fund	from	the	Government	of	Malaysia	under	MKFF	Scheme	amounting	to	RM186,576,000	(2013:	RM173,622,460).	The	
accounting	policy	in	respect	of	MKFF	Scheme	is	disclosed	in	Note	2.4(n).

6. iNVesTMeNT securiTies

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

group and bank

Available-for-sale	investments:

 unquoted debt securities  110,971  435,616 

Held-to-maturity	investments:

 unquoted debt securities  10,003  10,005 

 120,974  445,621

7. AMouNT Due FroM exPorT creDiT reFiNANciNg (“ecr”) DebTors

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Amount due from participating licensed banks under ECr scheme  410,647  382,345 

The maturity structure of the ECr debtors are as follows:

Maturity within one year  410,647  382,345 

 The amount represents block discounting of bills facility provided to participating banks in Malaysia granted under ECr 
scheme. The primary objective of the scheme is for the promotion of Malaysian export by offering competitive rates to banks 
participating	in	the	ECR	Scheme	for	on-lending	to	exporters.	
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8. loANs, ADVANces AND FiNANciNg 
 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

At amortised cost

loans, advances and financing  8,241,014  5,812,766 

loans under Mkff scheme  19,340  21,320 

staff loans  2,067  2,585 

gross loans, advances and financing  8,262,421  5,836,671 

less:  Allowance for impaired loans, advances and financing:

	 	 	 -		Individual	allowance 	(192,796) 	(407,954)

	 	 	 -		Collective	allowance 	(135,761) 	(127,209)

Net loans, advances and financing  7,933,864  5,301,508 

(i)	 Gross	loans,	advances	and	financing	analysed	by	facility	are	as	follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Buyer Credit  704,884  832,385 

overseas Contract financing  243,538  448,443 

overseas Project financing  4,465,821  2,852,740 

supplier Credit  170,614  161,909 

Export finance  4,061  4,056 

Supplier	Financing	-	i  370,390  436,952 

Term	Financing	-	i  1,881,505  438,367 

Overseas	Contract	Financing	- i  60,440  15,256 

Overseas	Project	Financing	-	i  339,761  622,658 

Malaysian	Kitchen	Financing	Facility	(“MKFF”)  19,340  21,320 

staff loans and advances  2,067  2,585 

 8,262,421  5,836,671 

	 Included	in	Term	Financing	-	i are amount that have been pledged for sukuk Issuance amounting to rM388,586,798.
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8. loANs, ADVANces AND FiNANciNg (coNT’D.)

(ii)	 Gross	loans,	advances	and	financing	analysed	by	contractual	maturity	are	as	follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

within one year  1,907,135  1,304,413 

one year to three years  845,348  1,480,482 

Three years to five years  1,671,830  327,324 

over five years  3,838,108  2,724,452 

 8,262,421  5,836,671 

(iii)	 Gross	loans,	advances	and	financing	analysed	by	interest/profit	rate	sensitivity	are	as	follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

conventional

 fixed rate  171,551  213,365 

 variable rate  5,438,775  4,110,076 

islamic

 fixed rate  670,675  553,122 

 variable rate  1,981,420  960,108 

 8,262,421  5,836,671 
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8. loANs, ADVANces AND FiNANciNg (coNT’D.)

(iv)	 Movements	of	impaired	loans,	advances	and	financing	(“impaired	loans”)	are	as	follows:	

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

At 1 January  884,357  812,321 

Impaired during the year  243,880  99,821 

Reclassified	as	non-impaired 	(14,192) 	(54,812)

recoveries 	(49,359) 	(11,789)

Amount written off 	(401,900) 	(23,948)

Exchange differences  63,925  62,764 

At 31 december  726,711  884,357 

gross impaired loans as a percentage of gross loans, advances and financing

-		with	ECR	debtors 8.4% 14.2%

-		without	ECR	debtors 8.8% 15.2%

Net impaired loans as a percentage of gross loans, advances and financing

-		with	ECR	debtors 6.2% 7.7%

-		without	ECR	debtors 6.5% 8.2%
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8. loANs, ADVANces AND FiNANciNg (coNT’D.)

(v)	 Movements	in	the	allowance	for	impaired	loans,	advances	and	financing	are	as	follows:
 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Individual allowance

At 1 January  407,954  400,582 

Allowance	made	during	the	year	(Note	30)  183,341  60,914 

Amount	written	back	(Note	30) 	(34,358) 	(62,272)

Net charge to income statement  148,983 	(1,358)

Amount written off 	(401,900) (23,947)

Allowance recoverable from the government of Malaysia for Mkff scheme  1,149  1,938 

Interest accrued on impaired loans, advances and financing  126 	(607)

forex revaluation loss  36,484  31,346 

At 31 december  192,796  407,954 

Collective allowance

At 1 January  127,209  111,118 

Allowance	(made	during	the	year	(Note	30))  8,552  16,091 

At 31 december  135,761  127,209 

Breakdown of collective allowance:

from impaired loans, advance and financing  14,438  12,314 

From	non-impaired	loans,	advance	and	financing  121,323  114,895 

 135,761  127,209 

As % of net loans, advances and financing 1.68% 2.34%

(vi)	 Gross	impaired	loans,	advances	and	financing	analysed	by	geographical	area	are	as	follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Malaysia  38,328  264,181 

East Asia  273,095  445,653 

south Asia  108,070  101,271 

Africa  30,405  27,050 

Europe  183,490  8,087 

America  2,274  2,330 

oceania  91,049  35,785 

 726,711  884,357 
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8. loANs, ADVANces AND FiNANciNg (coNT’D.)

(vii)	 Gross	impaired	loans,	advances	and	financing	analysed	by	industry	are	as	follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Primary agriculture  16,603  20,019 

Manufacturing  94,955  87,727 

Transport, storage and communication  71,491  25,338 

Construction  130,325  338,985 

wholesale and retail trade, and restaurants and hotels  85,199  93,714 

others  328,138  318,574 

 726,711  884,357 

9. iNsurANce receiVAbles

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Amount	due	from	agents,	brokers	and	co-insurers  1,166  1,440 

less: Allowance for doubtful debts 	(605) 	(605)

 561  835

10. DeriVATiVe FiNANciAl iNsTruMeNTs
 
 The notional amounts, recorded at gross, is the amount of derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the 

basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions 
outstanding at the year end and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit risk.
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10. DeriVATiVe FiNANciAl iNsTruMeNTs (coNT’D.)

 The table below shows the fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their 
notional amounts. In accordance with Mfrs 132, derivative assets and derivative liabilities are disclosed on a gross basis as 
it is the Bank’s practice to settle those derivative on a gross basis.

group and bank

2014 2013

Fair Value  Notional Fair Value  Notional 

 Assets  liability  Amount  Assets  liability  Amount 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

derivative used as 
fair value hedges

Interest/profit rate swaps  25,432  13,318  3,716,780 	-	  31,070  1,844,107 

Cross currency interest/ 
profit rate swap  4,167  16,887  672,910 	-	  26,774  548,275 

derivative held for trading

forward foreign exchange 
contract 	-	 	-	 	-	  379  491  48,567 

Total  29,599  30,205  4,389,690  379  58,335  2,440,949

 At their inception, derivatives often involve only mutual exchange of promises with little or no transfer of consideration. 
However, these instruments frequently involve a high degree of leverage and are very volatile. A relatively small movement in 
the value of the asset, rate or index underlying a derivative contract may have a significant impact on the profit or loss of the 
Bank.

	 Over-the-counter	derivative	may	expose	the	Bank	to	the	risks	associated	with	absence	of	an	exchange	market	on	which	to	
close out an open position.

 swaps

	 Swaps	are	contractual	agreements	between	two	parties	 to	exchange	streams	of	payments	over-time	based	on	specified	
notional amounts, in relation to movements in a specified underlying index such an interest/profit rate, foreign currency rate 
or equity index. 

 Interest/profit rate swaps relate to contracts taken out by the Bank with other financial institutions in which the Bank either 
receives or pays a floating rate of interest/profit, respectively, in return for paying or receiving a fixed rate of interest/profit. The 
payment flows are usually netted against each other with the difference being paid by one party to the other.

 In a cross currency interest/profit rate swap, the Bank swaps its fixed coupon interest rate into a floating rate coupon in 
different currencies. 

 Forwards

 The Bank enters into forward Exchange Contract to sell or buy a specific amount of currency at a specified exchange rate for 
settlement in the future. The contract is entered for the Bank’s own requirement or on behalf of customer based on approved 
foreign exchange line.  
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10. DeriVATiVe FiNANciAl iNsTruMeNTs (coNT’D.)

 Fair values

 disclosure concerning the fair value of derivatives are provided in Note 36.

 Fair value hedge 

 The Bank’s fair value hedges consist of interest/profit rate swaps and cross currency interest/profit rate swaps. The financial 
instruments	hedged	 for	 interest/profit	 rate	 risk	 and	 foreign	currency	 risk	 consist	 of	 the	Medium	Term	Notes	 ("MTN")	 and	
Multicurrency sukuk Programme issued by the Bank and the group respectively.

 
 As at 31 december 2014, the Bank has entered into the following derivative financial instruments:

	 Interest/Profit	Rate	Swap	(“IRS”)	Contract	is	used	to	swap	the	Bank’s	fixed	coupon	MTN/Sukuk	into	floating	rate	IRS.	The	
purpose is to convert the liability profile of a fixed MTN/sukuk into floating rate cost with short term resets to match the Bank’s 
asset profile. This strategy would enable a stable revenue margin over the Assets & liabilities profile arising from the MTN 
programme/sukuk programme whilst maintaining market based pricing of its asset. 

	 Cross	Currency	 Interest	Rate	Swap	 (“CCIRS”)	Contract	 is	 used	 to	 swap	 the	Bank’s	 fixed	coupon	MTN	 into	 floating	 rate	
coupon on a different currency. The purpose is to convert the liability profile of a fixed MTN into floating rate cost with short 
term resets to match the Bank’s asset profile. This strategy would enable a stable revenue margin over the Assets & liabilities 
profile arising from the MTN programme whilst maintaining market based pricing of its asset. 

 full details of hedging as follows:

group and bank  
2014

Notional 
amount hedge instrument: interest rate swap

hedged item:  
MTN/sukuk

hedging 
relationship Nature of risk

usd350 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.755%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd75 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.765%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd50 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.78%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd25 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.75%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd63 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.85%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 3.509% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate
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group and bank
2014 (cont’d.)

Notional 
amount hedge instrument: interest rate swap

hedged item: 
MTN/sukuk

hedging 
relationship Nature of risk

usd75 
million

Floating	rate	of	6	months	Libor	+	1.264%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	semi-annually)

fixed 2.874% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd75 
million

Floating	rate	of	6	months	Libor	+	1.2615%	
pa	(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	semi-annually)

fixed 2.874% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd75 
million

Floating	rate	of	6	months	Libor	+	1.26%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	semi-annually)

fixed 2.874% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd75 
million

Floating	rate	of	6	months	Libor	+	1.264%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	semi-annually)

fixed 2.874% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd50 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.01%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.85% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd50 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.00%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.66% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd100 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.40%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 4.25% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

10. DeriVATiVe FiNANciAl iNsTruMeNTs (coNT’D.)

 Fair value hedge (cont’d.) 

 full details of hedging as follows (cont’d.):
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10. DeriVATiVe FiNANciAl iNsTruMeNTs (coNT’D.)

 Fair value hedge (cont’d.)

	 Full	details	of	hedging	as	follows	(cont’d.):

group and bank
2014 (cont’d.)

Notional 
amount

hedge instrument: cross currency  
interest rate swap hedged item: MTN

hedging 
relationship Nature of risk

Hkd402 
million

usd51.82 million at floating rate of 3 months 
USD	Libor	+	0.88%	p.a	(receive	fixed	HKD	
annually/pay	USD	quarterly)	

fixed 1.6% per 
annum	(payable	
annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate & 
foreign currency 
risk

Hkd596 
million

usd76.83 million at floating rate of 3 months 
USD	Libor	+	1.24%	p.a	(receive	fixed	HKD	
annually/pay	USD	quarterly)	

fixed 2.95% per 
annum	(payable	
annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate & 
foreign currency 
risk

Hkd300 
million

sgd47.88 million at floating rate of 6 months 
SGD	SOR	+	1.00%	p.a	(receive	fixed	HKD	
annually/pay	float	SGD	semi-annually)

fixed 2.95% per 
annum	(payable	
annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate & 
foreign currency 
risk

JPy3 billion usd29.34 million at floating rate of 3 months 
Libor	+	0.94%	p.a	(receive	fixed	JPY	 
semi-annually/pay	float	USD	quarterly)

fixed 0.65% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate & 
foreign currency 
risk

group and bank
2013

Notional 
amount hedge instrument: interest rate swap hedged item: MTN

hedging 
relationship Nature of risk

usd350 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.755%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd75 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.765%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd50 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.78%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd25 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.75%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 2.875% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate

usd63 
million

Floating	rate	of	3	months	Libor	+	1.85%	pa	
(receive	fixed	USD	semi-annually/pay	float	
USD	quarterly)

fixed 3.509% per 
annum	(payable	
semi-annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate
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group and bank 
2013 (cont’d.)

Notional 
amount

hedge instrument: cross currency  
interest rate swap hedged item: MTN

hedging 
relationship Nature of risk

Hkd402 
million

usd51.82 million at floating rate of 3 months 
USD	Libor	+	0.88%	p.a	(receive	fixed	HKD	
annually/pay	USD	quarterly)	

fixed 1.6% per 
annum	(payable	
annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate & 
foreign currency 
risk

Hkd596 
million

usd76.83 million at floating rate of 3 months 
USD	Libor	+	1.24%	p.a	(receive	fixed	HKD	
annually/pay	USD	quarterly)	

fixed 2.95% per 
annum	(payable	
annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate & 
foreign currency 
risk

Hkd300 
million

sgd47.88 million at floating rate of 6 months 
SGD	SOR	+	1.00%	p.a	(receive	fixed	HKD	
annually/pay	float	SGD	semi	annually)

fixed 2.95% per 
annum	(payable	
annually)

fair value hedge Interest rate & 
foreign currency 
risk

	 The	gain/(loss)	arising	from	the	fair	value	hedges	is	as	follows:
 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Gain/(loss)	arising	from	fair	value	hedges:

Hedged items  56,560 	(77,792)

Hedging instruments 	(74,857)  73,073 

	(18,297) 	(4,719)

11. oTher AsseTs

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Interest	receivables	(excluding	interest	on	loans,	advances	and	financing)  47,671  32,182 

other receivables, deposits and prepayments  20,959  21,689 

foreclosed property  69,707  69,707 

Tax prepayment  24,627  34,224 

 162,964  157,802 

10. DeriVATiVe FiNANciAl iNsTruMeNTs (coNT’D.)

 Fair value hedge (cont’d.) 

 full details of hedging as follows (cont’d.):
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12. DeFerreD TAx AsseTs

group bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

At 1 January  7,633  28,660  9,948  30,973 

Recognised	in	profit	or	loss	(Note	31)  5,582 	(21,027)  5,582 	(21,025)

At 31 december  13,215  7,633  15,530  9,948 

 Deferred tax assets

 other 
 deductable 
 temporary 

 differences 
 unutilised 
 tax losses 

 unabsorbed 
 capital 

 allowances  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

group

At 1 January 2013  34,079 	-	 	-	  34,079 

recognised in income statement 	(20,991) 	-	 	-	 	(20,991)

At 31 december 2013  13,088 	-	 	-	  13,088 

recognised in income statement  6,777 	-	 	-	  6,777 

At 31 december 2014  19,865 	-	 	-	  19,865 

bank

At 1 January 2013  36,392 	-	 	-	  36,392 

recognised in income statement 	(20,989) 	-	 	-	 	(20,989)

At 31 december 2013  15,403 	-	 	-	  15,403 

recognised in income statement  6,777 	-	 	-	  6,777 

At 31 december 2014  22,180 	-	 	-	  22,180 
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12. DeFerreD TAx AsseTs (coNT’D.)

 Deferred tax liabilities

 Accelerated
 capital 

 allowance
on property

and 
equipment 

 rM’000 

group

At 1 January 2013 	(5,419)

recognised in income statement 	(36)

At 31 december 2013 	(5,455)

recognised in income statement 	(1,195)

At 31 december 2014 	(6,650)

bank

At 1 January 2013 	(5,419)

recognised in income statement 	(36)

At 31 december 2013 	(5,455)

recognised in income statement 	(1,195)

At 31 december 2014 	(6,650)

 Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

group bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

deferred tax assets  19,865  13,088  22,180  15,403 

deferred tax liabilities 	(6,650) 	(5,455) 	(6,650) 	(5,455)

 deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relates to the same taxation authority. 
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12. DeFerreD TAx AsseTs (coNT’D.)

 No deferred tax has been recognised for the following items:

group bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

unutilised tax losses 

-	 Bank 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	

-	 Subsidiary  67,289  67,289 	-	 	-	

 67,289  67,289 	-	 	-	

Tax rate 25% 25% 25% 25%

 16,822  16,822 	-	 	-	

 The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation unless there is a substantial change in 
shareholders	 (more	 than	50%).	 If	 there	 is	 substantial	 change	 in	 shareholders,	 the	unutilised	 tax	 losses	carried-forward	 is	
amounting	to	RM67,289,000	(2013:	RM67,289,000).

13. iNVesTMeNT iN subsiDiAries AND joiNTlY coNTrolleD eNTiTY

(a)  investment in subsidiaries
 

bank

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Unquoted	shares	-	at	cost  73,419  73,419 

less: Allowance for diminution in value 	(9,272) 	(9,265)

 64,147  64,154 

 The subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company
Principal
activities

country of
incorporation

effective ownership

interest (%)

2014 2013 

Malaysian Export Credit Insurance Berhad  dormant Malaysia  100  100 

Pengkalan Megaria sdn. Bhd.  dormant Malaysia  100  100 

Morning glory Company limited **  dormant laos  100  100 

 ** Not audited by Ernst & Young, Malaysia
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13. iNVesTMeNT iN subsiDiAries AND joiNTlY coNTrolleD eNTiTY (coNT’D.)

(a)  investment in subsidiaries (cont’d.)

 Malaysian Export Credit Insurance Berhad, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank was formerly engaged in the provision 
of export and domestic credit insurance facilities and guarantees. The Company is currently dormant.

 Pengkalan Megaria sdn. Bhd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank was set up to act as a trustee for a vessel which 
was previously assigned as a collateral for a financing given by the Bank to a borrower. The Company is currently dormant 
and currently in the process of members voluntarily winding up. 

 Morning glory, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank was set up to facilitate the takeover and administer a hotel in laos in  
which was previously assigned as a collateral for a financing given by the Bank to a borrower. The Company is currently dormant. 

(b)  investment in jointly controlled entity
 
 Morning glory owns 51% of Masceana Co ltd, a joint venture company that was set up to facilitate takeover of the hotel 

mentioned	in	Note	13(a).	The	share	capital	of	the	Company	is	USD2.00	and	it	is	currently	dormant.
 
 

14. iNVesTMeNT ProPerTies 
 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

cost

At 1 January  1,390  1,390 

disposal 	-	 	-	

At 31 december  1,390  1,390 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

At 1 January

 Accumulated depreciation  369  351 

 Accumulated impairment losses  530  530 

 899  881 

Charged	for	the	year	(Note	27)  18  18 

At 31 december  917  899 

carrying amount  473  491 

Included in the investment properties carrying amount are:

 freehold land  400  400 

 Buildings  16  33 

 long term leasehold building with unexpired lease period of more than 50 years  57  58 

 473  491 

fair value of investment properties  1,210  780 
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14. iNVesTMeNT ProPerTies (coNT’D.)

 The investment properties were valued by raine & Horne International Zaki & Partners sdn. Bhd., an independent professional 
valuer on 7 october 2014. The fair value is determined by reference to open market values based on an existing use basis.

 This method of valuation seeks to determine the value of the properties being valued by comparing and adopting as a 
yardstick recent transactions and sale evidences involving similar properties in the vicinity.

 Management has conducted an internal assessment regarding the latest market value of the investment properties and there 
is no significant difference noted in market value between the last valuation done by professional valuer and market value as 
at 31 december 2014.

15. iNTANgible AsseTs

group and bank

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

computer software

cost

At 1 January  3,717  3,717 

At 31 december  3,717  3,717 

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January  3,380  2,927 

Charged	for	the	year	(Note	27)  336  453 

At 31 december  3,716  3,380 

carrying amount  1  337 
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16. ProPerTY AND equiPMeNT

 Freehold 
 land  Building 

 Office 
 equipment 

 Renovation 
 and 

 improvements 

 
 Motor 

 vehicles 

 Furniture, 
electrical 

 fittings and 
 equipment  Computer 

 Work-in- 
 progress  Total 

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000 

Group and Bank

Cost

At 1 January 2014  30,000  33,000  1,269  21,726  802  4,826  8,013  22,282  121,918 

Additions - -  213  5  148  184  1,666  2,523  4,739 

Disposals - -  (108)  -  (107)  (17)  -  -  (232)

At 31 December 
2014  30,000  33,000  1,374  21,731  843  4,993  9,679  24,805  126,425 

Accumulated 
depreciation

At 1 January 2014  -  2,970  858  6,186  597  2,851  6,778  -  20,240 

Charged for the year -  660  182  2,173  103  581  1,124 -  4,823

Disposal -  -  (108)  -  (107)  (17)  -  -  (232)

At 31 December 
2014  -  3,630  932  8,359  593  3,415  7,902  -  24,831 

Carrying amount

At 31 December 
2014  30,000  29,370  442  13,372  250  1,578  1,777  24,805  101,594 

Cost

At 1 January 2013  30,000  33,000  1,046  19,023  773  4,511  7,193  19,505  115,051 

Additions  -  -  223  150  92  318  820  5,330  6,933 

Reclassifications  -  -  -  2,553  -  -  -  (2,553)  - 

Disposals  -  -  -  -  (63)  (3)  -  -  (66)

At 31 December 
2013  30,000  33,000  1,269  21,726  802  4,826  8,013  22,282  121,918 

Accumulated 
depreciation

At 1 January 2013  -  2,310  728  4,023  551  2,352  6,007  -  15,971 

Charged for the year  -  660  130  2,163  109  502  771  -  4,335 

Disposal  -  -  -  -  (63)  (3)  -  -  (66)

At 31 December 
2013  -  2,970  858  6,186  597  2,851  6,778  -  20,240 

Carrying amount

At 31 December 
2013  30,000  30,030  411  15,540  205  1,975  1,235  22,282  101,678
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17. borroWiNgs

group and bank

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

(i)		 Term	loans/Revolving	credits	-	unsecured

  repayable within one year  2,138,806  1,936,535 

  one year to two years  17,483  16,379 

  Three years to five years  17,483  225,446 

  over five years  191,953  170,100 

 2,365,725  2,348,460 

(ii)		 Medium	Term	Notes/Sukuk

  Three years to five years  4,475,062  1,898,121 

  over five years  619,800  542,825 

 5,094,862  2,440,946 

Total borrowings  7,460,587  4,789,406 
 

 The amount due to define sPv is at the Bank level. 
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17. borroWiNgs (coNT’D.)

 repayment based on the currencies of the borrowings are as follows:

group and bank

Year of
maturity

 carrying 
 amount 

 under 1 
 year 

 1 - 2 
 years 

 3 - 5 
 years 

 over 5 
 years 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

-	USD 2022  5,231,362  1,036,892  17,483  3,937,933  239,054 

-	RM 2022  170,100 	-	 	-	 	-	  170,100 

-	EURO 2017  286,837  286,837 	-	 	-	 	-	

-	GBP 2016  606,809  606,809 	-	 	-	 	-	

-	SGD 2019  181,535  22,977 	-	  158,558 	-	

-	AUD 2018  314,044  185,291 	-	  128,753 	-	

-	HKD 2023  581,133 	-	 	-	  178,534  402,599 

-	JPY 2019  88,767 	-	 	-	  88,767 	-	

 7,460,587  2,138,806  17,483  4,492,545  811,753 

2013

-	USD 2022  2,956,631  1,105,606  16,379  1,644,965  189,681 

-	RM 2022  170,100 	-	 	-	 	-	  170,100 

-	EURO 2017  337,569  157,161 	-	  180,408 	-	

-	GBP 2014  484,145  484,145 	-	 	-	 	-	

-	SGD 2014  56,380  56,380 	-	 	-	 	-	

-	AUD 2018  264,477  133,243 	-	  131,234 	-	

-	HKD 2023  520,104 	-	 	-	  166,960  353,144 

 4,789,406  1,936,535  16,379  2,123,567  712,925 

 Term loans/Revolving credits
 

(a)	 Revolving	multi-currency	loan	of	one	(1)	year	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD60,000,000	(approximately	RM209,790,000)	
(2013:	USD60,000,000	(approximately	RM196,530,000))	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

 The loan was obtained on 14 september 2006 and subsequently renewed on 6 september 2012. The loan was 
revised to usd60,000,000 on 16 July 2013 and interest rate of the loan was revised to 0.80% on 4 August 2014. 
Interest	rate	on	the	loan	is	charged	at	the	rate	of	0.80%	(2013:	0.85%)	per	annum	above	the	cost	of	fund	(“COF”).

(b)	 Term	 loan	of	USD20,000,000	 (approximately	RM69,930,000)	 (2013:	USD20,000,000	 (approximately	RM65,510,000))	
repayable	by	thirty	two	(32)	quarterly	instalments	commencing	September	2007.

	 The	 loan	was	obtained	on	30	June	2006.	 Interest	on	 the	 loan	 is	charged	at	 the	 rate	of	0.33%	(2013:	0.33%)	above	
London	Interbank	Offered	Rate	(“LIBOR”)	per	annum.	This	loan	was	fully	repaid	during	the	year.
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17. borroWiNgs (coNT’D.)

 Term loans/Revolving credits (cont’d.)

(c)	 Term	loan	of	USD35,000,000	(approximately	RM122,380,000)	(2013:	USD35,000,000	(approximately	RM114,642,500)).	
The	loan	is	repayable	semi-annually	within	twenty	eight	(28)	semi-annual	instalments	from	12	August	2008	and	ending	on	
12 february 2022.

	 The	loan	was	obtained	on	25	April	2006.	Interest	on	the	loan	is	charged	at	0.395%	(2013:	0.395%)	above	LIBOR	per	
annum.

(d)	 Revolving	multi-currency	loan	of	six	(6)	months	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD150,000,000	(approximately	RM524,475,000)	
(2013:	USD20,000,000	(approximately	RM65,510,000)).

 The loan was obtained on 25 June 2009. The principal and interest of the loan was revised to usd100,000,000 and 
0.80% respectively on March 2014 and further revised to usd150,000,000 on July 2014. Interest on the loan is charged 
at	the	rate	of	0.80%	(2013:	1.00%)	above	LIBOR	per	annum.

(e)	 Term	 loan	 up	 to	 an	 aggregate	 of	 USD100,000,000	 (approximately	 RM349,650,000)	 (2013:	 USD100,000,000	
(approximately	RM327,550,000)).	The	loan	is	repayable	semi-annually	after	a	grace	period	of	thirty	(30)	months	from	21	
April 2012 and ending on 21 october 2014.

 
	 The	loan	was	obtained	on	22	October	2009.	Interest	on	the	loan	is	charged	at	0.60%	(2013:	0.60%)	above	LIBOR	per	

annum. This loan was fully repaid during the year.

(f)	 Commodity	Murabahah	Revolving	Credit-i	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD70,000,000	(approximately	RM244,760,000	(2013:	
USD40,000,000	(approximately	RM131,020,000))	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

 The financing was obtained on 10 November 2010 for usd30,000,000, renewed on 14 december 2011 
and 21 March 2014 with an additional amount of usd10,000,000 and usd30,000,000 respectively. 
Profit rate on the financing is charged at the rate of 0.80% and revised to 0.50% in March 2014  
(2013:	0.80%)	above	the	Islamic	Cost	of	Fund	per	annum.

(g)	 Revolving	US	dollar	loan	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD100,000,000	(approximately	RM349,650,000)	(2013:	USD100,000,000	
(approximately	RM327,550,000))	.

 The loan was obtained on 28 January 2011. Interest on loan is charged at the rate of 0.80% above lIBor per annum 
(2013:	0.80%).

(h)	 Revolving	 Euro	 loan	 of	 one	 (1)	 year	 up	 to	 an	 aggregate	 of	 EUR30,000,000	 (approximately	 RM127,490,000)	 (2013:	
EUR30,000,000)	(approximately	RM135,306,000))	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

	 The	loan	was	obtained	on	12	March	2012.	Interest	rate	on	the	loan	is	charged	at	the	rate	of	0.80%	(2013:	0.80%)	per	
annum	above	Euro	Interbank	Offer	Rate	(“EURIBOR”).

(i)	 Structured	Commodity	Financing-i	of	one	(1)	year	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD35,000,000	(approximately	RM122,380,000)	
(2013:	USD35,000,000	(approximately	RM114,642,000)).

 The financing was obtained on 25 July 2012 for usd25,000,000 and was renewed on 11 July 2013 with an additional 
amount	of	USD10,000,000.	Profit	rate	on	the	financing	is	charged	at	the	rate	of	1.30%	(2013:	1.30%)	above	LIBOR	per	
annum. 
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17. borroWiNgs (coNT’D.)

 Term loans/Revolving credits (cont’d.)

(j)	 Term	loan	of	EUR40,000,000	(approximately	RM169,990,000)	(2013:	EUR40,000,000)	(approximately	RM180,408,000))	
repayable	within	a	period	of	five	(5)	years.

 
	 The	loan	was	obtained	on	3	September	2012.	Interest	on	the	loan	is	charged	at	the	rate	of	0.80%	(2013:	0.80%)	above	

EurIBor per annum. 

(k)	 Multi-Currency	 Commodity	 Murabahah	 Revolving	 Credit-i	 up	 to	 an	 aggregate	 of	 USD85,000,000	 (approximately	
RM297,200,000)	(2013:	USD85,000,000	(approximately	RM278,417,500))	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

 The financing was obtained on 14 June 2013 for usd25,000,000. The limit was revised to usd85,000,000 on 
12 August 2013 and profit rate was reduced to 0.80% per annum on 4 August 2014. Profit rate on the financing is 
charged	at	the	rate	of	0.80%	(2013:	0.85%)	above	the	Islamic	Cost	of	Fund	per	annum.

(l)	 Commodity	 Murabahah	 Revolving	 Credit-i	 up	 to	 an	 aggregate	 of	 USD25,000,000	 (approximately	 RM87,410,000)	 
(2013:	USD25,000,000	(approximately	RM81,887,500))	approximately	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

	 The	financing	was	obtained	on	13	May	2013.	Profit	rate	on	the	financing	is	charged	at	the	rate	of	0.50%	(2013:	0.50%)	
above the Islamic Cost of fund per annum.

(m)	 Revolving	multi-currency	loan	of	one	(1)	year	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD100,000,000	(approximately	RM349,650,000)	 
(2013:	USD100,000,000	(approximately	RM327,550,000))	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

	 The	loan	was	obtained	on	2	April	2013.	Interest	rate	on	the	loan	is	charged	at	the	rate	of	0.70%	(2013:	0.70%)	per	annum	
above lIBor.

(n)	 Commodity	 Murabahah	 Revolving	 Credit-i	 up	 to	 an	 aggregate	 of	 USD40,000,000	 (approximately	 RM139,860,000)	 
(2013:	USD40,000,000	(approximately	RM131,020,000))	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

 The financing was obtained on 15 August 2013. Profit rate on the financing is charged at the rate of 0.75%  
(2013:	0.75%)	above	the	Islamic	Cost	of	Fund	per	annum.

(o)	 Multi-Currency	Murabahah	Revolving	Credit-i	up	to	an	aggregate	of	EUR120,000,000	(approximately	RM509,980,000)	
(2013:	EUR120,000,000	(approximately	RM541,224,000))	renewable	after	one	(1)	year.

 The financing was obtained on 18 september 2013. Profit rate on the financing is charged at the rate of 0.80% 
(2013:	0.80%)	above	EURIBOR.

(p)	 Revolving	US	dollar	loan	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD50,000,000	(approximately	RM174,830,000).

 The loan was obtained on 6 december 2013. Interest on loan is charged at the rate of 0.80% above lIBor per annum.

(q)	 Revolving	multi	currency	loan	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD50,000,000	(approximately	RM174,830,000).

 The loan was obtained on 17 february 2014. Interest on loan is charged at the rate of 0.80% above lIBor per annum.

(r)	 Revolving	US	dollar	loan	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD50,000,000	(approximately	RM174,830,000).

 The loan was obtained on 6 August 2014. Interest on loan is charged at the rate of 0.42% above lIBor per annum.
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17. borroWiNgs (coNT’D.)

 Term loans/Revolving credits (cont’d.)

(s)	 Commodity	Murabahah	Revolving	Credit-i	up	to	an	aggregate	of	USD55,000,000	(approximately	RM192,310,000).	

 The financing was obtained on 24 september 2014. Profit rate on the financing is charged at the rate of 0.50% above the 
lIBor per annum.

(t)	 Included	 in	 the	 term	 loan	 is	 a	 placement	 from	 the	Government	 of	Malaysia	 for	Malaysian	 Kitchen	 Financing	 Facility	
scheme amounting to rM170,100,000 for the purpose of providing loans to qualified applicants under the Malaysia The 
Truly Asian kitchen or Malaysia kitchen Programme.

	 The	placement	is	interest-free	and	repayable	after	a	period	of	fifteen	(15)	years	from	dates	of	disbursement	of	14	December	
2007 and 15 January 2009.

 Medium Term Notes

	 In	June	2012,	the	Bank	established	multicurrency	Medium	Term	Notes	(MTN)	programme.	The	maximum	principal	of	notes	
that	may	be	issued	under	the	programme	is	USD1,500,000,000	(approximately	RM4,913,250,000).	Under	the	programme,	
the Bank may from time to time issue notes in series or tranches, which may be denominated in usd or any other currency 
deemed appropriate at the time. Each series or tranche of notes may be issued in various amounts and tenures, and may bear 
fixed or floating of interest.
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17. borroWiNg (coNT’D.)

 Medium Term Notes (cont’d.)

 Issuances made as at year end are as follows:

Date of issuance Nominal value Tenure coupon rate Fixed/Floating

14 June 2012 usd500 mil 5.5 years 2.875% fixed

11 July 2012 usd63 mil 10 years 3.509% fixed

8 March 2013 Hkd402 mil 5 years 1.600% fixed

12 March 2013 Hkd896 mil 10 years 2.950% fixed

19 March 2013 Aud45 mil 5 years BBSW	+	1.2% floating

13 March 2014 usd25 mil 5 years Libor	+	1.00% floating

14 March 2014 sgd60 mil 5 years SOR	+	0.9% floating

3 April 2014 usd20 mil 5 years Libor	+	1.00% floating

11 April 2014 usd50 mil 5 years 2.850% fixed

17 April 2014 usd50 mil 5 years 2.660% fixed

8 May 2014 JPy3 bil 5 years 0.650% fixed

28 May 2014 usd25 mil 5 years Libor	+	0.95% floating

29 May 2014 usd50 mil 5 years Libor	+	0.80% floating

6 June 2014 usd100 mil 15 years 4.250% fixed

 Multicurrency Sukuk Programme

 In september 2013, the Bank launched its usd1.00 billion multicurrency sukuk programme through special Purpose vehicle 
(SPV)	company.	Under	the	programme,	the	Bank	may	from	time	to	time	 issue	notes	 in	series	or	tranches,	which	may	be	
denominated in usd or any other currency deemed appropriate at the time. Each series or tranche of notes may be issued 
in various amounts and tenures, and may bear fixed or floating of profit.

 Issuances made as at year end are as follows:

Date of issuance Nominal value Tenure coupon rate Fixed/Floating

19 february 2014 usd300 mil 5 years 2.874% fixed
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18. oTher PAYAbles AND AccruAls 
 

group and bank

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

sinking fund and debt services reserve accounts  120,070  161,522 

Interest payable  57,861  30,426 

Amount due to the government of Malaysia for Mkff scheme  22,219  16,611 

Provision for zakat  729  695 

Provision for taxation  18,609  36,295 

others  40,610  40,190 

 260,098  285,739 

19. DeFerreD iNcoMe

group and bank  gross  reinsurance  Net 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Arising from:

(i)		 Guarantee	and	fee	from	conventional	banking	activities

  At 1 January  78 	-	  78 

  Addition during the year  3,413 -  3,413 

  recognised in income statement 	(1,061) - 	(1,061)

  At 31 december  2,430 	-	  2,430 

(ii)		 Guarantee	and	fee	from	Islamic	banking	activities

  At 1 January 	-	 	-	 	-	

  Addition during the year  5,918 -  5,918 

  recognised in income statement 	-	 - 	-	

  At 31 december  5,918 	-	  5,918 

(iii)		 Premium	liabilities

  At 1 January  20,677 	(7,259)  13,418 

	 	 Decrease	in	reserve	(Note	25(i)) 	(4,951) 	(983) 	(5,934)

  At 31 december  15,726 	(8,242)  7,484 

(iv)	 Takaful	premium	liabilities

  At 1 January  2,419 	-	  2,419 

	 	 Decrease	in	reserve	(Note	38) 	(361) 	-	 	(361)

  At 31 december  2,058 	-	  2,058 

 26,132 	(8,242)  17,890 
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19. DeFerreD iNcoMe (coNT’D.)

group and bank  gross  reinsurance  Net 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Arising from:

(i)		 Guarantee	from	banking	activities

  At 1 January  540 	-	  540 

  Addition during the year 	-	 	-	 	-	

  recognised in income statement 	(462) 	-	 	(462)

  At 31 december  78 	-	  78 

(ii)		 Premium	liabilities

  At 1 January  14,091 	(2,504)  11,587 

	 	 Increase	in	reserve	(Note	26(i))  6,586 	(4,755)  1,831 

  At 31 december  20,677 	(7,259)  13,418 

(iii)		 Takaful	premium	liabilities

 At 1 January  1,406 	-	  1,406 

 Increase in reserve  1,013 	-	  1,013 

 At 31 december  2,419 	-	  2,419 

 23,174 	(7,259)  15,915 
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20. ProVisioN For guArANTee AND clAiMs

group and bank

 gross  Net 

 rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Arising from:

(i)		 Insurance	claims

  At 1 January  25,400  25,400 

  Addition during the year  2,175  2,175 

	 	 Paid	during	the	year	(Note	25)(ii)) 	(973) 	(973)

  At 31 december  26,602  26,602 

(ii)		 Takaful	claims

  At 1 January  1,543  1,543 

  Addition during the year  503  503 

  Paid during the year 	(83) 	(83)

  At 31 december  1,963  1,963 

(iii)		 Expenses	liabilities

  At 1 January  130  130 

  Addition during the year  26  26 

  At 31 december  156  156 

 28,721  28,721 

2013

Arising from:

(i)		 Insurance	claims

  At 1 January  19,930  19,930 

  Addition during the year  6,064  6,064 

	 	 Paid	during	the	year	(Note	25)(ii)) 	(594) 	(594)

  At 31 december  25,400  25,400 

(ii)		 Takaful	claims

  At 1 January  361  361 

  Addition during the year  2,495  2,495 

  Paid during the year 	(1,313) 	(1,313)

  At 31 december  1,543  1,543 

(iii)		 Expenses	liabilities

  At 1 January 	-	 	-	

  Addition during the year  130  130 

  At 31 december  130  130 

 27,073  27,073 



Notes to the fiNaNcial statemeNts 
31 december 2014

AnnuAl report 2014  •  EXIM BANK MALAYSIA 137

21. shAre cAPiTAl

 group and bank 

2014 2013

 Number 
 of shares  

 Amount
rM 

 Number 
 of shares  

 Amount
rM 

Authorised:

 ordinary shares of rM1 each  3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 

 special rights  1  1  1  1 

At 31 december  3,000,000,001  3,000,000,001  3,000,000,001  3,000,000,001 

issued and fully paid:

 ordinary shares of rM1 each  2,708,665,283  2,708,665,283  2,708,665,283  2,708,665,283 

 special rights  1  1  1  1 

At 31 december  2,708,665,284  2,708,665,284  2,708,665,284  2,708,665,284

	 The	Special	Rights	Redeemable	Share	(“Special	Rights”)	may	be	held	or	transferred	only	to	the	Minister	of	Finance	(Incorporated)	
or its successors or any Minister, representative or any person acting on behalf of the government of Malaysia.

 The special rights shareholder shall have the right from time to time to appoint any person to be an appointed director 
(“Government	Appointed	Director”),	so	that	there	shall	not	be	more	than	four	Government	appointed	Directors	at	any	time.

 The special rights shareholder or any person acting on its behalf shall be entitled to receive notice of and to attend and speak 
at all general meetings of any meeting of any class of shareholders of the Bank, but the special share shall carry neither right 
to vote nor any other rights at any such meeting.

 In a distribution of capital in a winding up of the Bank, the special rights shareholder shall be entitled to repayment of the 
capital paid up on the special share in priority to any repayment of capital to any other member. The special share shall confer 
no other right to participate in the capital or profits of the Bank.

 The special rights shareholder may subject to the provision of the Companies Act, 1965, require the Bank to redeem the 
special share at par at any time by serving written notice upon the Bank and delivering the relevant share certificate.

 The special rights shareholder shall determine on general guidelines pertaining to lending, investments and divestment by 
the Bank from time to time as deemed appropriate.

22. oPerATiNg reVeNue
 
 operating revenue of the group and the Bank comprises gross interest income, fee and commission income, income from 

insurance operation and income from Islamic banking and Takaful.
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23. iNTeresT iNcoMe
 

 group and bank 

2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

loans, advances and financing

-	 Interest	income	from	non-impaired	loans  189,216  149,200 

-	 Interest	income	from	impaired	loans	 	-	  607 

-	 Recoveries	from	impaired	loans  26,884  10,171 

Money at call and deposit placements with banks and other financial institutions  50,939  80,450 

Investment securities  4,213  9,759 

Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount 	(414) 	(816)

Net income from interest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps  32,123  20,623 

 302,961  269,994 

24. iNTeresT exPeNse

 group and bank 

2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Borrowings

Term loans/revolving credits  22,699  21,214 

Medium Term Notes  94,897  70,144 

 117,596  91,358 
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25. uNDerWriTiNg resulTs

 group and bank 

2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

gross premium  8,986  13,985 

reinsurance 	(2,607) 	(4,631)

Net premium  6,379  9,354 

Decrease/(increase)	in	premium	liabilities	reserves	(Note	19)	  5,934 	(1,831)

Net	earned	premium	(Note	25(i))  12,313  7,523 

other fee income  496  558 

Write-back	of	allowance	for	doubtful	debts 	-	  81 

 12,809  8,162 

Net	claims	incurred	(Note	25(ii)) 	(2,157) 	(6,044)

underwriting results  10,652  2,118 

(i)  Net earned premium

gross premium  8,986  13,985 

Change	in	premium	liabilities	reserves	(Note	19)  5,934 	(1,831)

 14,920  12,154 

Premium ceded 	(2,607) 	(4,631)

Net earned premium  12,313  7,523 

(ii)  Net claims incurred

Gross	claims	paid	less	salvage	(Note	20) 	(973) 	(594)

recoveries  18  118 

Bad debt written off 	-	 	(98)

Net claims paid 	(955) 	(574)

Net outstanding claims

	 	 -		1	January  25,400  19,930 

	 	 -		31	December 	(26,602) 	(25,400)

Net claims incurred 	(2,157) 	(6,044)
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26. oTher (exPeNses)/iNcoMe

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

fee income  37,305  56,662 

Foreign	exchange	(loss)/gain

	 -	 unrealised 	(31,364) 	(27,599)

	 -	 realised  9,518  22,692 

gain on disposal of equipment  13  9 

rental income  27  12 

Net	gain/(loss)	on	financial	instruments	designated	through	at	fair	value	through 
profit or loss  56,671 	(77,903)

Net	(loss)/gain	on	MTN/Sukuk	designated	as	hedge	accounting 	(74,857)  73,073 

others  180  179 

	(2,507)  47,125 

27. oVerheAD exPeNses

  group  bank

 Note  2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Personnel costs (i)  43,532  41,616  43,532  41,616 

Establishment related expenses (ii)  9,841  9,710  9,841  9,710 

Promotion and marketing expenses (iii)  4,617  4,354  4,617  4,354 

general administrative expenses (iv)  16,223  14,571  16,205  14,562 

 74,213  70,251  74,195  70,242 
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27. oVerheAD exPeNses (coNT’D.)

(i)  Personnel costs

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

  salaries, allowances and bonuses  33,008  33,430 

  defined contribution plan  4,183  3,945 

  other staff related expenses  6,341  4,241 

 43,532  41,616 

(ii) establishment related expenses

  depreciation:

	 	 -	 Property	and	equipment	(Note	16)  4,823  4,335 

	 	 -	 Investment	properties	(Note	14)  18  18 

	 	 Amortisation	of	intangible	assets	(Note	15)  336  453 

  rental of leasehold land and premises  309  267 

  repairs and maintenance of property and equipment  4,355  4,637 

 9,841  9,710 

(iii)  Promotion and marketing expenses

  Advertisement and publicity  4,617  4,354 

(iv)  general administrative expenses

 group  bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Administrative expenses  3,042  2,902  3,042  2,902 

Auditors’ remuneration

-	 statutory	audit  282  283  278  279 

-	 regulated	related	services  3  5  3  5 

-	 other	assurance	services  84  430  84  430 

general expenses  6,806  6,109  6,806  6,104 

Non-Executive	Directors	remuneration  1,254  1,228  1,254  1,228 

Professional fees  4,162  3,029  4,148  3,029 

others  590  585  590  585 

 16,223  14,571  16,205  14,562 
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28. DirecTors’ Fees AND reMuNerATioN

 salary  Fees  bonus 
 other 

 emoluments  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

group and bank

2014

executive Director:

 dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali  562 	-	  225  192  979 

 562 	-	  225  192  979 

Non-executive Directors:

 datuk Mohd Hashim bin Hassan 	-	  204 	-	 	-	  204 

 Haji Zakaria bin Ismail 	-	  126 	-	 	-	  126 

 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor 	-	  174 	-	 	-	  174 

 dato’ dr. Mohmad Isa bin Hussain 	-	  126 	-	 	-	  126 

 Encik Nik Najib bin Husain 	-	  172 	-	 	-	  172 

 dato’ Md Agil bin Mohd Natt 	-	  156 	-	 	-	  156 

 Encik Ismail bin Mahbob 	-	  140 	-	 	-	  140 

 datuk wong seng foo 	-	  106 	-	 	-	  106 

 yM Tunku Afwida binti Tunku A.Malek 	-	  50 	-	 	-	  50 

	-	  1,254 	-	 	-	  1,254 

Total directors’ remuneration  
(excluding	benefits	in-kind)  562  1,254  225  192  2,233 
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28. DirecTors’ Fees AND reMuNerATioN (coNT’D.)

 salary  Fees  bonus 
 other 

 emoluments  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

group and bank

2013

executive Director:

 dato’ Adissadikin bin Ali  540 	-	  270  203  1,013 

 540 	-	  270  203  1,013 

Non-executive Directors:

 datuk Mohd Hashim bin Hassan 	-	  204 	-	 	-	  204 

 Haji Zakaria bin Ismail 	-	  174 	-	 	-	  174 

 dato’ rosli bin Mohamed Nor 	-	  172 	-	 	-	  172 

 dato’ dr. Mohmad Isa bin Hussain 	-	  122 	-	 	-	  122 

 Encik Nik Najib bin Husain 	-	  168 	-	 	-	  168 

 dato’ Md Agil bin Mohd Natt 	-	  162 	-	 	-	  162 

 Encik Ismail bin Mahbob 	-	  134 	-	 	-	  134 

 datuk wong seng foo 	-	  92 	-	 	-	  92 

	-	  1,228 	-	 	-	  1,228 

Total directors’ remuneration  
(excluding	benefits	in-kind)  540  1,228  270  203  2,241
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29. keY MANAgeMeNT PersoNNel coMPeNsATioN

 key management personnel comprise person having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity either directly or indirectly. It comprises the President/Chief Executive officer of the group and of the 
Bank.

 The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Short-term	employee	benefits	(excluding	benefit	in-kind)  979  1,013 

Included in the total key management personnel is:

Executive	Director’s	remuneration	(Note	28)  979  1,013 

30. AlloWANces For losses oN loANs, ADVANces AND FiNANciNg

 group and bank 

2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Claims guarantee

-	 Charge	for	the	year 	-	  7,157 

-	 Written	back	during	the	year 	-	 	(9,290)

Individual allowance

-	 Charge	for	the	year  183,341  60,914 

-	 Written	back	during	the	year 	(34,358) 	(62,272)

Collective allowance

-	 Charge	for	the	year  8,552  16,091 

-	 Written	back	during	the	year 	-	 	-	

 157,535  12,600 
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31. TAxATioN

 The major components of taxation for the years ended 31 december 2014 and 2013 are:

 group  bank

2014  2013 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Income tax expense:

-	 Current	year  18,609  36,295  18,609  36,295 

-	 Underprovision/(Over	provision)	in	prior	years  8,027 	(12,481)  8,027 	(12,481)

deferred tax expense:

-	 Origination	and	reversal	of	temporary	differences	 	(5,582)  12,615 	(5,582)  12,613 

-	 Underprovision	in	prior	years 	-	  8,412 	-	  8,412 

 21,054  44,841  21,054  44,839 

	 Income	tax	is	calculated	at	the	Malaysian	statutory	tax	rate	of	25%	(2013:	25%)	of	the	estimated	assessable	profit	for	the	year.	
Effective year of assessment 2016, the income tax rate will be reduced to 24%.

 A reconciliation of the taxation applicable to profit before taxation and zakat at the statutory tax rate to taxation at the effective 
tax rate of the group and the Bank is as follows:

 group  bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Profit before taxation 40,850 190,253  40,861  190,255 

Income tax using Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% 
(2013:	25%)  10,215  47,563  10,215  47,564 

Non-deductible	expenses  2,812  1,347  2,812  1,344 

 13,027  48,910  13,027  48,908 

Underprovision/(Over	provision)	in	prior	years  8,027 	(12,481)  8,027 	(12,481)

underprovision of deferred tax asset in prior years 	-	  8,412 	-	  8,412 

  21,054  44,841  21,054  44,839 
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32. eArNiNgs Per shAre

 group  bank

 2014  2013  2014  2013 

Issued	ordinary	shares	as	at	31	December	(‘000)  2,708,665  2,708,665  2,708,665  2,708,665 

Profit	after	taxation	(RM’000)  19,067  144,717  19,078  144,721 

Basic	earnings	per	share	(sen)  0.70  5.34  0.70  5.34 

 The basic earnings per ordinary share has been calculated based on the profit after taxation and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares during the year.

33. DiViDeNDs

 since the end of the previous financial year, the Bank paid a final ordinary dividend of 0.80 sen per ordinary share totalling 
rM21,708,113 in respect of the year ended 31 december 2013 on 20 June 2014.

34. coMMiTMeNTs AND coNTiNgeNcies

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Banking operation commitments

Contracted but not provided for:

 guarantee facility  573,997  368,025 

 letter of credit  20,954  375,357 

 undrawn loans and financing  2,203,017  2,770,460 

 2,797,968  3,513,842 
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34. coMMiTMeNTs AND coNTiNgeNcies (coNT’D.)

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Insurance operation commitments

Contracted but not provided for:

 within one year  596,014  415,743 

 one year or later and no later than five years  476,899  401,035 

 1,072,913  816,778 

operational commitments

Approved but not contracted for:

 within one year  10,023  15,400 

Total commitments and contingencies  3,880,904  4,346,020 

35. sigNiFicANT relATeD PArTies TrANsAcTioN AND bAlANces

 for the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the group, if the group or the Bank 
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and 
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the group or the Bank and the party are subject to common control or common 
significant influence. related parties may be individuals or other entities. 

 The group has related party transactions and balances with the following parties:

(a)		 Compensation	of	key	management	personnel

 key management personnel is defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the group either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel consists of the Managing 
director/Chief Executive officer of the group and the Bank. The key management personnel compensation is disclosed 
in Note 29.

(b)	 The	significant	outstanding	balances	of	the	Bank	with	the	related	companies	are	as	follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Amount due to subsidiaries:

Amount due to subsidiaries  64,124  64,142 
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35. sigNiFicANT relATeD PArTies TrANsAcTioN AND bAlANces (coNT’D.)

(c)	 Government	related	parties

	 Included	in	the	financial	position	of	the	Group	and	the	Bank	are	the	amounts	due	from/(to)	The	Government	of	Malaysia	
and Bank Negara Malaysia represented by the following:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Transaction during the year

other income: Management fee  2,552  2,552 

Expenses: Bad debt written off 	-	  1,337 

 The government of Malaysia

 At the end of the tenure, the Bank shall repay the fund received under the Mkff scheme together with all interest earned, 
less the allowance for impaired loans and return all proceeds derived from investment of the unutilised funds to the 
government. The net amount repayable to the government as at the financial year is represented as follows:

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

fund under Mkff scheme  170,100  170,100 

less:

 loan and financing 	(19,297) 	(20,965)

 Allowance for losses on loans and financing 	(10,704) 	(9,555)

 Bad debt written off 	(3,002) 	(3,002)

Add:

 Interest earned from financing  1,434  1,026 

 Interest income on investment  33,287  26,895 

Net repayable  171,818  164,499 

 Bank Negara Malaysia

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Amount due to:

 Interest payable 	-	  5,041 

Transaction during the year:

 Interest expense 	-	  10,000 
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35. sigNiFicANT relATeD PArTies TrANsAcTioN AND bAlANces (coNT’D.)

(d)	 Licensed	banks	and	other	financial	institutions

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

deposits and placements  770,527  580,274 

36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies

 The group’s and the Bank’s financial risk management policies seek to enhance shareholder’s value. The group and the Bank 
focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance 
of the Bank.

 The risk Management division of the group is responsible for formulating policies and the oversight of credit, market liquidity 
and operational risks.

 financial risk management is carried out through risk assessment and reviews, internal control systems and adherence to 
group’s financial risk management policies, which are reported to and approved by the Board of directors. The Board also 
approves the treasury practices which cover the management of these risks.

 The main areas of financial risks faced by the group and the Bank and the policies are set out as follows: 

a. capital management
 
 Capital Management refers to continuous, proactive and systematic process to ensure the group and the Bank have 

sufficient capital in accordance to its risk profile and regulator’s requirements.

b. Market risk 

 Market risk refers to the potential loss arising from adverse movements in the market variables such as market rate, 
foreign exchange’s rate, equity price and commodity price. In other words, it is the risk that the group’s and the Bank’s 
earnings or capital position will be affected by fluctuation in market rates or prices. 

c. Asset liability management risk

	 Asset	Liability	Management	(ALM)	risk	comprises:

(i)	 Interest	rate	risks

 This refers to the exposure of the group’s and the Bank’s financial condition due to adverse movements in interest 
rates.

(ii)	 Liquidity	risks

 defined as the risk of not being able to obtain sufficient funds in a timely manner at a reasonable cost to meet financial 
commitments when due.
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT'D.)

d. credit risk

 Credit risk is defined as risk due to uncertainty in the customers or the counterparties ability to meet its obligations or 
failure	to	perform	according	to	the	terms	and	conditions	of	the	credit-related	contract.	

 oversight and organisation

	 A	stable	enterprise-level	organisational	structure	for	risk	management	is	necessary	to	ensure	a	uniform	view	of	risk	across	the	
group and the Bank. It is also important to have clear roles and responsibilities defined for each functions.

 The Board of directors has the overall responsibility for understanding the risk undertaken by the group and the Bank and 
ensuring that the risk are properly managed. 

 while the Board of directors is ultimately responsible for risk management of the group, it has entrusted the Board risk 
Committee	 (“BRC”)	 to	 carry	 out	 its	 functions.	 Although	 the	 responsibilities	 have	 been	 delegated,	 the	Board	 still	 remains	
accountable. BrC, which is chaired by an independent director of the Board, oversees the overall management of all risks 
covering credit risk management, country risk management, market risk management, asset liability management and 
operational risk management.

 Executions of the Board’s risk strategies and policies are the responsibilities of the group’s and the Bank’s management 
and the conduct of these functions are being exercised under a committee structure, namely Management risk Committee 
(“MRC”).	The	President/Chief	Executive	Officer	chairs	MRC.	The	Committee	focuses	on	the	overall	business	strategies	and	
daily business operations of the group and the Bank in respect of risk management.

	 To	carry	out	the	day-to-day	risk	management	function,	a	dedicated	Risk	Management	Division	(“RMD”)	that	is	independent	of	
profit and volume targets supports the Committee. rMd reports functionally to the BrC and administratively to the President/
Chief Executive officer.

 capital management

 Capital policy

 The overall objective of capital management is to maintain a strong capital position in order to provide opportunities for 
business growth and able to provide cushion for any potential losses. In line with this objective, the group and the Bank view 
capital position as an important key barometer of financial health.

 In order to support its mandated roles, the group and the Bank must have strong and adequate capital to support its business 
activities	on	an	on-going	basis.	 In	 lieu	to	this,	Bank	Negara	Malaysia	has	 imposed	several	regulatory	capital	 requirements	
whereby, the Bank must have an absolute minimum capital of rM300,000,000 and a minimum risk weighted Capital ratio 
(“RWCR”)	of	8%	at	all	 times.	The	minimum	capital	 funds	 refer	 to	paid-up	capital	and	 reserves	as	defined	 in	Section	3	of	
development financial Institution Act 2002.

 In order to further strengthen the capital position of the group and the Bank through a progressive and systematic building up 
of the reserve fund, the group and the Bank are required to maintain a reserve fund and transfer a certain percentage of its 
net profits to the reserve fund once the rwCr falls below the threshold of 16%. 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 capital management (cont’d.)

 regulatory capital

 The following table set forth capital resources and capital adequacy for the Bank as at 31 december:

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

ordinary share capital  2,708,665  2,708,665 

retained profit  240,606  117,593 

Current year profit  19,078  144,721 

Eligible Tier 1 capital  2,968,349  2,970,979 

Collective allowance on loans, advances and financing*  121,323  114,895 

Provision for guarantee and claims  7,459  8,034 

Eligible Tier 2 capital  128,782  122,929 

Investment in subsidiaries 	(64,147) 	(64,154)

Total capital base  3,032,984  3,029,754 

risk weighted assets  10,219,656  8,421,544 

Tier 1 Capital ratio

-	 With	proposed	dividend

 Core capital ratio 29.0% 35.1%

 rwCr 29.7% 35.8%

-		Without	proposed	dividend

 Core capital ratio 29.0% 35.3%

 rwCr 29.7% 36.0%

* The eligible amounts for Tier II Capital is only limited to the excess of total collective allowances over the identifiable incurred losses in the 

collective allowance pool.
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 capital management (cont’d.)

 Capital monitoring

 The group’s and the Bank’s capital are closely monitored and actively managed. Besides the regulatory capital requirement of 
8%, the group and the Bank have set an internal capital requirement limit that would act as a buffer to the regulatory capital 
and	as	an	indicator	that	affords	the	Group	and	the	Bank	a	“well	capitalised”	status.	The	MRC	shall	be	responsible	in	managing	
and monitoring both the internal capital limit and regulatory capital requirement. 

 Market risk management

 Approach and risk strategy

 The principal objectives of the market risk management are to assume an appropriate balance between the level of risk and 
the level of return desired in order to maximise the return to shareholder’s funds and to ensure prudent management of the 
group’s and the Bank’s resources to support the growth of the group’s and the Bank’s economic value.

 The group’s market risk management strategies are to identify measure, monitor and manage the group’s and the Bank’s 
earnings and capital against market risk inherent in all activities of the group and the Bank and ensure all relevant personnel 
clearly understand the group’s and the Bank’s approach in managing market risk.

 risk identification 

 The group’s and the Bank’s market risk arises due to changes in market rates, prices and volatilities which lead to a decline 
in the value of the group’s and the Bank’s investment securities, foreign exchange and equity position.

 Measurement

 The group’s and the Bank’s policy are to minimise the exposures to foreign currency risk arising from lending activities by 
monitoring and obtaining the Board’s approval for funding requisitions that involve foreign currencies.

 The table below shows the group’s and the Bank’s foreign currencies sensitivity based on reasonable possible movements in 
foreign	exchange	(FX)	rates:

changes in foreign 
exchange rates

(+/-)

effect on profit/loss effect on equity
 increase 

 in Fx rate 
 Decrease 
 in Fx rate 

 increase 
 in Fx rate 

 Decrease 
 in Fx rate 

%  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

AEd 10  5 	(5)  5 	(5)

Eur 5 	(577)  577 	(577)  577 

gBP 5 	(189)  189 	(189)  189 

JPy 10  8,822 	(8,822)  8,822 	(8,822)

sgd 5 	(6,958)  6,958 	(6,958)  6,958 

usd 10 	(59,132)  59,132 	(59,132)  59,132 

Aud 10 	(2,348)  2,348 	(2,348)  2,348 

Hkd 5  29,056 	(29,056)  29,056 	(29,056)

	(31,321)  31,321 	(31,321)  31,321 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 Market risk management (cont’d.)

  Measurement	(cont’d.)

changes in foreign 
exchange rates

(+/-)

effect on profit/loss effect on equity

 increase 
 in Fx rate 

 Decrease 
 in Fx rate 

 increase 
 in Fx rate 

 Decrease 
 in Fx rate 

%  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

AEd 10 	(3)  3 	(3)  3 

Eur 5 	(152)  152 	(152)  152 

gBP 5  1,354 	(1,354)  1,354 	(1,354)

JPy 10  9 	(9)  9 	(9)

sgd 5  5,622 	(5,622)  5,622 	(5,622)

usd 10 	(24,831)  24,831 	(24,831)  24,831 

	(18,001)  18,001 	(18,001)  18,001

 Asset liability management

 Approach and risk strategy

 The main objective is to proactively manage the group’s and the Bank’s financial position which includes assets, liabilities and 
capital, in order to maximise earnings and to attain its strategic goal, within the overall risk/return preferences.

	 The	Group’s	and	the	Bank’s	Asset	and	Liability	Management	(“ALM”)	strategies	are	as	follows:

•	 Ensure	 that	 the	 Group	 and	 the	 Bank	 achieve	 its	 financial	 objective	 through	 strategic	 business	 plan	 which	 shall	 be	
developed within the risk tolerance level;

•	 Ensure	that	the	Group’s	and	Bank’s	pricing	and	funding	are	adequately	maintain	to	support	a	sound	capital	base	through	
strategic management of balance sheet; and

 
•	 Ensure	that	the	Group	and	the	Bank	are	able	to	sustain	its	capital	against	ALM	risk	inherent	in	all	activities	of	the	Group	

and the Bank.

 risk identification

 when analysing whether or not an activity introduces a new element of AlM risk exposure, the group and the Bank should be 
aware that changes to an instrument’s maturity, repricing or repayment terms could materially affect the product’s AlM risks 
characteristics.

 Measurement

	 The	Group	and	the	Bank	face	interest	rate	risks	arising	from	re-pricing	mismatches	of	assets	and	liabilities	from	its	banking	
businesses. These risks are monitored through economic value of equity limit and net interest income changes. 

 The group and the Bank perform regular net interest income simulation to better understand the sensitivity to changes in 
interest	 rates	on	the	net	 interest	 income.	 In	addition,	MRC	will	actively	manage	the	re-pricing	mismatches	with	 the	aid	of	
monthly	re-pricing	gap	and	Earning-at-Risk	(“EAR”)	reports.



Notes to the fiNaNcial statemeNts 
31 december 2014

EXIM BANK MALAYSIA  •  AnnuAl report 2014154

36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 Asset liability management (cont’d.)

 Measurement	(cont’d.)

	 The	table	below	shows	the	Bank’s	interest	rate	risk	exposure	based	on	contractual	re-pricing	gap:

 less than 
 3 months 

 3 to 12 
 months 

 1 to 5 
 years 

 over 5 
 years 

 Non-interest 
 bearing  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Assets

Cash and bank balances 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  17,279  17,279 

deposits and placement 
with banks and other 
financial institutions  1,929,819  41,139 	-	 	-	 	-	  1,970,958 

Investment securities  5,041  35,284  80,649 	-	 	-	  120,974 

Amount due from ECr 
debtors  314,549  96,098 	-	 	-	 	-	  410,647 

loans, advances and 
financing  1,125,858  761,057  3,574,761  2,472,188 	-	  7,933,864 

derivative financial 
instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	  29,599 -	  29,599 

other assets 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  345,270  345,270 

Total assets  3,375,267  933,578  3,655,410  2,501,787  362,549  10,828,591 

liabilities and equity

Borrowings  1,981,654  147,790  4,121,944  1,209,199 	-	  7,460,587 

derivative financial 
instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	  30,205 	-	  30,205 

other liabilities 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  369,568  369,568 

shareholders’ fund 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  2,968,231  2,968,231 

Total liabilities and equity  1,981,654  147,790  4,121,944  1,239,404  3,337,799  10,828,591 

Period gap  1,393,613  785,788 	(466,534)  1,262,383 	(2,975,250) 	-	

cumulative gap  1,393,613  2,179,401  1,712,867  2,975,250 	-	 	-	



Notes to the fiNaNcial statemeNts 
31 december 2014

AnnuAl report 2014  •  EXIM BANK MALAYSIA 155

36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 Asset liability management (cont’d.)

 Measurement	(cont’d.)

	 The	table	below	shows	the	Bank’s	interest	rate	risk	exposure	based	on	contractual	re-pricing	gap	(cont’d.):

 less than 
 3 months 

 3 to 12 
 months 

 1 to 5 
 years 

 over 5 
 years 

 Non-interest 
 bearing  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Assets

Cash and bank balances 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  38,932  38,932 

deposits and placement 
with banks and other 
financial institutions  1,410,276  295,000 	-	 	-	 	-	  1,705,276 

Investment securities  35,028  229,344  181,249 	-	 	-	  445,621 

Amount due from ECr 
debtors  293,957  88,388 	-	 	-	 	-	  382,345 

loans, advances and 
financing  57,704  1,246,709  1,807,806  2,189,289 	-	  5,301,508 

derivative financial 
instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	  379 	-	  379 

other assets 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  335,245  335,245 

Total assets  1,796,965  1,859,441  1,989,055  2,189,668  374,177  8,209,306 

liabilities and equity

Borrowings  1,800,229  136,306  2,139,946  712,925 	-	  4,789,406 

derivative financial 
instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	  58,335 	-	  58,335 

other liabilities 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  390,450  390,450 

shareholders’ fund 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  2,971,115  2,971,115 

Total liabilities and equity  1,800,229  136,306  2,139,946  771,260  3,361,565  8,209,306 

Period gap 	(3,264)  1,723,135 	(150,891)  1,418,408 	(2,987,388) 	-	

cumulative gap 	(3,264)  1,719,871  1,568,980  2,987,388 	-	 	-
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 Asset liability management (cont’d.)

 Analysis	of	net	interest	income	(“NII”)	sensitivity

 The table below shows the Bank’s net interest income sensitivity based on possible parallel shift in interest rate:

 2014  2013

 impact 
 on profit 

 impact 
 on equity 

 impact 
 on profit 

 impact 
 on equity 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Interest	rate	-	parallel	shift	

+	50	basis	points	  11,270  11,270  7,306  7,306 

-	50	basis	points	 	(11,900) 	(11,900) 	(13,631) 	(13,631)

 liquidity risk management

 Approach and risk strategy

 The inability to create liquidity would cause serious repercussion to the group and the Bank in terms of its reputation and even 
its continued existence. In view of this, the group and the Bank pay particular attention to liquidity risk management approach 
and strategy.

 The objective of liquidity risk management is to ensure the availability of sufficient liquidity to honour all financial obligations and 
able to meet any stressful events. The group’s and the Bank’s liquidity risk management strategies involve:

•	 Establish	appropriate	policies	to	oversee	the	management	of	liquidity	risk	of	the	Group	and	the	Bank;

•	 Establish	prudent	liquidity	risk	limits	to	ensure	the	Group	and	the	Bank	maintain	a	safe	level	of	asset	liquidity;	and

•	 Develop	contingency	funding	plans	to	manage	the	Group’s	and	the	Bank’s	funding	requirement	during	liquidity	crisis.

 risk identification

 There are two types of liquidity risk i.e. funding liquidity risk and market liquidity risk. funding liquidity risk refers to the potential 
inability of the group and the Bank to meet its funding requirements arising from cash flow mismatches at a reasonable 
cost. Market liquidity risk refers to the group’s and the Bank’s potential inability to liquidate positions quickly and in sufficient 
volumes, at a reasonable price. 

 Measurement

 liquidity is measured by the group’s and the Bank’s ability to efficiently and economically accommodate decrease in deposits/
funding	 (such	as	 funds	obtained	 from	the	Government)	and	other	purchased	 liabilities	and	 to	 fund	 increases	 in	assets	 to	
ensure continued growth of the group and the Bank.

 The group and the Bank maintain large capital base, sufficient liquid assets, diversified funding sources, and regularly 
assesses	 the	 long-standing	 relationship	with	 traditional	 fund	providers.	These	processes	are	subject	 to	 regular	 reviews	 to	
ensure adequacy and appropriateness.

 In addition, the group’s and the Bank’s liquidity position are monitored and managed through structural liquidity indicators, 
such as loan to purchase funds and offshore revolving funds utilisation rate ratios to maintain an optimal funding mix and asset 
composition.
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 liquidity risk management (cont’d.)

 Measurement	(cont’d.)

 Table below analyses assets and liabilities of the Bank according to their contractual maturity:

 on 
 demand 

 less than 
 3 months 

 3 to 12 
 months 

 1 to 5 
 years 

 over 5 
 years  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Assets

Cash and bank balances  17,279 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  17,279 

deposits and placement 
with banks and other 
financial institutions 	-	  1,929,819  41,139 	-	 	-	  1,970,958 

Investment securities  5,041 	-	  35,284  80,649 	-	  120,974 

Amount due from ECr 
debtors 	-	  314,549  96,098 	-	 	-	  410,647 

loans, advances and 
financing 	-	  1,125,858  761,057  3,574,761  2,472,188  7,933,864 

derivative financial 
instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  29,599  29,599 

other assets  345,270 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  345,270 

Total assets  367,590  3,370,226  933,578  3,655,410  2,501,787  10,828,591 

liabilities

Borrowings 	-	  1,981,654  147,790  4,121,944  1,209,199  7,460,587 

derivative financial 

instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  30,205  30,205 

other liabilities  370,833 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  370,833 

Total liabilities  370,833  1,981,654  147,790  4,121,944  1,239,404  7,861,625 

Net maturity mismatch 	(3,243)  1,388,572  785,788 	(466,534)  1,262,383  2,966,966 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 liquidity risk management (cont’d.)

 Measurement	(cont’d.)

	 Table	below	analyses	assets	and	liabilities	of	the	Bank	according	to	their	contractual	maturity	(cont’d.):

 on 
 demand 

 less than 
 3 months 

 3 to 12 
 months 

 1 to 5 
 years 

 over 5 
 years  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Assets

Cash and bank balances  38,932 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  38,932 

deposits and placement 
with banks and other 
financial institutions 	-	  1,410,276  295,000 	-	 	-	  1,705,276 

Investment securities 	-	  35,028  229,344  181,249 	-	  445,621 

Amount due from ECr 
debtors 	-	  293,957  88,388 	-	 	-	  382,345 

loans, advances and 
financing 	-	  57,704  1,246,709  1,807,806  2,189,289  5,301,508 

derivative financial 
instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  379  379 

other assets  335,245 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  335,245 

Total assets  374,177  1,796,965  1,859,441  1,989,055  2,189,668  8,209,306 

liabilities

Borrowings 	-	  1,800,229  136,306  2,139,946  712,925  4,789,406 

derivative financial 
instruments 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  58,335  58,335 

other liabilities  392,869 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  392,869 

Total liabilities  392,869  1,800,229  136,306  2,139,946  771,260  5,240,610 

Net maturity mismatch 	(18,692) 	(3,264)  1,723,135 	(150,891)  1,418,408  2,968,696
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 liquidity risk management (cont’d.)

 The following tables show the contractual undiscounted cash flow payable for financial liabilities. The financial liabilities in the 
tables below will not agree to the balances in the statements of financial position as the tables incorporate all contractual 
cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, relating to both principal and interest payments. The maturity profile do not necessarily 
reflect behavioural cash flows.

 on 
 demand 

 less than 
 3 months 

 3 to 12 
 months 

 1 to 5 
 years 

 over 5 
 years  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Non-derivative  
financial liabilities

Borrowings 	-	  2,040,255  235,826  4,565,506  1,432,757  8,274,344

other liabilities  370,833 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  370,833 

Total financial liabilities  370,833  2,040,255  235,826  4,565,506  1,432,757  8,645,177 

commitment and  
contingencies

Banking operation 
commitments

Contracted but not 
provided for:

 guarantee facility  573,997 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  573,997 

 letter of credit  20,954 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  20,954 

undrawn loans and 
financing 	-	 	-	  341,649  941,740  919,628  2,203,017 

 594,951 	-	  341,649  941,740  919,628  2,797,968 

Insurance operation 
commitments

Contracted but not 
provided for:

 within one year 	-	 	-	  596,014 	-	 	-	  596,014 

one year or later and no 
later than five years 	-	 	-	 	-	  261,029  215,870  476,899 

	-	 	-	  596,014  261,029  215,870  1,072,913 

Total commitment and 
contingencies  594,951 	-	 937,663  1,202,769  1,135,498  3,870,881 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 liquidity risk management (cont’d.)

 on 
 demand 

 less than 
 3 months 

 3 to 12 
 months 

 1 to 5 
 years 

 over 5 
 years  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Borrowings 	-	  1,847,698  338,433  2,174,743  906,984  5,267,858 

other liabilities  418,359 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  418,359 

Total financial liabilities  418,359  1,847,698  338,433  2,174,743  906,984  5,686,217 

commitment and  
contingencies

Banking operation 
commitments

Contracted but not 
provided for:

 guarantee facility  368,025 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  368,025 

 letter of credit  375,357 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	  375,357 

undrawn loans and 
financing 	-	  845,495  893,136  1,031,829 	-	  2,770,460 

 743,382  845,495  893,136  1,031,829 	-	  3,513,842 

Insurance operation 
commitments

Contracted but not 
provided for:

 within one year 	-	 	-	  415,743 	-	 	-	  415,743 

one year or later and no 
later than five years 	-	  18,548  140,022  212,985  29,480  401,035 

	-	  18,548  555,765  212,985  29,480  816,778 

Total commitment and 
contingencies  743,382  864,043  1,448,901  1,244,814  29,480  4,330,620
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk management

 Approach and risk strategy

 The group and the Bank recognise that credit risk is inherent in its banking and insurance activities. The main objective of the 
group’s and the Bank’s credit risk management is to ensure that exposure to credit risk is always kept within its capability and 
financial capacity to withstand potential future losses.

 The group’s and the Bank’s strategies in credit risk management are:

•	 Consistent	credit	approving	standards	are	applied	in	each	of	its	credit	decision	processes;

•	 All	credit	decisions	are	within	credit	risk	tolerance	that	the	Group	and	the	Bank	are	willing	to	take	in	meeting	its	mandated	
role;

•	 All	credit	risk	 inherent	 in	business	activities	of	the	Group	and	the	Bank	are	comprehensively	 identified,	measured	and	
managed;

•	 Ensure	the	Group	and	the	Bank	hold	adequate	capital	against	credit	risk	and	adequately	compensated	for	risks	assumed;

•	 Regular	credit	review	is	perform	as	an	effective	tool	to	constantly	evaluate	the	quality	of	credits	given	and	adherence	to	
the credit process;

•	 The	 composition	 and	 quality	 of	 the	Group’s	 and	 the	Bank’s	 credit	 portfolio	 are	 constantly	monitored	 to	 identify	 and	
manage concentrations risk; and

•	 Conduct	stress	testing	on	the	Group’s	and	the	Bank’s	credit	portfolio	to	 identify	possible	events	or	 future	changes	 in	
economic conditions that could have favourable effects to its credit exposures and assess the groups and the Bank’s 
ability to withstand such changes.

 risk identification

	 The	Group	and	the	Bank	take	into	account	the	sources	of	credit	risks	identified	from	all	lines	of	business	on	a	bank-wide	basis	
such	as	direct	financing	risk,	contingent	financing	risk,	issuer	risk,	pre-settlement	risk	and	settlement	risk.

 As a development financial institution, the group and the Bank are expected primarily to fill the gaps in the supply of financial 
services that are not normally provided by other banking institutions. Therefore, the group and the Bank are exposed to 
credit risk mainly from credit facilities to finance and support exports and imports of goods, services and overseas projects 
with	emphasis	on	non-traditional	markets,	provision	of	export	credit	insurance	services,	export	financing	insurance,	overseas	
investment insurance and guarantee facilities. The group and the Bank are also exposed to credit risk from investment in 
securities and other financial market transactions.

 Measurement

 The group and the Bank monitor actual exposures against established limits and have in place procedures for the purpose 
of monitoring and taking appropriate actions when such limits are breached. If exceeded limits, such occurrences must be 
reported to the MrC and subsequently, corrective measures are taken to avoid recurrence of such breaches.

 Internal credit rating system is an integral part of the group’s and the Bank’s credit risk management. It provides a good 
means of differentiating the degree of credit risk in the different credit exposures of the group and the Bank. This will allow 
more accurate determination of the overall characteristics of the credit portfolio, concentrations, problem credits and the 
adequacy of allowances for losses on loans, advances and financing.
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk management (cont’d.)

 Impairment of financial assets

 The group and the Bank individually assesses its financial assets for any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more loss events that occurred after the initial recognition. In determining that there is objective evidence of an impaired 
loss the group and the Bank adopted a systematic mechanism for a prompt trigger of impairment test whereby the triggers 
are based on obligatory and judgmental event triggers.

 when there is objective evidence of impairment of the financial assets, the classification of these assets as impaired shall be 
endorsed	and	approved	by	Management	Committee	(“MC”).	Impairment	losses	are	recorded	as	charges	to	the	statements	of	
income. The carrying amount of impaired loan on the statement of financial position is reduced through the use of impairment 
allowance account. losses expected from future events are not recognised.

 credit risk exposure

 Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account of any collateral and other credit enhancements:

group and bank  Maximum 
 exposure to 

 credit risk 
 collateral 

 value 
 Net 

 exposures 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Credit	exposure	for	on-balance	sheet	assets:

deposit and placement with banks and other financial institutions  1,970,958 	-	  1,970,958 

Investment securities

	 Available-for-sale  110,971 	-	  110,971 

	 Held-to-maturity  10,003 	-	  10,003 

Amount due from ECr debtors  410,647 	-	  410,647 

loans, advances and financing  7,933,864  8,760,475  5,341,288 

derivative asset  29,599 	-	  29,599 

  10,466,042  8,760,475  7,873,466 

Credit	exposure	for	off-balance	sheet	assets:

Banking operations commitments  2,797,968 	-	  2,797,968 

Insurance operations commitments

 short term  596,014 	-	  596,014 

 Medium/long term  476,899 	-	  476,899 

 3,870,881 	-	  3,870,881 

 14,336,923  8,760,475  11,744,347 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk exposure (cont’d.)

group and bank  Maximum 
 exposure to 

 credit risk 
 collateral 

 value 
 Net 

 exposures 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Credit	exposure	for	on-balance	sheet	assets:

deposit and placement with banks and other financial institutions  1,705,276 	-	  1,705,276 

Investment securities

	 Available-for-sale  435,616 	-	  435,616 

	 Held-to-maturity  10,005 	-	  10,005 

Amount due from ECr debtors  382,345 	-	  382,345 

loans, advances and financing  5,301,508  5,233,435  3,876,973 

derivative asset  379 	-	  379 

 7,835,129  5,233,435  6,410,594 

Credit	exposure	for	off-balance	sheet	assets:

Banking operations commitments  3,513,842 	-	  3,513,842 

Insurance operations commitments

 short term  415,743 	-	  415,743 

 Medium/long term  401,035 	-	  401,035 

 4,330,620 	-	  4,330,620 

 12,165,749  5,233,435  10,741,214 

 Collateral and credit enhancement

 Collateral represents the asset pledged by a customer and/or a third party on behalf of the customer, in whole or in part, to 
secure a credit exposure and/or potential credit exposure with the group and the Bank, and subject to seizure in the event 
of default. Collateral provides the group and the Bank with a secondary source of repayment, i.e. a source of fund to help 
recover its investment should the customer is unable to repay the facility obtained from the group and the Bank.
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk exposure (cont’d.)

 Collateral	and	credit	enhancement	(cont’d.)

 The group and the Bank shall consider accepting the collateral based on its marketability, measurability, stability, transferability, 
speed in realising the collateral value, enforceability and free from encumbrances. The collateral types and amounts held by 
the group and the Bank are as follows:

 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Collateral type

secured by cash  230,766  218,763 

secured by property  8,529,709  5,014,672 

 8,760,475  5,233,435 

 geographical analysis

 Exposures to credit risk by geographical region are as follows:

	 On-balance	sheet	exposure

 Deposit and
 placement 
 with banks 

and other 
 financial 

institutions 
 investment 

 securities 

 Amount 
 due to ecr 

 debtors 

 loans, 
 advances 

 and 
financing  Derivative  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Malaysia  1,970,958  120,974  410,647  3,559,687  29,599  6,091,865 

East Asia 	-	 	-	 	-	  2,320,002 	-	  2,320,002 

south Asia 	-	 	-	 	-	  377,003 	-	   377,003 

Central Asia 	-	 	-	 	-	  274,699 	-	  274,699 

Middle East 	-	 	-	 	-	  347,599 	-	  347,599 

Africa 	-	 	-	 	-	  184,877 	-	  184,877 

Europe 	-	 	-	 	-	 740,900 	-	  740,900 

America 	-	 	-	 	-	  55,371 	-	  55,371 

oceania 	-	 	-	 	-	  402,283 	-	  402,283 

 1,970,958  120,974  410,647  8,262,421  29,599  10,794,599 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk exposure (cont’d.)

 Geographical	analysis	(cont’d.)

 Exposures	to	credit	risk	by	geographical	region	are	as	follows	(cont'd.):

	 On-balance	sheet	exposure	(cont’d.)

 Deposit and
 placement 
 with banks

and other 
 financial

institutions 
 investment 

 securities 

 Amount 
 due to ecr 

 debtors 

 loans, 
 advances 

 and
financing  Derivative  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Malaysia  1,705,276  445,621  382,345  1,862,929  379  4,396,550 

East Asia 	-	 	-	 	-	  1,932,189 	-	  1,932,189 

south Asia 	-	 	-	 	-	  128,193 	-	  128,193 

Central Asia 	-	 	-	 	-	  227,298 	-	  227,298 

Middle East 	-	 	-	 	-	  409,022 	-	  409,022 

Africa 	-	 	-	 	-	  186,454 	-	  186,454 

Europe 	-	 	-	 	-	  621,775 	-	  621,775 

America 	-	 	-	 	-	  42,612 	-	  42,612 

oceania 	-	 	-	 	-	  426,199 	-	  426,199 

 1,705,276  445,621  382,345  5,836,671  379  8,370,292
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk exposure (cont’d.)

 Geographical	analysis	(cont’d.)

	 Off-balance	sheet	exposure

 banking 
 operation 

 commitments 

 insurance 
 operation 

 short term 

 insurance 
 operation 
 medium/ 

 long term  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Malaysia  1,184,080  57,702 	-	  1,241,782 

East Asia  913,583  160,062  232,560  1,306,205 

south Asia  173,033  35,482  4,920  213,435 

Central Asia 	-	  1,123 	-	  1,123 

Middle East  16,549  34,494  84,340  135,383 

Africa  37,597  74,683 	-	  112,280 

Europe  248,770  105,988  155,080  509,838 

America  49,525  72,027 	-	  121,552 

oceania  174,831  54,453 	-	  229,284 

 2,797,968  596,014  476,900  3,870,882 

2013

Malaysia  1,145,419  32,805 	-	  1,178,224 

East Asia  1,253,910  124,824  201,620  1,580,354 

south Asia  209,945  9,525  11,400  230,870 

Central Asia  39,958  685  16,803  57,446 

Middle East  46,006  31,725  25,934  103,665 

Africa  85,923  20,430 	-	  106,353 

Europe  256,349  108,131  145,278  509,758 

America  83,104  45,180 	-	  128,284 

oceania  393,228  42,438 	-	  435,666 

  3,513,842  415,743  401,035  4,330,620 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk exposure (cont’d.)

 Industrial analysis 

 Exposures to credit risk by industry are as follows:

	 On-balance	sheet	exposure

 Deposit and
 placement

 with 
banks and 

other financial 
 institutions 

 investment 
 securities 

 Amount 
 due from 

 ecr
debtors 

 loans, 
 advances 

 and
financing  Derivative  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Primary agriculture -  85,756 	-	  474,645 	-	 560,401

Mining and quarrying 	-	 	-	 	-	  979,562 	-	  979,562 

Manufacturing 	-	 	-	 	-	  1,672,496 	-	  1,672,496 

Transport, storage and 
communication 	-	  10,003 	-	  1,642,320 	-	  1,652,323 

Construction 	-	 	-	 	-	  269,805 	-	  269,805 

wholesale and retail trade, 
and restaurants and 
hotels 	-	 	-	 	-	  712,528 	-	  712,528

finance, insurance, real 
estate and business 
activities  1,970,958  20,215  410,647  274,933  29,599 2,706,352

Electricity, gas and water 	-	  5,000 	-	  999,036 	-	  1,004,036 

Education, health and 
others 	-	 	-	 	-	  177,829 	-	  177,829 

Property development 	-	 	-	 	-	  560,030 	-	  560,030 

government 	-	 	-	 	-	  492,048 	-	  492,048 

others 	-	 	-	 	-	  7,189 	-	 7,189 

 1,970,958  120,974  410,647  8,262,421  29,599  10,794,599
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)
 
 credit risk exposure (cont’d.)
 
 Industrial	analysis	(cont’d.)
 
	 Exposures	to	credit	risk	by	industry	are	as	follows	(cont’d.):
 
	 On-balance	sheet	exposure	(cont’d.)

 Deposit and 
 placement

 with 
banks and 

other
financial 

 institutions 
 investment 

 securities 

 Amount 
 due from 

 ecr
debtors 

 loans, 
 advances 

 and
financing  Derivative  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Primary agriculture 	-	  51,133 	-	  456,535 	-	  507,668 

Mining and quarrying 	-	 	-	 	-	  366,327 	-	  366,327 

Manufacturing 	-	 	-	 	-	  1,236,941 	-	  1,236,941 

Transport, storage and 
communication 	-	  27,608 	-	  459,897 	-	  487,505 

Construction 	-	  20,016 	-	  413,226 	-	  433,242 

wholesale and retail trade, 
and restaurants and 
hotels 	-	  10,005 	-	  399,932 	-	  409,937 

finance, insurance, real 
estate and business 
activities  1,705,276  236,275  382,345  225,487  379  2,549,762 

Electricity, gas and water 	-	  40,415 	-	  743,871 	-	  784,286 

Education, health and 
others 	-	 	-	 	-	  175,886 	-	  175,886 

Property development 	-	 	-	 	-	  793,320 	-	  793,320 

government 	-	 	-	 	-	  558,482 	-	  558,482 

others 	-	  60,169 	-	  6,767 	-	  66,936 

 1,705,276  445,621  382,345  5,836,671  379  8,370,292
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit risk exposure (cont’d.)

 Industrial	analysis	(cont’d.)

	 Off-balance	sheet	exposure

 banking 
 operation 

 commitments 

 insurance 
 operation 

 short term 

 insurance 
 operation 
 medium/ 

 long term  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Manufacturing  997,756  484,911  171,506  1,654,173 

Transport, storage and communication  528,100  7,024  63,357  598,481 

Construction  107,855 	-	  86,297  194,152 

Electricity, gas and water supply  514,319 	-	  123,291  637,610 

finance, insurance, real estate and business activities  236,885 	-	 	-	  236,885 

wholesale and retail trade, and restaurants and hotels  77,955  48,155 	-	  126,110 

government 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	

Mining and quarrying  198,942 	-	  26,619  225,561 

Information technology 	-	  6,158  2,053  8,211 

Primary agriculture  128,078 	-	 	-	  128,078 

Education, health and others  935 	-	  3,776  4,711 

Property development  7,143 	-	 	-	  7,143 

others 	-	  49,766 	-	  49,766 

 2,797,968  596,014  476,899  3,870,881 

2013

Manufacturing  880,204  355,456  163,826  1,399,486 

Transport, storage and communication  650,761  7,016 	-	  657,777 

Construction  218,621 	-	  27,573  246,194 

Electricity, gas and water supply  696,657  1,827  186,839  885,323 

finance, insurance, real estate and business activities  294,642 	-	 	-	  294,642 

wholesale and retail trade, and restaurants and hotels  84,934  18,983 	-	  103,917 

government  73,793 	-	 	-	  73,793 

Mining and quarrying  108,705 	-	  2,686  111,391 

Information technology  9,255 	-	  8,714  17,969 

Primary agriculture  164,962 	-	 	-	  164,962 

Education, health and others  245 	-	  11,397  11,642 

Property development  331,063 	-	 	-	  331,063 

others 	-	  32,461 	-	  32,461 

 3,513,842  415,743  401,035  4,330,620 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit quality by class of financial assets

 Credit quality for treasury credit risk exposures

 The table below shows treasury credit risk exposure by the current counterparties’ rating:

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Available-for-sale	investment	securities:

Long-term

 AAA  50,551  152,031 

 AA  60,420  200,796 

 A 	-	  22,622 

 NA 	-	  60,167 

 110,971  435,616 

Held-to-maturity	investments	securities:

Long-term

 AAA  10,003  10,005 

derivative financial assets:

financial institutions

 AAA 	-	  168 

 A  2,365  3 

	 A	+  919 	-	

	 A	-  26,315 	-	

 29,599  171 

Commercial customers

 risk rating 5 	-	  176 

 risk rating 7 	-	  32 

	-	  208 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit quality by class of financial assets (cont’d.)

 Credit quality by loans, advances and financing

	 For	commercial	exposures,	the	Group	and	the	Bank	use	nine	risk	grades	with	rating	‘1’	representing	the	lowest	risk.	Meanwhile	
for	Sovereign	exposures,	the	Group	and	the	Bank	use	five	risk	grades	with	rating	‘A’	representing	the	lowest	risk.	The	exposure	
under each of these risk grades is as follows:

 Neither past
 due nor
impaired 

 Past due 
 but not 

 impaired  impaired  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Commercial customer

 risk rating 1  258,773 	-	 	-	  258,773 

 risk rating 2  1,795,662  931 	-	  1,796,593 

 risk rating 3  1,706,713 	-	 	-	  1,706,713 

 risk rating 4  1,622,258  5,761 	-	  1,628,019 

 risk rating 5  416,496  8,960 	-	  425,456 

 risk rating 6  1,161,628  6,365 	-	  1,167,993 

 risk rating 7  2,118 	-	 	-	  2,118 

 risk rating 8  22,842 	-	 	-	  22,842 

 risk rating 9  7,342  909 	-	  8,251 

 unrated  7,189 	-	 	-	  7,189 

 Impaired 	-	 	-	  726,711  726,711 

 7,001,021  22,926  726,711  7,750,658 

sovereign

 risk rating A 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	

 risk rating B  6,536 	-	 	-	  6,536 

 risk rating C  231,736 	-	 	-	  231,736 

 risk rating d  67,561 	-	 	-	  67,561 

 risk rating E  203,953  1,977 	-	  205,930 

 509,786  1,977 	-	  511,763 

 7,510,807  24,903  726,711  8,262,421 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit quality by class of financial assets (cont’d.)

 Credit	quality	by	loans,	advances	and	financing	(cont’d.)

 Neither past
 due nor

 impaired 

 Past due 
 but not 

 impaired  impaired  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Commercial customer

 risk rating 1  105,898 	-	 	-	  105,898 

 risk rating 2  981,608  680 	-	  982,288 

 risk rating 3  957,343  1,565 	-	  958,908 

 risk rating 4  1,017,083  23,308 	-	  1,040,391 

 risk rating 5  539,970  20,645 	-	  560,615 

 risk rating 6  625,003  8,892 	-	  633,895 

 risk rating 7  94,766  6,082 	-	  100,848 

  risk rating 8  5,823 	-	 	-	  5,823 

 risk rating 9 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	

 Impaired 	-	 	-	  884,357  884,357 

 4,327,494  61,172  884,357  5,273,023 

sovereign

 risk rating A 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	

 risk rating B  12,973 	-	 	-	  12,973 

 risk rating C  225,719 	-	 	-	  225,719 

 risk rating d  80,644 	-	 	-	  80,644 

 risk rating E  244,312 	-	 	-	  244,312 

 563,648 	-	 -  563,648 

 4,891,142  61,172  884,357  5,836,671 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 credit quality by class of financial assets (cont’d.)

 Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans, advances and financing

 Analysis of loans, advances and financing that are past due but not impaired based on the group’s and the Bank’s internal 
credit rating system are as follows:

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

1 month overdue  15,116  21,605 

2 months overdue  909  14,473 

3 months overdue  2,410  22,955 

4 months overdue  787  1,246 

5 months overdue  5,681  893 

 24,903  61,172 

 Collateral and other credit enhancements

 The main types of collateral or other credit enhancements held by the group and the Company to mitigate credit risk are fixed 
deposits, securities, commercial and residential properties and machineries.

	 As	at	31	December	2014,	the	financial	effect	of	collateral	(quantification	of	the	extent	to	which	collateral	mitigate	credit	risk)	
held	for	loans,	advances	and	financing	for	the	Group	and	the	Company	is	at	43%	(2013:	23%).	The	financial	effect	of	collateral	
held for other financial assets is not significant.

 restructured items 

 restructured loans refer to the financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired where there is fundamental 
revision in the principal terms and conditions of the facility. restructuring shall be considered when the customer’s business 
is still viable and is expected to remain viable after the restructuring. The total restructured loans held by the group and the 
Bank	stood	at	RM248.9	million	(2013:	RM167.8	million).

 Fair values

(i) Determination of fair values

 The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and other payables approximate fair values due to 
the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

 Securities	available-for-sale	and	securities	held-to-maturity

 The fair value of quoted securities is derived from market bid prices as at the reporting date. for unquoted securities, the 
fair value is determined based on quotes from independent dealers or using valuation techniques such as the discounted 
cash flows method.

 where discounted cash flows method is used, the estimated future cash flow shall include projections from liquidation, 
realisation of collateral assets or estimates of future operating cash flow. The present value of the estimated future cash 
flow	 (excluding	 future	expected	credit	 losses	 that	have	not	yet	been	 incurred)	 is	discounted	at	 the	securities’	original	
effective interest rate or at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

 As for investment in unquoted equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, it is 
impracticable to estimate the fair value due to the lack of comparable quoted market prices and inability to estimate the 
fair value without incurring excessive costs.
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 Fair values (cont’d.)

(i) Determination of fair values (cont’d.)

 derivative financial assets/liabilities

 The fair value is based on quoted market price or marked to model valuation.

 loans, advances and financing

 loans, advances and financing are net of charges for impairment. The estimated fair value represents the discounted 
amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market 
rates to determine fair value.

 Borrowings	(Non-hedged	items)

	 The	fair	value	of	variable	rate	non-concessional	borrowings	is	estimated	to	approximate	the	carrying	amount.

 Management is of the view that all concessionary borrowings bear interest rate which approximates the market rate 
for similar concessionary borrowings granted to other development financial institutions. Therefore, the fair value of 
concessionary borrowings is estimated to approximate the carrying amount.

 Borrowings	(Hedged	items)

 The fair value is based on marked to model valuation.

(ii) Fair value hierarchy

 The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been 
defined as follows:

	 Level	1	-	 Quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities

	 Level	2	-	 Inputs	other	 than	quoted	prices	 included	within	Level	1	 that	 are	observable	 for	 the	asset	or	 liability,	 either	 
	 directly	(i.e.	as	prices)	or	indirectly	(i.e.	derived	from	prices)

	 Level	3	-	 Inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability	that	are	not	based	on	observable	market	data	(unobservable	inputs)
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 Fair values (cont’d.)

(ii) Fair value hierarchy (cont’d.)

 The following table represents financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by level with the following 
fair value measurement hierarchy:

 carrying 
 value 

 Fair value 
 level 2 

 rM’000  rM’000 

2014

Financial assets

Afs securities

 unquoted debt securities  110,971  110,971 

HTM securities

 unquoted debt securities  10,003  10,003 

derivative financial assets  29,599  29,599 

loans, advances and financing  7,933,864  7,933,864 

 8,084,437  8,084,437 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings	-	Medium	Term	Notes/Sukuk	(Hedged	items)  4,389,999  4,389,999 

derivative financial liabilities  30,205  30,205 

 4,420,204  4,420,204 

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

Investment properties  473  1,210 
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36. FiNANciAl risk MANAgeMeNT Policies (coNT’D.)

 Fair values (cont’d.)

(ii) Fair value hierarchy (cont’d.)

 carrying 
 value 

 Fair value 
 level 2 

 rM’000  rM’000 

2013

Financial assets

Afs securities

 unquoted debt securities  435,616  435,616 

HTM securities

 unquoted debt securities  10,005  10,005 

derivative financial assets  379  379 

loans, advances and financing  5,301,508  5,301,508 

 5,747,508  5,747,508

Financial liabilities

Borrowings	-	Medium	Term	Notes	(Hedged	items)  2,309,713  2,309,713 

derivative financial liabilities  58,335  58,335 

 2,368,048  2,368,048 

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

Investment properties  491  780 

 There were no transfer between level 1 and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the financial year.

 for financial instruments classified as level 1, the valuations are determined by reference to unadjusted quoted prices 
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the quoted prices are readily available, and the prices represent 
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. An active market is one in which transactions 
occur with sufficient volume and frequency to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

 for financial instruments classified as level 2, their values are based on quoted prices in inactive markets, or whose 
values are based on models whereby but the inputs to those models are observable either directly or indirectly for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability. These would include certain bonds, government bonds, corporate debt 
securities and certain issued notes.

37. iNsurANce risks

 The principal underwriting risk to which the Bank is exposed is credit risk in connection with credit, guarantee and political 
risk insurance underwriting activities. Management has established underwriting processes and limits to manage this risk by 
performing credit review on its policy holders and buyers.

 The underwriting function undertakes qualitative and quantitative risk assessments on all buyers and clients before deciding 
on an approved insured amount. Policies in riskier markets may be rejected or charged at a higher premium rate accompanied 
by stringent terms and conditions to commensurate the risks.
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37. iNsurANce risks (coNT’D.)

 Concentration limits are set to avoid heavy concentration within a specific region or country. Maximum limits are set for buyer 
credit limits and client facility limits for prudent risk mitigation.

 for the monitoring of buyer risks, the Bank takes into consideration both qualitative and quantitative factors and conducts 
regular reviews on the buyers’ credit standing and payment performance to track any deterioration in their financial position 
that may result in a loss to the Bank.

 on country risk, the Bank periodically reviews the economic and political conditions of the insured markets so as to revise its 
guidelines, wherever appropriate. In order to mitigate the insurance risk, the Bank may cede or transfer the risk to another 
insurer company. The ceding arrangement minimises the net loss to the Bank arising from potential claims.

 key assumptions 

 The sensitivity analysis is based upon the assumptions set out in the actuarial report and is subject to the reliances and 
limitations contained within the report. one particular reliance is that the net sensitivity results assume that all reinsurance 
recoveries are receivable in full. 

 The sensitivity items shown are independent of each other. In practice, a combination of adverse and favourable changes 
could occur. 

 The sensitivity results are not intended to capture all possible outcomes. significantly more adverse or favourable results are 
possible. 

 sensitivity analysis

	 The	independent	actuarial	firm	engaged	by	the	Group	and	the	Bank	re-runs	its	valuation	models	on	various	bases.	An	analysis	
of sensitivity around various scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the group’s and the Bank’s estimation 
process in respect of its insurance contracts. The table presented below demonstrates the sensitivity of the insurance contract 
liabilities estimates to particular movements in assumptions used in the estimation process.

 The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held 
constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and equity. The correlation of assumptions will have 
a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, 
assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. 

 claim liability sensitivity analysis

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Estimated claim liabilities  28,722  27,073 
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37. iNsurANce risks (coNT’D.)

 claim liability sensitivity analysis (cont’d.)

a. change in claim costs

	 Assumed	an	average	claim	cost	of	RM400,000	net	of	non-reinsurance	recoveries	for	the	Comprehensive	Policy	Shipments	
and adopted the group’s and the Bank’s specific provisions for the other types of contracts where applicable. Changing 
the average claims cost and specific provisions by 10% gives the following results:

 
2014
 Net

2013
 Net

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

Estimated claim liabilities  31,538  25,906  29,794  24,440 

b. change in average number of claims

 Assumed 4.5% of Comprehensive Policy shipments policies as IBNr claims for Comprehensive Policy shipments. 
Changing this by 10% gives the following results: 

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

Estimated claim liabilities  28,948  28,946  28,073  26,161 

c. change in claims handling expenses (“che”)

	 Assumed	the	following	expenses	-	10%	of	IBNR	and	9%	of	the	specific	provisions.	Changing	this	by	10%	points	gives	
the following results:

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

Estimated claim liabilities  31,361  26,325  29,614  24,838 



Notes to the fiNaNcial statemeNts 
31 december 2014

AnnuAl report 2014  •  EXIM BANK MALAYSIA 179

37. iNsurANce risks (coNT’D.)

claim liability sensitivity analysis (cont’d.)

d. change in PrAD %

	 Assumed	a	claim	Provision	of	Risk	Margin	for	Adverse	Deviation	(“PRAD”)	of	15%.	Changing	this	by	10%	(to	16.5%	and	
13.5%	respectively)	gives	the	following	results:

2014
 Net 

2013
Net

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

Estimated claim liabilities  29,097  28,347  27,471  26,763 

 Premium/contribution liability sensitivity analysis

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Estimated premium/contribution liabilities  9,543  15,836 

a. change in probability of default

	 For	 2014,	 assumed	 1-year	 probability	 of	 default	 of	 ranging	 from	 1%	 to	 5%	 for	 short	 term	 contracts,	
depending	 on	 the	 type	 of	 contract.	 For	 the	 MLT	 policies	 all	 1-year	 probabilities	 were	 assumed	 to	 have	 a	 BB	
rating	 which	 equated	 to	 a	 0.71%	 1-year	 probability	 of	 default.	 Changing	 this	 rating	 assumption	 to	 B	 rating	 
(less	 trustworthy-	 for	 the	 “High”	 Scenario)	 and	 BBB	 rating	 (more	 trustworthy-	 for	 the	 “Low”	 scenario)	 gives	 the 
following results:

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net 

 high 
 b rating 

 points 

 low 
 bbb rating 

 points 

 high 
 +0.25% 

 points 

 low 
 -0.25% 
 points 

Estimated premium/contribution liabilities  24,415  5,881  17,547  14,127 
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37. iNsurANce risks (coNT’D.)

 Premium/contribution liability sensitivity analysis (cont’d.)

b. change in recovery rates

 on the premium liability front, assumed nil recovery rates for all the products. Increasing this to 10% gives the following 
results:

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

Estimated premium liabilities  10,926  8,160  17,413  13,669 

c. change in claim handling expenses (“che”)

 Assumed CHE of 10%. Changing this by 10% points gives the following results:

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

Estimated premium liabilities  10,371  8,714  17,230  14,443 

d. change in PrAD %

	 Assumed	a	premium	PRAD	of	50%.	Changing	this	by	10%	(to	55%	and	45%	respectively)	gives	the	following	results:

2014
 Net 

2013
 Net 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

 rM’000 
 high 

 +10% 

 rM’000 
 low 

 -10% 

Estimated premium liabilities  9,861  9,225  16,364  15,308 
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs

 statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014

Note

group and bank

2014 2013

 islamic 
 business 

 fund 
 Takaful 

 fund  Total 

 islamic 
 business 

 fund 
 Takaful 

 fund  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Assets

Cash and bank balances (a)  558  52  610  58  109  167 

deposits and placements with 
banks and other financial 
institutions (b)  21,730  3,513  25,243  317  1,199  1,516 

Investment securities (c)  85,756 -  85,756  322,330 -  322,330 

Amount	due	from	ECR-i	debtors (d)  319 	-	  319  367 	-	  367 

Islamic financing (e)  2,596,870 	-	  2,596,870  1,450,887 	-	  1,450,887 

derivative financial instruments (f)  1,097 	-	  1,097 	-	 	-	 	-	

Contribution receivable 	-	  750  750 	-	  783  783 

Qard receivable  1,265  1,265  2,530  2,419  2,419  4,838 

other receivables  12,962  45  13,007  2,353  1  2,354 

Total assets  2,720,557  5,625  2,726,182  1,778,731  4,511  1,783,242 

liabilities

financing payable (g)  2,101,182 	-	  2,101,182  897,910 	-	  897,910 

deferred income 19  5,918  2,058  7,976 	-	  2,419  2,419 

Provision for claim 20 	-	  1,963  1,963 	-	  1,543  1,543 

Provision for expenses liability 20  156 	-	  156  130 	-	  130 

other liabilities  387,187  1,604  388,791  739,017  549  739,566 

Total liabilities  2,494,443  5,625  2,500,068  1,637,057  4,511  1,641,568 

Financed by:

Islamic banking fund  100,000 	-	  100,000  100,000 	-	  100,000 

Takaful participants fund  -	 	(1,265) 	(1,265) 	-	 	(2,419) 	(2,419)

Qard payable  1,265  1,265  2,530  2,419  2,419  4,838 

reserves 	(196) 	-	 	(196) 	(245) 	-	 	(245)

retained Profits  125,045 	-	  125,045  39,500 	-	  39,500 

Total islamic business fund 
and Takaful fund  226,114 	-	  226,114  141,674 	-	  141,674 

Total liabilities, islamic 
business fund, and Takaful 
participants fund  2,720,557  5,625  2,726,182  1,778,731  4,511  1,783,242 

commitments and 
contingencies (k)  1,077,239  140,687  1,217,926  949,246  158,880  1,108,126 
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

 statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note

group and bank

2014 2013

 islamic 
 business 

 fund 
 Takaful 

 fund  Total 

 islamic 
 business 

 fund 
 Takaful 

 fund  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Income derived from  
Islamic banking fund (h)  118,208 	-	  118,208  50,156 	-	  50,156 

financing cost 	(39,999) 	-	 	(39,999) 	(6,019) 	-	 	(6,019)

Net income from Islamic 
banking fund  78,209 	-	  78,209  44,137 	-	  44,137 

gross contribution 	-	  2,172  2,172 	-	  3,189  3,189 

wakalah fee  783 	(783) 	-	  1,080 	(1,080) 	-	

reinsurance outward 	-	 	(79) 	(79) 	-	 	(60) 	(60)

Increase/(decrease)	in	 
contribution liability 	-	  361  361 	-	 	(1,013) 	(1,013)

Increase in claim liability 	-	 	(504) 	(504) 	-	 	(2,495) 	(2,495)

decrease in expenses liability 	(26) 	-	 	(26) 	(130) 	-	 	(130)

Takaful fees  122 	(13)  109  138 	(27)  111 

Income from Takaful activities  879  1,154  2,033  1,088 	(1,486) 	(398)

Islamic banking fund and  
Takaful fund results  79,088  1,154  80,242  45,225 	(1,486)  43,739 

other Income (i)  1,952 	-	  1,952  27,191 	-	  27,191 

Net Income from Islamic 
business  81,040  1,154  82,194  72,416 	(1,486)  70,930 

Administrative expenses 	(616) 	-	 	(616) 	(579) 	-	 	(579)

Allowances for losses on 
financing (j)  7,117 	-	  7,117 	(36,673) 	-	 	(36,673)

Profit/(loss)	for	the	year	before	 
taxation and zakat  87,541  1,154  88,695  35,164 	(1,486)  33,678 

Zakat 	(729) 	-	 	(729) 	(695) 	-	 	(695)

Net	profit/(loss)	  86,812  1,154  87,966  34,469 	(1,486)  32,983 
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

 statement of changes in islamic business fund and Takaful fund for the year ended 31 December 2014

 islamic 
 banking 

 Fund 
 retained 

 profits 

 Fair value 
 adjustment 

 reserve  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

group and bank

At 1 January 2013  100,000  4,098 	-	  104,098 

Net profit for the year 	-	  32,983 	(245)  32,738 

At 31 december 2013  100,000  37,081 	(245)  136,836 

Net profit for the year 	-	  87,966  49  88,015 

At 31 december 2014  100,000  125,047 	(196)  224,851 

 statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation and zakat  87,541  35,164 

Adjustments for:

 Individual allowance

		 -		Charged	for	the	year  4,837 	-	

		 -		Written	back	during	the	year 	-	 	(327)

 Collective allowance

		 -		Charged	for	the	year 	-	  37,000 

		 -		Written	back	during	the	year 	(11,954) 	-	

 unrealised foreign exchange gain 	(24,610) 	(10,379)

 unrealised gain evaluation on derivative 	(975) 	-	

 unrealised loss evaluation on MTN  7,177 	-	

operating profit before working capital changes  62,016  61,458 

 Changes in working capital:

 other assets 	(9,455) 	(2,039)

 other liabilities (348,292)  349,694 

 Islamic financing 	(1,138,866) 	(985,294)

 Zakat paid 	(695) 	(429)

Net cash used in operating activities 	(1,435,292) 	(576,610)

cash flows from investing activities

Disposal/(purchase)	of	investments  236,452 	(322,330)

Net cash generated/(used in) investing activities  236,452 	(322,330)
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

 statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (cont’d.)

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

cash flows from financing activities

Net drawdown of financing payable  1,220,705  699,140 

Net	drawdown/(repayment)	of	ECR-i	debtors  48 	(258)

Net cash generated from financing activities  1,220,753  698,882 

Net	increase/(decrease)	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents  21,913 	(200,058)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  375  200,433 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 22,288  375 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash and bank balances  558  58 

deposits and placements with financial institutions  21,730  317 

 22,288  375 

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

(a)  cash and bank balances

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Cash and bank balances  610  167 

(b)  Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions

deposits and placements with:

 licensed banks  23,850  1,516 

 other financial institution  1,393 	-	

 25,243  1,516 

(c)  investment securities

Available-for-sale	investments

 unquoted debt securities  85,756  322,330 
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (cont’d.)

(d)  Amount due from ecr-i debtors

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Amount	due	from	participating	licensed	banks	under	ECR-i	Scheme  319  367 

The	maturity	structure	of	the	ECR-i	debtors	are	as	follows:

Maturity within one year  319  367 

(e) islamic financing

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

(i)		 Murabahah	  478,428  570,352 

  Istisna’  379,268  344,791 

  Bai’ dayn  17,967  9,337 

  Tawarruq  1,832,690  1,021,366 

  Ijarah**  610,856  189,972 

  unearned income 	(667,113) 	(622,588)

 2,652,096  1,513,230 

  Allowances for losses on advances and financing:

	 	 -		Individual	allowance 	(4,837) 	-	

	 	 -		Collective	allowance 	(50,389) 	(62,343)

  Net advances and financing  2,596,870  1,450,887 

** RM388,586,798 is in respect of Sukuk Issuance

(ii)		 The	maturity	structure	of	the	advances	and	financing	are	as	follows:

  within one year  562,489  670,155 

  one year to three years  169,016  155,429 

  Three years to five years  820,606 	-	

  over five years  1,099,985  687,646 

 2,652,096  1,513,230 
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (cont’d.)

(e) islamic financing (cont’d.)

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000

(iii)		 Islamic	gross	financing	analysed	by	profit	rate	sensitivity	are	as	follows:

 

   fixed rate  670,675  553,122 

   variable rate  1,981,421  960,108 

 2,652,096  1,513,230 

(iv)		 Islamic	gross	financing	analysed	by	geography	are	as	follows:

  Malaysia  1,863,012  1,039,956 

  East Asia  311,617  264,721 

  Middle East  111,629  143,943 

  Africa  2,013  3,738 

  Europe  279,210  29,797 

  oceania  84,615  31,075 

 2,652,096  1,513,230 

(v)		 Islamic	gross	financing	analysed	by	industry	are	as	follows:

  Primary agriculture  229,824  226,687 

  Mining and quarrying  7,291  58,323 

  Manufacturing  657,182  594,608 

  Transport, storage and communication  836,817  293,225 

  Construction  32,863 	-	

  wholesale and retail trade, and restaurants and hotels  324,040  59,413 

  finance, insurance, real estate and business activities  249,225 	-	

  Electricity, gas and water  230,239  230,000 

  others  84,616  50,974 

 2,652,096  1,513,230 

(vi)		 Movements	in	impaired	financing	are	as	follows:

  At 1 January 	-	  6,280 

  Impaired during the year  6,709 	-	

  reclassified as non impaired 	-	 	(173)

  Amount written off 	-	 	(6,107)

  At 31 december  6,709 	-	
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)
 

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (cont’d.)

(e) islamic financing (cont’d.)

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

(vii)	 Movements	in	the	allowance	for	impaired	financing	are	as	follows:

 individual allowance

 Balance at 1 January 	-	  6,435 

 Allowance made during the year  4,837 	-	

 reversal during the year 	-	 	(327)

 Bad debts written off 	-	 	(6,108)

 Balance at 31 december  4,837 	-	

 

 collective allowance

 Balance at 1 January  62,343  25,343 

 Allowance made during the year 	-	  37,000 

 reversal during the year 	(11,954) 	-	

 Balance at 31 december  50,389  62,343 

(f) Derivative financial instrument

group and bank

2014 2013

Fair Value Notional 
Amount

Fair Value Notional 
AmountAssets liability Assets liability

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000

derivative used as 
fair value hedges

Profit rate swaps 1,097 - 1,048,950 - - -

Total 1,097 - 1,048,950 - - -
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (cont’d.)

(g) Financing Payable

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

(i)  revolving credit facility - unsecured

 repayable within one year 1,045,670  897,910 

(ii)  sukuk

 Two years to five years 1,055,512 	-	

 Total borrowings  2,101,182  897,910

(h) income derived from investment of islamic banking fund 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Islamic financing:

 Murabahah  19,875  16,203 

 Istisna’  14,290  12,199 

 Bai’ dayn  1,043  233 

 Tawarruq  45,167  16,868 

 Ijarah  15,398  1,500 

ECR-i	debtors  758  17 

deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions  10,484  3,136 

Net income from profit rate swaps  11,193 	-	

 118,208  50,156 
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (cont’d.)

(i) other income

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

fee Income  6,264  12,635 

Foreign	exchange	(loss)/gain

-		unrealised  24,610  10,379 

-		realised 	(22,720)  4,177 

Net gain financial instruments designated through at fair value through profit or loss  975 	-	

Net loss on sukuk designated at fair value profit or loss 	(7,177) 	-	

 1,952  27,191 
 
(j) Allowances for losses on financing
 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

(i)		 Individual	allowance

-		Charged	for	the	year  4,837 		-		

-		Written	back	during	the	year 	-	 	(327)

(ii)		 Collective	allowance

-		Charged	for	the	year 	-	  37,000 

-		Written	back	during	the	year 	(11,954) 	-	

	(7,117)  36,673 
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38. islAMic busiNess FuNDs (coNT’D.)

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (cont’d.)

(k) commitments and contingencies
 

 group and bank 

 2014  2013 

 rM’000  rM’000 

Banking operation commitments

Contracted but not provided for:

 guarantee facility 64,874 	-	

 letter of credit 1,602 	-	

 undrawn financing 1,010,763 949,246

1,077,239 949,246

Insurance operation commitments

Contracted but not provided for:

 within one year 140,687 158,880

Total commitments and contingencies 1,217,926 1,108,126

39. segMeNT iNForMATioN

 The following segment information has been prepared in accordance with Mfrs 8 operating segments, which defines the 
requirements for the disclosure of financial information of an entity’s operating segments.

	 It	is	prepared	on	the	basis	of	the	“management	approach”,	which	requires	presentation	of	the	segments	on	the	basis	of	internal	
reports about the components of the entity.

 segment information are presented in respect of the group’s business segments as follows:

1)	 Banking

 Banking comprise of activities involving conventional and Islamic facilities to finance and support export and import 
of	goods,	services	and	overseas	projects	as	well	as	financial	guarantee	 facilities	with	an	emphasis	on	non-traditional	
markets.

2)		 Insurance	and	Takaful

 Insurance and Takaful comprise of activities involving providing export, credit and political risks insurance.

3)		 Support

	 Support	 refers	 to	 non-core	 operations	mainly	 involving	 finance,	 treasury,	 administration,	 human	 resource	 and	others	
which support the group’s overall operation.
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39. segMeNT iNForMATioN (coNT’D.)

group

2014 2013

business segments business segments

 banking 

 insurance 
 and 

Takaful  support  Total  banking 

 insurance 
 and 

Takaful  support  Total 

 rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000  rM’000 

Net interest income  130,627 	-	  54,738  185,365  89,243 	-	  89,393  178,636 

underwriting results 	-	  10,652 	-	  10,652 	-	  2,118 	-	  2,118 

Income from Islamic 
business  78,209  879 	-	  79,088  44,137  1,088 	-	  45,225 

other income  19,119 	-	 	(21,626) 	(2,507)  51,832 	-	 	(4,707)  47,125 

Net income  227,955  11,531  33,112  272,598  185,212  3,206  84,686  273,104 

overhead expenses 	(23,757) 	(8,560) 	(41,896) 	(74,213) 	(22,338) 	(7,697) 	(40,216) 	(70,251)

operating profit  204,198  2,971 	(8,784)  198,385  162,874 	(4,491)  44,470  202,853 

Allowances for losses 
on loans, advances 
and financing 	(157,535) 	-	 	- 	(157,535) 	(12,600) 	-	 	-	 	(12,600)

 46,663  2,971 	(8,784)  40,850  150,274 	(4,491)  44,470  190,253 

Taxation 	(21,054) 	(44,841)

Zakat (729) 	(695)

Net profit for the year  19,067  144,717

40. coMPArATiVe

 Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform current year’s presentation, as shown below:

group and bank Note

 As
previously 

stated Adjustment 
 As 

re-stated 

statement of income

other income 26 34,490 12,635 47,125

Income from Islamic business 38 57,860 (12,635) 45,225

Islamic business :

 Income derived from investment of Islamic banking fund 38	(h)  62,791 	(12,635)  50,156 

 other Income 38	(i)  14,556  12,635  27,191 

 The reclassification of fee income from Islamic operations is carried out to align with fee income from conventional banking 
to be reported as part of other income instead of net income from Islamic banking fund. This is to be consistent with 
other elements in other income as per Note 26 such as foreign exchange and others which consolidate both the result of 
conventional and Islamic operation.
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